
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Zoom Meeting 

Wednesday, June 24, 2020 
5:15 p.m. – 6:45 p.m. 



Table of Contents 

1. Full Board Agenda June 24, 2020 (p. 2-3)

2. Minutes of March 11, 2020 Executive CommittE>e ME>E>ting (p 4-6)

3. Minutes of March 20, 2020 Executive Committee Meeting (p. 7-8)

4. Minutes of March 25, 2020 Full Board Minutes (p. 9-12)

5. Minutes of May 11, 2020 Executive Committee Meeting (p. 13)

6. Minutes of April 7, 2020 Scholarship & Grants Committee Meeting (p. 14)

7. Minutes of June 2, 2020 Scholarship & Grants Committee Meeting (p. 15-16)

8. Policies and Procedures for Awarding Scholarships (p. 17-24)

9. Minutes of April 22, 2020 Programs Sustainability Meeting (p.25-26)

10. Minutes of June 8, 2020 Programs Sustainability Meeting (p.27-28)

11. Memo New Gift Guidelines (p. 29)

12. Good News Development Activity Report (p. 30)

13. Fund raising Gift Reports (p. 31-33)

14. Anticipated Planned Gifts Report (p. 34-35)

15. Public Relations Report (p. 36-39)

16. Marketing Moment (p. 40-41)

17. Minutes of May 18, 2020 MarkE>tplacp Committee (p. 42)

17 Q.� 5ldll'ITl('lll of Flrmmfol Position (p. 43)

18. Q3 Statement of Financial Activity Q3 vs. Prior Year (p. 44-47)

19. Q3 Budget vs. Actuals (p. 48-49)

20. Q3 Budget Variance Report (p. 50-53)

21. 4-29-2020 Memo Re: Revised 2018 IRS 990 (p. 54)

22. Minutes of May 6, 2020 Budget Committee Meeting (page 55)

23. Minutes of May 20, 2020 Budget Committee Meeting (page 56)

24. Minutes of May 27, 2020 Joint Budget & Investment Committees Meeli11g (µ. 57-58)

25. Investment Committee Memo A (p.59)

26. Proposed Investment Guidelines (p. 60-61)

27. Investment Committee Memo B & Attachments (p.62-99)

28. 2020/2021 Proposed Budget & Narrative (p. 100-111)

27 Minutes of May lil, lOlO Personnel Committee Mooting (p. 112)

29. Anne Paul King, Executive Director, FY20 Performance Self-Assessment (p. 113-118)

30. VCF Chair van Nieuwburg FY20 Performance Evaluation, A.P. King, Exec. Dir. (p. 119-120)

31. VC President Hoffmans FY20 Performance Evaluation, A.P. King, Exec. Dir. (p. 121-125)

32. Minutos of May 28, 2020 Nominating Committee Meeting (p. 126)

33. Proposed 2020-21 Slate of Officer�(µ. 127)

34. Board Committee Chart (p. 128)

35. Board Schedule as of 6-2020 (p. 129)

Attachment: Revised 2018 IRS 990

VCF Full Board Meeting Agenda June 24, 2020

 1



V[NTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
our drl"am� our m silon 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 24, 2019, 5:15 p.m. 
Zoom Meeting 

AGENDA 

5:15 p.m. A CALL TO ORDER

5:16 p.m. B 

5:17p.m. C 

"::n p.m. D 

5'.27 p.m. E 

5:30 p.m. F 

5:33 p.m. G 

1 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: This is an opportunity for members of the public to 

address the Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors. 

WELCOME 

CONSENT AGENDA- Single action for approval of Items listed below: 

1) Approval of Minutes of the March 25, 2020 Board of Directors
Meeting

2) Action Item A -Approval of Policies & Procedures for Awarding
Scholarships

3) Action Item B -Program Sustainability Meeting Minutes

4) Action Item C -Approval Changes Investment Guidelines

5) Action Item D -Approval Temporary Suspension of Investment

Policy in Response to Financial Instability Due to Pandemic
6) Action Item E -Permit a One-Time Withdrawal from Specified

Endowments for Operating Purposes with Donor Permission

7) Action Item F -Apply to the State Attorney General to Convert

Olcior and �mall Fncioweci Arrounts to 'ipencidowns to Increase

Support to Students
8) Action Item G -Approve lOlO-ll Budget

Q} Action ltE>m H -Approval of One Year Fxtcnsion of Fxerutivc

Direc.tor Conlrdc.l witli Redullior, i11 Sdldry lo Support Cd�li Flow

10) AlliOII I -- Approvdl or tire VCF 2020-21 Sidle of Officers dlld
l<enewal of Members I wo Year 1 erms ot Service

GUEST STUDENT SPEAKER 

SOCIAL MEDIA MOMENT 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA FOR FURTHER 

DISCUSSION 

COMMITTEE, STAFF & ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

1) Board Chair - Executive Committee & General Update

VCF Q4 Full BOD Agenda June 24, 2020 

VAN NIEUWBURG 

VAN NIEUWBURG 

VAN Nl�UW8URG 

KING 

HARVEY 

VAN NIEUWBURG 

VAN NIEUWBURG 

2



2) College President - General Update
3) Executive Director- General Update
4) Scholarship & Grants Committee
5) Program Sustainability Committee
6) Marketplace Committee
7) Finance Committee

Recommendation to Approve Amended IRS Form 990
8) Budget Committee
9) Investment Committee
10) Nominating Committee
11) Personnel Committee

5:35 p.m. I    GENERAL DISCUSSION & OTHER TOPICS

6:45 p.m.   H  ADJOURNMENT

2 

vcr Q4 Full BOD Agenda June 24, 2020 

HOl+MANS 
KING 

HEMMING 
DEMBOWSKI 

VAN NIEUWBURG 

KREUTZ 

KREUTZ 
COLLIN 

LAVERE 
LAVERE 

ALL 

VAN NIEUWBURG 

 3



Ventura College Foundation I Board of Directors 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Wednesday, March 11, 2020, 5:00 p.m. 

71 Day Road Center Conference Room, Ventura College 

MINUTES 

Directors Present: Rob Van Nieuwburg - Chair, Ruth Hemming - Vice Chair, Nicole Kreutz - Treasurer, Anne King -

Executive Director, Kristin Ockert-Strategic Planning Committee Co-Chair, Ellyn Dembowski -

Program Sustainability Chair 

Staff Present: Jaimee Galvan, Julie Harvey, Suzie O'Connell, Gerry Pantoja, Cyndie Whitley 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. van Nieuwburg called the meeting to order at 5:08 p.m. 

The committee agreed to move the consent agenda until later in the meeting. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

SCHOLARSHIP & GRANTS 

Dr. Hemming shared that the VC Institutional Effectiveness department provided a presentation 

at a recent committee meeting. The presentation helped the committee in discussion of ways 

to support part-time students. The committee also discussed feedback and information 

regarding the strategic plan draft. Dr. Hemming stated that the committee discussed moving 

away from funding the Promise program due to state funding for first year students up to two 

years, and planned to focus toward a new and groundbreaking Zero Textbook Cost program. 

MARKETPLACE 

Mr. van Nleuwburg shared good news that there are seven new produce vendors on Saturdays 

at the Marketplace He shared additional positive news that there have been seven new 

vendors to utilize the free space incentive 011 sales of vintage items on the first Saturdays of the 

month. Ms. Ockert inquired in regards to the solar project. Mrs. King celebrated exciting news 

that the solar project will not close Marketplace for business during the process. The project 

will happen in stages affecting certain sections of the parking lot at a given time, and will 

minimally effect the marketplace vendors and operations 

FINANCE 

Mrs. KreulL celebrated that the financials are doing well. She explained that any variances were 

due to timing issues. Mrs. Kreutz discussed the amendf'd 7017 tax form 990 and thE- adju�lmE-nl 

of Miriam Schwab gift as an unusual gift. She also explained the 2018 tax form 990 adjusted for 

Helen Yunker estate gift. Mrs. King noted that there are no red flacs this period. 

BUDGET: 

Mrs. Kreutz statf'd that the committee hlld it5 first budget meeting of the year last week, and 

Budget committee will be meeting again on April 29, 2020. She encouraged other board 

members to attend If Interested in the 2020/2021 Budget. 

1 I Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors- Executive Meeting Minutes of March 11, 2020 4



INVESTMENT: 

Mrs. King informed the committee that the investment committee had an off-cycle meeting to 

address the subject of the VCF's current investment team leaving their company to work at 

another firm. Miracle Mile Advisors presented the investment committee with information 

regarding management the VC Foundation investment accounts. Mrs. King stated that 

Investment Committee requests that the Executive Committee vote to approve the switch in 

investment companies. Miracle Mile Advisors agreed to absorb any transfer fees that may 

occur in the transition process. 

MOTION: Approval of the full consent agenda: 

► Approval of December 4, 2019 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes
► Approval of February 10, 2020 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes

► Approval of December 18, 2019 Q2 Full Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

► Approval of March 25, 2020 Q3 Full Board Meeting Agenda
i, Approval to terminate inve�trmml (0lltra(t with Payden & Rygel and move

investments to Miracle Mile Advisors provided that Miracle Mile Advisors cover any 

additional fee� that would be generated from the transfer of those funds 
► Recommend full board approve Final 2018 Tax form 990

► Recommend full board approve Amended 2017 Tax form 990
► Recommend full board approval of the 2020-2026 Six-year Strategic Plan

Mrs. Dembowski moved. Ms. Ockert seconded. MSC. 

PROGRAM SUSTAINABILITY: 

Mr. Pantoja discussed the committee's recent meeting topics have been the strategic plan and 

budget goals for the next fiscal year. Ms. Harvey celebrated that Mrs. King was recognized as a 

"who's who" in the Pacific Coast Business Times. Ms. Harvey also shared that another national 

pubhcatron has mentioned the vcr gift tram the [state of Miriam Sd,wal.J. M,. Harvey 

informed the committee that the VC Foundation's status through the Guide Star program was 

upgraded from gold to now platinum as of 2020. Mr. Pantoja reviewed the first two quarters 

tundraising reports. He also informed the committee of an upc:oming fundrai�er Hou�e Party on 

May 28, 2020 for donors that have pledges that will be complete after this year. rhe house 

party will take place at the home ot Lester Tong, and the goal is to introduce the Zero Textbook 

Cost (ZTC) Program to termer promise supporters. 

�IBATEGIC PLANNING; 

Ms. Ockert reported that the committee received and reviewed feedback from other 

committees regarding the dratted Strategic: Plan. She noted that the response was strong in all 

areas with the committees and their roles in the plan. She shared that Harald Wulff suggested 

the addition of wrnrnunily irnµatl slalernents in Lhe draft. Ms. Otkerl and M�. King worked 

diligently to tinish the draft. Ms. Ockert stated that the Strategic Plan i� a living document, and 

that the VC Foundation staff has created the 2020/2021 Budget with the Strategic Plan in mind. 

Ms. Ockert reviewed the Executive Summary. Ms. O'Connell is working to put together 

2 I Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors- Executive Meeting Minutes of March 11, 2020 5



resources to provide at the full board meeting in two weeks. Ms. Ockert and Mrs. King were 
excited that the plan will be going to the full board for final approval. 

NOMINATING: 

Mrs. King shared the news of the committee's idea to implement a succession plan for the 
executive team of the board. The committee plans to engage with the Bylaws Committee to 
assist in the development and implementation of the succession plan. 

PERSONNEL: 

Mrs. King shared news that the next Personnel Committee meeting, scheduled in May 2020, 
will be in regards to the executive director's yearly review as well as Mrs. King's two-year 
contract renewal. 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT: 

Mrs. King shared news that an all users email is going out to the college campus from Dr. 
Hoffmans Informing the campus that all donations will be required to go through the VC 
Foundation. Mrs. King discussed that the campus is exploring tht> po��ibility of 7t>ro Tt>xtbook 
Cost Program. Mrs. King reported that the VCf Lxecutive Committee voted to formally endorse 
the March 2020 Proposition 13 with a donation of $5,000, and was recognized for leading 
efforts in support. However, Proposition 13 was not passed by the voters. Mrs. King updated 
the committee in regards to the campus response to the coronavirus. She stated that the 
college is in phase one, which means taking precautions such as encouraging hand washing, and 

staying home to those who are not feeling well. Executive committee members: Ellyn 
Dembowski, Ruth Hemming, Rob van Nieuwburg and Anne king all pledged to sponsor 
scholarship events at the $500 Gold Chest sponsor level. Mrs. Dembowski stated she plans to 
reach out to other board members to boost additional support. Dr. Hemming inquired about 
adding to the board agenda a recommendation to transition support from the Promise to the 
7ero Textbook Cost program 

MOTION: Recommend full board approval that the VC Foundation no longer support 
funding lo the VC Promise given that state funds that now cover up to two years of full­
lime �Ludenl enrollment costs Including student health fees. Dr. Hemming moved. Mrs. 
Ot>mbowski seconded M<;C 

MOTION: Recommend the full board approval In concept of a VCF Zero Textbook Cost 
(ZTC) program for courses on Ventura College campus. Dr. I lermning moved. Mrs. 
Dernbow�ki �etonded. MSC. 

Mr. van Nit>uwburg thanked Mrs. Dembowski for attending, and wished her a happy birthday. 
The committee shared their warm wishes as well to Mrs. Dembowski. 

Meeting Adjourned at 6:11pm 

Minutes recorded by Susan O'Cu1111el/. 

3 I Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors- Executive Meeting Minutes of March 11, 2020 6



Ventura College Foundation I Board of Directors 

FMERGENCY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Wednesday, March 20, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
Zoom Meeting 

MINUTES 

Directors Present: Rob Van Nieuwburg - Chair, Ruth Hemming -Vice Chair, Nicole Kreutz -Treasurer, 

Mike Montoya -Secretary, Kim Hoffmans -VC President, Kristin Ockert - Strategic 
Planning Committee Co-Chair, Ellyn Dembowski - Program Sustainability Chair, Matt 

Lavere, Nominating and Personnel Committees Chair, Anne King - Executive Director 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. van Nieuwburg called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m. 

CASH-FLOW UPDATE & RECOMMENDATIONS 

Ms. King reminded the committee of the suspension of the Weekend Marketplace (MP) on March 13 to 

ensure public safety in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. This followed Ventura County Public Health 

Department recommendations. Given that 100% of operation costs come from MP vendor rental 

revenue, the existing cash flow has been severely interrupted and there is no known date for the 

resumption of the Marketplace at this time. Ms. King presented recommendations to extend our cash 

and begin to create alternative sources of unrestricted funds. 

(1) Immediate campaign to raise unrestricted dollars from all donors.

(L) Request each VLF Executive Committee member to establish a Leadership Gitt.

(3) VCF Board of Directors increase their minimum gift to $2,000 towards the President Circle
(lllllt'�lrl< te<I) drlllUdlly

(4) 10% admin fee on all annual and endowed gifts received going forward.

(5) Identify foundations that provide operational funding and apply for operational grdnl�.

(6) Exetutive Direclor dr1d Chdir eall llvlng, non-Osher, endowment donors to convert their
restricted criteria to operations, or, If that Is not authorized, ask for permission for an
unrestricted distribution from the endowment.

Ms. Kreutz recommended securing and un�enired operation line of credit. Mr. Collin insisted that we 
prioritize fund raising for unrestricted dollars going forward. Mr. Montoya asked what the college could 

do to help. VC President Hoffmans responded thnt taxpayer dollars could not be given to the 
found<1tlon. 

MOTION: Approvdl ,� given for all rernrnrnendatlons made by executive director, except for 
item three (3). In addition, executive director is authorized to apply for a line of credit through 

hme �0, 2021 Ms. Dembowski made the motion, Dr. Hoffmans seconded. MSC 

7



Ms. llembowskl expressed that the board must demonstrate to the community that that board Is all-in. 

Ms. King and Dr. Hoffmans expressed the importance for the board to receive input and guidance from 

the college. Mr. La Vere proposed a second tier of board giving for members appointed by the college 
president. 

MOTION: VCF Board of Directors will increase their minimum gift to $2,000 towards the 

President Circle (unrestricted) annually, except for college ex-officio members appointed by the 

college president who will remain at $1,000 per year; the ASVC President remains exempt from 

the giving mandate. Dr. Hoffmans made the motion, Mr. Lavere seconded. MSC 

Public meeting adjourned at 4:52 pm. 

CLOSED SESSION 

Mr. van Nieuwburg called the meeting to order at 4:SS p.m. All members in public session were 

present in closed session. 

M;. King p1e;e11Led a workforce reduction plan prepared by her and VLF lllrector of Finance, Juli 
Blasingame, in response to the sever loss in projected operating revenue due to COVID-19. Details were 

presented in a confidential memo sent to the commillee in advance. Without this plan, the foundation 

will run out of cash in mid-July (without using reserves). Ms. Dembowski expressed that she was 
pleased that the organization is positioned to quickly address the crisis responsibly. 

MOTION: Approve the workforce reduction plan as presented. Ms. Dembowski made the 
motion, Mr. Collin seconded. MSC 

-Mr. van Nieuwburg ask that the minutes show that the executive committee approved this motion
unanimously with heavy hearts.

Uosed session adJourned at !:.:16 pm.

 8



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

1vu, ureamc; our m1sc;1on 

Ventura College Foundation 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday1 March 25, 2020, 5:15 p.m. 

Conference Call 

MINUTES 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the above corporate was held on Wednesday, March 

25, 2020, at 5:15 p.m via conference call. The purpose of this meeting was to conduct general business. 

A quorum was declared present based on the presence of the following directors: 

Directors Present {16): Bob Beilin, Amy Cherot, Don Degner, Ellyn Dembowski, Abra Flores, Ruth 

Hemming, Kim Hoffmans, Anne King, Nicole Kreutz, Matt Lavere, Mike 

Montoya, Kristin Ockert, Mike Orman, Eleanor Tillquist, Patricia Wendt, and 

Rob van Nieuwburg. 

Directors Absent (9): Keith Barnard, Catherine Bojorquez, Boomer Butler, Daisy Castillo, Ken Collin, 

Nuris Dante, Stephen Kipp, Donna Santo, Harald Wulff. 

VCF Staff Present: 

CALL TO ORDER 

Juli Basingame, Jaimee Galvan, Julie Harvey, Gerry Pantoja, and Cyndie 

Whitley. 

Board Chair Rob van Nieuwburg called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. 

WELCOME 

Mr. van Nieuwburg welcomed board members. 

APPROVAL or ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA 

MOTION: Mr. Montoya moved to approve the consent agenda. Ms. Hemming seconded. MSC. 

The consent agenda contained approval for the following: 

► Approval of Minutes of the December 18, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting

► Artion Item A- Approval of Tran'iition from vr Promic;e to new 7ero Textbooks Cost Program

► Approval of amended 2017 Tax form qcm

► Approval of 2018 Tax Form 990

► Approval of the 2020-2026 Six-year Strategic Plan

1 I Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors -Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2020 

   9



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
,,.,1 <1rPam� our m1n1on 

GUEST SPEAKER 

Ms. King introduced Ventura College student, Ms. Jamie Cunanan-Block. Ms. Cunanan-Block shared 

with the board her personal journey of how she came to attend VC utilizing support from the 

Foundation. Her career goal is to transfer to UC Santa Barbara and ultimately become a teacher 

herself focusing on environmental topics. 

COMMITTEE, STAFF. AND ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

Board Chair: 

Mr. van Nieuwburg deferred his time to Mrs. King to report out on the details from the emergency 

Executive Committee meeting on Friday, March 20, 2020. 

EJC.etullve l>lrector: 

Mrs. King began her report by providing an overview of where Lhe Foundation stood in relation to the 

COVID-19 crisis. Because of the marketplace being closed indefinitely, the Foundation's cash flow had 

been severed and changes had to be made for the Foundation to keep operating as long as it could 

until the crisis passed. Mrs. King requested an emergency Executive Committee meeting where she 

!,hured her plun: u reduction In staff, steps to diversify revenue streams, a fundraising campaign for 

unrestricted dollars, and applying for a loan. Working closely with Mrs. Blasingame, they were able to 

put together cash flow projection with the changes Mrs. King has purposed, and learned that at the 

end of June the Foundation would have $200,000 cash on hand and that would be depleted by the 

end of August. Mrs. King thanked the Executive Committee for passing her plan which included the 

following: campaign for unrestricted funds, a Board of Directors leadership fund, increase in each 

board members minimum gift from $1,000 to $2,000 starting this fiscal year (expected college 

appointed board members), a 10% fee on all 11ew gifls, a11d tails lo em.lowrrienl <..1011ors wilh an 

appeal to convert their fund to support operations. 

Mrs. King discussed the importance of developing a new business model by diversifying the 

Foundation's revenue stream to continue serving the students and programs at VC. While that plan is 

being developed and finali,�d, tlw Fou11dation will work Lo sewre and wnflrrrt a11y oul�laru.Jlng 

sponsorship pledges for the schohuship events and seek a line of credit until June 2021. 

Mrs. King then shared the detalls of the closed session that proceeded Friday's emergency l::xecut,ve 

Committee meeting. In addition to having laid off three staff members, Mrs. King shared there will be 

additional staff members being furloughed and reduction in hours for remaining staff. 

At thi<; time, several hoarct members askect a variety of quec;tionc;: Mr Reilin asked if other community 

college foundations enduring the same hardship? Mrs. King sharnct that the majority of the 

foundations In California were not enduring the same hardship as most of their staff have some or all 

of their staff are employees of the college unlike our 1-oundation which is financially independent ot 

2 I Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors -Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2020

10



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
vour <!r!'am� our m1<< 

our college. Mr. Degner asked what was going to happen to the new zero cost textbook program? 

Mrs. King confirmed that program would be suspend until operations were back to normal. Mr. 

Montoya asked if the Foundation had looked into the stimulus package being created by the 

government and if that could help? Mrs. King that she has been researching this through various non­

profit associations and other local and national sources. Also, she shared her daughter works for a 

lobbying firm in DC and has been providing key information to her on the development of the 

stimulus package. Mrs. King will continue to monitor the bill for any assistance provided to small 

business. Mr. Beilin asked when the new board contribution minimum would go into effect? Mrs. 

King shared that it's effective as of Friday night's vote but that the motion was vague on whether the 

new minimum applied to the current year or was to start to in the upcoming year on July 1. 

Mrc; King shared she would he making her additional $1,000 to the President Cirde immediately as 

well d� d ��3,000 toward� the new c.:ampalgn for unrestricted funds. She Informed the board she will 

make personal calls to everyone to invite the board to contribute. 

College President: 

Dr. Hoffmans reported that Ventura College has shifted completely to a virtual model during this 

c.risis. All c.lasse� Jrl! I.wing taught online, all services are being done remotely, and the school wlll be 

providing 500 Chromebooks to those with financial need to complete the rest of the semester on­

line. Mrs. Flores shared with the board firsthand experience of what it's been like to shift to an on line 

model, especially in a class that is very hands on. Mrs. Wendt also provide some insight for those 

students with learning disabilities and the challenges to equip them with the tools so they can finish 

out the semester. 

Scholarship and Grants Comrnillee: 

Ms. Hemming reported to the board that scholarships will be awarded to students this year as well as 

that all Promise students have been served. 

Program Sustainability Committee: 

Mrs. Deml.,owksi deferred her wrru11enlo; lo Mr. Pantoja, whu reported oul where the Fou11dallun's 

fundraising stood at the end of the 2nd quarter and provided an overview of the minutes from the last 

two meetings where the FY21 goals were discussed. However, those goals would be reevaluated due 

lo the COVID-19 crisis and state of the Foundation. 

Marketplace Committee: 

Mr. van Nieuwburg reported out the foundation would be providing refunds to vendors who had 

paid up till the end of the month and anything for the month of April. Additionally, the Foundation 

would be paying MarkPtplacP workers as of the last weekend of this month 

Finance Committee: 

3 I Ventura College Foundation Boord of Directors -Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2020 

11



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
your dreamL our mi��ion. 

Mrs. Kreutz provided an overview of the current financial reports for the Foundation. No questions 

were submitted. 

Budget Committee: 

Mrs. Kreutz reported that the Foundation would have to redo its budget to incorporate new changes 

passed by the board and budget cuts necessary due to COVID-19. 

Investment Committee: 

Mrs. King shared with the board the report provide by Payden & Rygel of how the Foundation 

investment pools were performing. She reminded them these figures were pre-crisis. Additionally, 

she reported that the board approved the transition from Payden & Rygel to Miracle Mile Group. 

Strategic Planning Committee: 

Mrs. Ockert thanked the board for their hard work in developing the new strategic plan for the 

Foundation. With the plan approved, the Foundation will move forward on producing materials that 

can be distributed to the public and used in fundraising efforts. She affirmed that the plan would 

provide guidance through the crisis. 

Nominating Committee: 

Mr. La Vere reminded the board about the five-year succession plan that is being developed and if 

anyone is interested in serving to reach out to him to discuss next steps. 

Personal Committee: 

No report 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion: Mrs. Dembowski moved to adjourn. Ms. Hemming seconded. MSC 

There being no further business, the meeting was duly adjourned at 6:29 prn. 

Mike Montoya Date 

Secretary, Board of Directors 

Minutes taken and recorded by Gerry Pantoja. 

4 I Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors -Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2020 
12

June 30, 2020



VFNTllRA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, May 11, 2020, 9:30 - 10:00 a.m.

Minutes 

Members Present: Rob van Nieuwburg, Nicole Kreutz, Mike Montoya, Anne Paul King, Ken Collin, 

Ellyn Dembowski, Matt Lavere, Kristin Ockert 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. van Nieuwburg called the meeting to order at 9:36 a.m. 

Small Business Association/CARES Act Payroll Protection Loan 

Ms. King reviewed the kt>y il�flf>Cl� of the loan offered through our hank, Citizens Ruslness Rank. This 

loan Is the equivalent of 10 weeks of our gross payroll. 

1. Loan Amount: $144,000

2. lnle1 esl Rale: 1.0%

3. Loan Origination Date: May 6, 2020

4. Terms of use: Must be used on gross payroll, mortgage payments, utilities and rent

ONLY 

5. Repayment Terms: 2 years with 6-month payment deferral

6. Forgiveness Calculation: We calculate that $99,000 of our loan will be forgiven. To

trigger the forgiveness aspects of the loan, within 8 weeks from the loan origination

date, all furloughed or to-be furloughed employees will be reinstated, part-time

employees on unpaid leave will be reinstated, and no statt hours will be reduced.

The loan application requires a prescribed board resolution which 1s attached to these minutes. 

MOTION: Approval of corporate resolution as presented and required to accept the loan. Ms. 

Dembowski made the motion, Ms. Ockert seconded. Vote: 7 yes, 0 no, Ms. Kreutz abstained 

as she declared a conflict of interest as an employee of Citizens Business Bank. MSC 

Meeting adjourned at 9:53 am. 

13



Ventura College Foundation 

Scholarship and Grants Committee 

Tuesday, April 7th
, 2020, S:lSpm-6:lSpm 

Zoom Online Meeting 

Committee Members Present: Bob Beilin, Amy Cherot, Ruth Hemming -VCF Vice Chair, 

Anne King, Kristin Ockert, Mike Orman, Eleanor Tillquist, Rob 
van Nieuwburg -VCF Chair, Patty Wendt 

Staff: Jaimee Galvan 

MINUTES 

Dr. Hemming called the meeting to order at 5:19pm. 

Minutes from the last meeting ('l/'lV'lO"lO) were 11pproved nt the mo�t rerent board mf'etinr, 
held on Wednesday, March 25th . 

Program Updates 
Mrs. Galvan informed the committee that the awarding of 20/21 scholarships is almost 
r.omplPtP and it i� likPly that we will be awarding over $658,000 this year. 

Ms. King shared the impact of the Weekend Marketplace closure on current VC Foundation 
programs. Fortunately, all scholarships will be awarded as planned prior to the COVID-19 
pandemic. The Zero Textbook Cost (ZTC) initiative, however, will need to be postponed for a 
year and the Textbook Lending Library will not be receiving financial support this fall semester 
but we hope to funnel support to this program again in the spring. Ms. King reassured the 
Committee that the College is still able to cover the VC Promise fees that the roundation had 
tradlllormlly Loken tare <if even though we umnot fund the ITC pror,r�rn llii� year. 

Review of Submitted Appeals to Scholarship Deferral Maximum 
The Committee reviewed the appeals submitted by five students who wish to defer their 
scholarships to the 20/21 academic year even though they have exceeded the two-year deferral 
maximum. 

Motion -Rob van Nieuwburg moved to approvP thP appPal� �ubmittPd and it wa� 
seconded by Bob Bellin. MSC. 

�£�<>1arship Awarding Policies & Procedures Docum1111_t:
The Committee shared comments, questions, and feedback regarding the draft policies and 
procedures document regarding scholarship awarding. Mrs. Galvan is to make updates per their 
suggeslions, meet with Dr. Hemming to review, and bring to the next meeting. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:00 p.m. 

Minutes recorded by Jaimee Galvan 

14



Ventura College Foundation 

Scholarship and Grants Committee 

Tuesday, June 2nd, 2020, S:1Spm-6:1Spm 

Zoom Online Meeting 

Committee Members Present: Bob Beilin, Amy Cherot, Ruth Hemming- VCF Vice Chair, 

Anne King, Kristin Ockert, Mike Orman, Eleanor Tillquist, Rob 

van Nieuwburg- VCF Chair 

Staff: Jaimee Galvan 

MINUTES 

[)r Hemming called the meeting to order at 5:19pm. 

Motion Rob van Nieuwburg moved to approve the minutes from the Scholarship & 

Grants Committee meeting held on April 7, 2020 and seconded by Kristin Ockert. MSC. 

Program Updates: 

Mrs. Galvan informed the committee that 427 scholarships were awarded for 20/21 which 
amounted to over $683,000 in support-the greatest annual scholarship awarding in our 

history as an organization. 

Galvan also shared that the Foundation is working with the College to determine the structure 
for the Fall 2020 Textbook Lending Library to ensure the service is made available to students 

while maintaining the hoalth and safoty of our staff, students, and campus community. 

The Committee was informed of the success of last week's Scholarship Reader Appreciation 

Luncheon which was the first virtual event of Its kind that the Foundation has ever hosted. 

The Committee was asked to retroactively affirm the early disbursement of scholarship funds 

made to Vant>s,a Apodaca to cover the costs involved in oulaining a litense Lo r.ir atlite as a 

Registered Nurse. 

Motion - Michael Orman moved to affirm this disbursement and it was seconded by 
Rob van Nieuwburg. MSC. 

The Committee was also asked to approve of scholarship disbursements for students who 

enroll in a summer semester following the academic year in which their scholarship was 

awarded and/or deferred to. The Committee approved this c:onr.ept for inclusion in the VC 
Foundation Policies & Procedures for Awarding Scholarships document that will be formally 

approved at this month's board meeting. 

15



20/21 Scholarship Fundraising Update: 

Ms. King shared the Foundation's plans for treatment of current scholarship endowments, 

rE'nE'wE'd annual scholarships, and all new scholarships (endowed and annual) moving forward. 

The new policies will both increase support to students in this coming year as well as ensure the 

operations of the Foundation are sustained. 

Scholarship Awarding Policies & Procedures Document: 

The Committee was pleased with updates made to this document. Mrs. Galvan is to draft new 

language per the earlier motion to approve trailer summer scholarship disbursements, circulate 

for feedback, and include in the P&P document. 

Motion - Rob van Nieuwburg moved to approve sending this document to the full 

board (once addition of approved trailer summer disbursement policy language is 

added) for final approval and it was seconded by Eleanor Tillquist. MSC. 

20/21 Meeting �-�hed.ule: 

The Committee has agreed to continue meeting on the first Tuesday of every other month in FY 

20/ 21 starting m September. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:11 p.m. 

Minutes recorded by Jaimee Galvan 

16



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
vour dreams. our mtss o 

Policies & Procedures for Awarding Scholarships 

Scope and Intent of the Policy 

The Ventura College Foundation ("VC Foundation") provides scholarship grantc; to tht:> c;tudt:>nts 

of Ventura College to enable the recipients to complete an undergraduate education in the field 

of their choice at the college of their choice. 

The VC Foundation has established the following procedures pursuant to which scholarship 

grants will be received, processed, and awarded. The following procedures shall be interpreted 

so as to ensure the VC Foundation staff's compliance with all applicable requirements of the 

Internal RAvAnuA Codt:> (IRC), Including <iertion 4gfi6, arrnrnJ.l,rnying I rci.lsury Hcguli.lt1ons and 

guidance from the Internal Revenue Service, and these procedures may be amended from timt:> 

to time. 

1. Scholarship Donor Policies

For purposes of this document, a donor will be defined as an individual or organization, 

including a corporation, partnership or trust, which makes a contribution to a fund where such 

fund is separately identified by reference to contributions of the donor. 

By scholarship provider standards, the VC Foundation is considered a 501(c)(3) public charity. 

Donor participation in the scholarship process must be carefully structured for public charities. 

If participation becomes too great, the donor's scholarship fund can meet the legal definition of 

cl Donor Advised 1-und ("OAF") unless it satisfies stringent requirements to be a Qualifying 

Sd1olar�hip Fund. 

As a result of the Pension Protection Act of 2006, Donor Advised Funds are prohibited from 

awarding scholarships. Therefore, scholarship funds with donor participation must be 

structured to avoid being characterized as Donor Advised F-unds in order to award scholarships. 

DAF Definition: 

1. Fund Is owned or controlled by a sponsoring organization (ex: public charities, war

veter.:rn arid hatemal organizations)

2. rund is separately identified by reference lo writ1iLulio11s of <.1011or(s) (ex: furu.J l,ears

name of donor/advisor and/or fund tracks contributions of specific donor(s))

3. Donor/advisor has or expects advisory privileges as to distributions or investments

because of donor statue; (t:>x· donor makes non-binding recommendations, which

sponsor must consider) Advisory privileges do not include gift restrictions made at the

front end of the gift.

Page 1 of8 6/3/2020 17



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
your dreams. our mission. 

If all of the above are true, the fund is a OAF. 

lA. Lawful Donor Involvement 

The VC Foundation values and encourages the interest and involvement of donors to funds 

established to make Scholarship Grants. Such involvement may take place at the front end of 

the gift and includes naming the scholarship, developing criteria for eligible candidates, serving 

on the scholarship review committee and recommending others to serve on the selection 

committee, so long as the recommendation is based on objective criteria related to expertise. 

1B. Developing Scholarship Criteria 

I he criteria to be used In selectlng grant recipients from a fund established at the VC 

roundaliori rnusl be based 011 <.rllf>rla that arf> approprlc1tf' lo ctl.wmpllshlng the underlying 

purpose of the scholarship as described in the agreement creating such Fund. VC Foundation 

staff will work with donors to establish Funds that fulfill the donor's charitable goals and specify 

clear selection criteria. 

For Scholarship Grants, such criteria may include, but are not limited to, the following: prior 

academic performance, recommendations from instructors of such applicant and any others 

who have knowledge of the applicant's capabilities, additional biographical information 

regarding an applicant's career, academic and other relevant experiences, financial need and 

conclusions which the grant selection committee may draw as to the applicant's motivation, 

c:haractflr, ability, or potential ( ntena may also include the applicant's place of residence, past 

or future attendance at a particular school, past or proposed course of study or evidence of his 

or her drli�li<.:, sdenlifk or other sper.ial talt>nt. 

Criteria must be in compliance with the Equal Protection Clause, Title Vt of the Civil Rights Act, 

and Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 that Colleges and Universities must abide by 

and may not Include race, ethnicity, national origin, citizenship status, sexual orientation, 

gondar or gander identity, age, marital/parental status, and more. 

2. Scholarship Application and Awardee Selection Policies

2A. Minimum Criteria for VC Students to Apply for Scholarships 

Applicants for Scholarship Grants must (1) be enrolled at Ventura College (full time or part 

time) at the time of application submission and (2) have previously passed or are on track to 

pass a minimum of 12 units by the close of the fall semester at Ventura College. 

Page 2 of8 18



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
vour dreams. our m,��'" 

Students who have in the past been awarded a scholarship (or scholarships) for transfer are 

ineligible to apply for VC Foundation scholarships again as long as that transfer scholarship has 

not yet been claimed and is still attached to the student's record as claimable. If they choose to 

forfeit their transfer scholarship and are enrolled at Ventura College during the application 

cycle, they then may apply again for scholarships. 

Students who have in the past been awarded a Phoenix scholarship (or scholarships) (excluding 

Veteran scholarships) are ineligible to receive a Phoenix scholarship again. This policy 

maximizes the opportunity for re-entry students to have access to this limited funding. These 

past Phoenix recipients, however, are eligible to apply again and be considered for any non­

Phoenix scholarships they are eligible for. 

Slude11L� mc1y receive a maximum of $3,600 In Osher scholarship funds. 

2B. Outreach and Marketing of Scholarships 

In connection with Scholarship Grants, the VC Foundation staff and designated members shall 

advertise the availability of the VC Foundation's Scholarship Grants as widely as possible 

including but not limited to oulrec1c;h c1t c;c1rnpus events, visits to classrooms, social media, email 

broadcasts, scholarship application workshops, student and campus ambassadors, and more. 

Said outreach is to take place before and during the application process. 

The group from which grant recipients are selec.Led rnu�l l,e �uffide11Lly l,ruc1d �u Lhc1L giving 

grants to one or more members of the group fulfills a charitable purpose (one designed to 

htmefit, ameliorate, or uplift 1na11ki11d lflE::!llldlly, mor r:1lly, or phy\tire1lly). 

2C. Application Process 

Applicants for Scholarship Grants shall be required to submit such application forms and 

<;upporting materials as the VC Foundation may deem appropriate on a schedule to be 

determined by the staff. I he application is generally open from early October to mid-January. 

Applicants must submit a complete online application to the VC Foundation before the deadline 

to 1.Je considered. A wm1,Jlele dppllc;allun Includes responses to all questions required as part of 

the application, two short essllys, two letters of recommendation (one MUST be from VC 

staff/faculty), proof of VC e11rollrrie11l iri LIie <..urre11l a<..adernlc year, d1·1d d c;opy of unoffltlal 

transcripts. 

Applicants an� generally informed of their scholarships in early March. 

Page 3 of8 6/3/2020
 19



VENTURA COLL[G[ FOUNDATION 
,.,1.1, dreams. our m1ss1on.

20. Scoring of Scholarship Applications

Candidate Pool 

The group from which grant recipients are selected must be sufficiently broad so that 

giving grants to one or more members of the group fulfills a charitable purpose (one 

designed to benefit, ameliorate, or uplift mankind mentally, morally, or physically). 

Grantees are to be selected on an objective and nondiscriminatory basis. 

Scholarship Review Committee 

I he VC 1-oundation shall appoint all mf'mbers of any selection committee charged with 

the evaluation of candidates for Scl1oldrsl11µ C:irc:111ls. Norninalions strnll be made by 

board members, current volunteers, VC alumni, and/or staff of the VC Foundation. 

No combination of Donor-advisors, persons recommended or designated by Donor­

advisors (or persons related to any of these persons) to a Fund that makes Scholarship 

Grants may, directly or indirectly, control any selection committee established in 

connection with such Fund. For example, Donor-advisors, persons recommended or 

designated by Donor-advisors and persons related to any of these persons shall not 

constitute a majority of any such selection committee (persons may include individuals, 

partnerships, corporations or trusts). Where a Donor-advisor recommends a person for 

appointment to a selection committee based on objective criteria related to the 

expertise of such person, such person will not be deemed to be appointed or designated 

by the Donor advisor. 

Donor-advisors and related persons may provide advice with respect to the selection of 

grant or award recipients solely as members of a selection committee. 

Every member of any selection committee charged with the evaluation of candidates for 

Scholarship Grants shall adhere lo lhe releva11l policies, including these Procedures for 

Awarding Scholarships, of the VC Foundation as they may be adopted and amended 

from lirm:! lo time, lndudlng without !Imitation a conflict of Interest and confidentiality 

policy. Every member of any selection committee charged with the evaluation of 

candidates for Scholarship Grants shall be obligaled to disclose any personal knowledge 

of and relationship with any potential grantee under consideration and to refrain from 

participation In the award process in a circumstance where he or she would derive, 

directly or indirectly, a private benefit if any potential grantee or grantees are selected 

over others. No grant covered by this policy may be awarded to any member of the VC 

Foundation Board of Directors, any substantial contributor to the VC Foundation, any 

Page 4of8 6/3/2020
 22



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
'OUr dreams. our rn1ss1on. 

employee of the VC Foundation, or any other disqualified person as defined in the IRC § 

4946(a) with respect to the VC Foundation, or, with respect to grants from a particular 

Fund, any Donor-advisor or substantial contributor to such Fund or any member of a 

selection committee to such Fund, or for a purpose that is inconsistent with the 

purposes described in IRC § 170(c)(2)(B). 

Each selection committee established under this policy shall forward its 

recommendations to the VC Foundation staff in such form and on such schedule as the 

staff shall establish. The committee members who take part in the paramedic 

scholarship application review generally have from mid-November to early December to 

complete their reviews. Committee members who take part in the general scholarship 

appllcatlon review generally have from late January to late February to complete their 

reviews. 

The VC Foundation Board may authorize VC Foundation staff to approve any or all of the 

grants made under this policy. 

3. Scholarship Disbursement Policies

Though students are informed of their scholarship awards in the spring, they are reminded that 

the funding is disbursed in the subsequent academic year. 

Awardees can receive their first scholarship disburc;ement after July pt_ 

Generally, VC r oundation scholarships will be disbursed across a period of two semesters or 

quartc>rc; indudlne thP summer semester following the fall/winter/spring semesters/quarters in 

which their scholarship was awarded or deferred to. Exceptions to this rule exist for some 

scholarships. Students wlll be Informed of their specific scholarship's disbursement schedule at 

the time of their not1ficat1on of scholarship awards. 

Recipients of Scholarship Grants must meet the terms of their scholarship(s) to receive their 

funds. These cc1n vary across individual funds but all scholarships require the recipient to be 

enrolled and demonstratE> proof of said enrollment at an educational institution that provides 

a11 e<.Jw..al1011al µrug, dHI dU,eµldule for full ue<.Jll toward a degree, or offers a training program 

to preparE> c;tudents for gainful employment in a recognized orrupation and is authorized under 

federal or state law to provide such a program and is accredited by a nationally recognized 

accreditation agency. All Scholarc;hip Grants must be used for tuition and related expenses (as 

further described in the "[ligiblP. rxpP.n-;�-;" ,-;Pr.tion that follows) at an Pdur.ational institution 

described in IRC § 170(b)(l)(A)(ii), i.e., such institution must normally maintain a regular faculty 

and curriculum and must normally have a regularly organized body of students in attendance at 

Page 5 of8 6/3/20 21



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
your dreams. our mission. 

the place where the educational activities are carried on. Accommodations will be extended to 

institutions that operate on line curriculum. The VC Foundation reserves the right to impose 

additional, minor reasonable restrictions and/or requirements upon the awarding of 

Scholarship Grants and the administration of such grants. Any substantial or material changes 

will be made only with approval of the VC Foundation Board of Directors. 

Some scholarships also require: 

• Attendance at a particular educational institution or in a recognized program.

• Full-time enrollment (Exceptions made for students with documented disabilities)

• Maintenance or progress towards a certain Grade Point Average (GPA)

• Scholarships limited to athletes can only be awarded to transfer students and p<tid out

upon the awardee's submission of proof of enrollment at said transfer institution.

Students will be informed of their specific scholarship's requirements at the time of their 

notification of scholarship awards. 

3A. Payments of Transfer Student Scholarships 

Unless otherwise provided in the fund agreement establishing a Scholarship Grant, each 

Scholarship Grant for students transferring out of the Ventura County Community College 

District shall be paid by the VC Foundation directly to the educational institution for the use of 

the scholarship recipient. The recipient must provide documentation that proves enrollment at 

said educational institution to the VC Foundation staff in order for the grant funds to be 

disbursed. Each educational institution must be described in IRC � 170(b){l)(A)(ii) and must use 

the grant funds to defray the scholarship recipient's expenses or to pay the funds (or a portion 

thereof) to the rec.ipienl only if the ret:1p1enl is enrolled at such educational institution and his 

or her standing at such educational institution is consistent with the purposes and conditions of 

thE> grant. 

38. Payments of Continuing Ventura Collage Student Scholarships

Unless otherwise provided in the fund agreement establishing a Scholarship Grant, each 

Scholarship Grant for students continuing at Ventura College will be paid by the VC Foundation 

directly to the scholarship recipient. The recipient must provide documentation that prove� 

enrollment at Ventura College to the VC Foundation staff in order for the grant funds to be 

disbursed. 

3C. Eligible Expenses 

Page6of8 6/3/2020 

 
22



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
your dreams. our m1ss1c, 

Unless otherwise provided in the fund agreement establishing a Scholarship Grant, a condition 

of each Scholarship Grant is that it will be used only for qualified tuition and related expenses 

within the meaning of IRC § 117(b){2), and for room and board. Accordingly, a Scholarship 

Grant can be used only for: (1) tuition and fees required for the enrollment or attendance of 

the student at a qualifying institution; (2) fees, books, supplies, and equipment required for 

courses of instruction at such an educational institution; and (3) room and board. The Ventura 

College Foundation's scholarship policies also allow scholarship funds to be utilized for 

transportation, childcare, food, and other living expenses. An additional condition is that no 

part of the Scholarship Grant shall be used as payment for teaching, research, or other services 

by the scholarship recipient required as a condition for rP.cP.iving thE" �r.holar�hip. 

3D. Renewable Scholarships 

Grants will ordinarily be awarded for a one year period, but may be for a !-iltor ler or longer 

period. A Scholarship Grant may be renewable for a period appropriate to the purposes of the 

Fund under which the award is established. Otherwise, the VC Foundation may consider 

renewing a grant on a case-by-case basis accordrng to the purposes of the grant. 

3E. Deferrals 

If the grantee is unable to enroll in school in the period of which the scholarship was designated 

to be used, the grantee may request to defer their scholarship funds to the next fiscal/academic 

year. The request must consist of the grantee's full name, student ID number, reason why they 

Wl!lr@ unal.,I@ lo @moll Ir, sd,ool, wltlc.J1 semester to defer Llteir s<..ltulJr�ltlp funds lo, wltld, 

institution they plan to bE'! E'!nrollf'd al, ,111<1 ,11,y otlH•r infor m,Hion for rl.Hifin,lion plHJ.1me<:.. This 

request must be submitted in writing either by email or a signed letter. The request must be 

received in early March of any fiscal year to be deferred into the next fiscal year. 

Grantees are permitted to defer their scholarships for a maximum pE>riod of two r.onc;E>r.utivE> 

academic years. If the grantees have had extremely unusual circumstances that have kept them 

from Pnrolling in r.ourc;ec;, they may go through an appeals prorec;c; to defer their scholarship a 

third time. The process consists of a form in which the student may explain their special 

circumstances, detail their steps to enroll in the coming academic year and at which institution, 

and specify the measures In place to ensure their success in enrolling. These forms must be 

re<..eived in ear ly Marth of dllY fiscal year and c:1re reviewed toward the end of each fiscal year 

by the VC Founclalion Boar<..I of Dire<..Lors S<..l,olarsltiµ arttl Gr ,mls Cummill��-

3r. Student lncompliance with Scholarship Grant Tenns 

Page 7 of8 6/3/2020
 23



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
your dreams. our mission. 

If the VC Foundation staff learns that all or any part of a grant is not being used in furtherance 

of the purposes of the grant, the staff shall take all reasonable and appropriate steps to recover 

the grant funds and/or ensure restoration of the diverted funds to the purposes of the grant. If 

such a diversion occurs and the grantee has not previously diverted grant funds to any use not 

in furtherance of the purposes of the grant, the staff shall withhold any further payments to the 

grantee until it has received the grantee's ilssurilnce thilt future diversions shilll not occur ilnd 

shall require the grantee to take extraordinary precautions to prevent future diversions from 

occurring. 

Where a grantee has previously diverted funds received from the VC Foundation and the VC 

Foundiltion stilff determines that any part of a grant has again been used for improper 

purposes, the staff shall take .ill reasonable and appropriate steps to recover the grant funds 

and/or ensure restoration of the diverted funds to the purposes of the grant. In such case, the 

VC Foundalion slaff shall willtholtl fur Lher pctyme11ls u11lil: (1) the diverted funds are In fac.1 

recovered or restored; (2) the staff have received the grantee's assurances that future 

diversions will not occur; and (3) the staff require the grantee to take extraordinary precautions 

to prevent future diversions from occurring. 

The phrase "all reasonable and appropriate steps," as used above, shall include legal action 

where appropriate, but need not include legal action if such action would in all probability not 

result in the satisfaction of execution on a judgment. 

4. Recordkeegin_g

!'he VC Foundation stiltf shilll rctilin the following records in connection with all Scholarship 

Grantc;: all Information obtained hy the Foundation to evaluate the qualifications of potential 

grantees, the identification of grantees (including any assoc1at1on of any grantee to VC 

Foundation staff or to a director or officer of the Vt. Foundation), the purpose and amount of 

each grant, and any additional information the VC Foundation staff obtain in complying with its 

grants administration procedures. Information pertaining to unsuccessful appliczmts for awards 

shall be kept along with Information on successful applicants. 

Records pertaining to any scholarship grant made pursuant to this polir.y c;hall hE> kept for no 

less Lha11 four yectrs (six preferred) after the close of the calendar year In which the scholarship 

work was completed. 

Page 8 of8 6/3/2020 24



VCF Staff Present: 

CALL TO ORDER 

VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
your OrPam� our m,��10 

Ventura College Foundation I Board of Directors 

PROGRAM SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, April 22, 5:15 p.m. 

71 Day Road Center Conference Room, Ventura College 

MINUTES 

Fllyn Dembowski; Rob Reilin; Abra Flores; Nuris Dante; Anne King; Mike

Montoya; Rob van Nieuwburg; Harald Wulff 

(jerry Pantoja, Julie Harvey 

Ellyn Dembowski called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. 

FOUNDATION UPDATE 

As a follow up the Emergency Executive Committee Meeting on March 20, 2020, Mrs. King shared 

with the committee the current state of the Foundation as it adjusted and adopted the new motions 

that were passed in response to the COVID 19 pandemic to sustain operations. Details of a new 

fundralslng plan were sharod with tho group that forused on converting current restricted 

endowments to unreslritled, operali11g endowrrie11ls. Addilio11al h1forrnal1011 was shared will, llie 

committee about the newly passed 10% sustainability gift, and the messaging that will be shared with 

do11or!> c1boul this new policy. Mrs. King also reviewed with the committee the current cash flow 

projections for the first quarter of FY21 as well as the purposed FY21 budget highlighting the need to 

fundraise unrestricted funds to prevent the Foundation from folding. 

FUNDRAISING REPORT 

Mr. Pantoja reviewed with the committee the latest fundralslng report and the progress made, and 

lhe slr dlE:!gy 111ovi11g f orwc1rd to meet each of the programming goals during the COVID pandemic. 

Reiterating comments made by Mrs. King earlier, Mr. Pantoja shared that all fundraising efforts going 

forward would focus on unrestricted funds to supplement the cash flow lost from the closure of the 

Market Place. 

Ms. Harvey then present the group the details to the Stronger roundation, StrongPr FuturP campaign 
to raise unrestricted funds. She shared that the goal of the campaign would be $50,000. To meet this 

goal, the campaign would take part in a global day of giving which is set for Tuesday May 5, 2020. Ms. 

1 I Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors -Program Sustainability Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2020

25
 



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
your dreams. our mission. 

Harvey reviewed with the group a media toolkit handout that provided instructions and encouraged 

the full board to promote the day of giving on their individual social media accounts. It was asked of 

the Program Sustainability Committee to share and like posts on Facebook to help drive attention to 

the Foundation's efforts to raise unrestricted funds. 

Mr. Pantoja ask the committee if they could me once again before the end of the fiscal year to review 

the progress of the campaign and discuss any next steps in order to meet the campaign goal anti c1ny 

new business to help the Foundation's operations efforts. The committee agreed to this request and 

Mr. Pantoja will coordinate with Mrs. Dembowski to find a date in June. 

AQJQIJRNMENT 

There being no further business, Lile meeli11g was duly atlJoume<.l al 6.0� µ.rn. Mr. l'drtloja will nollly 

the committee of the next sr.hPdulc>ci mePting which will be in lune 

MINUTES TAKEN AND RECORDED BY GERRY PANTOJA. 

2 I Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors -Program Sustainability Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2020 

26



1 | Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors –Program Sustainability Meeting Minutes of June 8, 2020

Ventura College Foundation | Board of Directors 

PROGRAM SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

Monday, June 8, 5:15 p.m. 
Zoom Conference Call 

MINUTES 

Directors Present: Ellyn Dembowski; Abra Flores; Nuris Dante; Anne King; Rob van Nieuwburg; 
Harald Wulff 

VCF Staff Present: Gerry Pantoja, Jaimee Galvan 

CALL TO ORDER 
Ellyn Dembowski called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. 

FOUNDATION/ STRONGER FOUNDATION CAMPAIGN UPDATE 
Mrs. Dembowski opened the meeting by sharing with the committee that the Foundation has 
reached its $50,000 goal for the Stronger Foundation, Stronger Future campaign providing 
unrestricted dollars to support operations. Mrs. Dembowski also shared $35,750 of that total was 
contributed by the board. Mrs. King and Mr. Pantoja both expressed their gratitude to the board for 
making this possible through their leadership and financial support. Mr. Pantoja then shared that 
President Hoffmans’ Facebook Fundraiser raised approximately $1,500 in addition to what the board 
raised.  

Mr. Pantoja then reviewed the list of individual donors to the campaign and assigned committee 
members ten names each to call and thank them for their gifts to the Foundation. Mr. Pantoja will 
provide each committee member additional details before making their calls.  

Mr. Pantoja provided an overview of the memo that was produce explaining the new gift minimums 
that Foundation has set for scholarships, endowments, and donors who want to award a scholarship 
and endowment in the same year as a result of the 10% sustainability gift. Additionally, he also 
discussed the calculation to be used to determine the amount a gift needs to be so that a donor’s 
expected full amount is kept intact and covers the 10% sustainability gift as well.  

27



2 | Ventura College Foundation Board of Directors –Program Sustainability Meeting Minutes of June 8, 2020

FY21 FUNDRAISING STRATEGY 
Mr. Pantoja proceeded to review the fundraising goals for FY21. Referencing the condensed 
narrative, he showed the board how each strategy is assigned to a specific goal and how the narrative 
outlines what must be done to achieve it. Mr. Pantoja then discussed the importance of each board 
member to take on one of the three assignments described in the introduction of the budget 
narrative. Mrs. Dembowski shared that she will be meeting with each board member to discuss this 
further to ensure they understand what is being asked of them and get their buy in.  

Mr. Pantoja also shared the committee will now meet every other month to so the group can 
adequately review the Foundation’s strategies and fundraising progress as it recovers from the COVID 
shutdown and prevents a complete closure of the Foundation in the future. Additionally, this increase 
in meetings will allow more opportunities for the committee to discuss and review prospect lists, 
identify new fundraising opportunities, and new ways to engage donors and prospects. During this 
portion of the discussion, Mrs. Flores shared a video created by Brad Wilson as an example of what 
the Foundation can to stay in touch with our constituents. 

Finally, Mr. Pantoja reviewed the list of endowment prospects that Mrs. King and he will be meeting 
with in hopes of securing additional unrestricted funds.   

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the meeting was duly adjourned at 6:25 p.m. Mr. Pantoja will notify 
the committee of the next scheduled meeting which will be in August.   

MINUTES TAKEN AND RECORDED BY GERRY PANTOJA. 

28



memo 
To: Ventura College Foundation Staff and Board of Directors 

From: Gerry Pantoja 

CC: Program Sustainability Committee 

Date: 5/22/2020 

Re: New gift minimums and calculation 

After adopting the new 10% sustainability gift policy passed by the Board of Directors, our new gift 
minimums are as follows: 

• To award a $1,000 annual scholarship, a $1,200 gift must be made
• To establish a $20,000 endowment, a $22,300 gift must be made
• To establish an endowment and a scholarship in the next cycle ($21,000), a $23,400 must be

made

At these new minimums, we will be able to ensure the donor’s gift intentions are kept intact by 
requesting the appropriate amount to cover the 10% sustainability gift and principal gift. Additionally, at 
these minimums there will be a small amount of excess funding that will be designated to the purpose of 
the gift.  

For any other gift that is being made and the donor wants to keep intact the amount they envision, the 
calculation to determine how much the gift should be, please use the following: 

Gift Amount divide by 0.9 = Total gift amount 

Ex) Donor wants to make a $1,500 gift to textbooks. To ensure gift principal is kept intact while still 
covering 10% sustainability gift, a $1,667 must be made. 

$1,500/.9 = $1,667 

29



� 

VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

Program Sustainability Committee (PSC} 

Development Activity Report as of March 2, 2020 

G�OOD NEWS· 

• Weekend Marketplace officially reopened the weekend of May 29th

• Stronger Future, Stronger Foundation Campaign
o $50,000 goal met - $50,327.90 in cash gifts and pledges and

counting

c> $35,750 in total contributions from VCF Board of Directors

o 100% support from VCF Staff

• Scholarship Reader Virtual Luncheon
o First virtual event hosted by VCF
o During calls to scholarship readers about the event, Jaimee Galvan

was presented an opportunity to request funds from the Ventura
County Credit Union to support Stronger Future Campaign. VCF
requested $5,000 and is awaiting decision from VCCU

• Amy Cherot ronverteci her Promise endowment to an operating
endowment to support the 1-oundation

• The Julius Gius Foundation converted their two scholnrship endowments to
operating endowments to support the Foundation

30



FY 2019/2020 OVERVIEW 

Q1-Q3 711/2019 - 3131/2020 

Fund for VG (Unrestricted) 
President's Circle (Unrestricted) 
Event Sponsorship (Unrestricted) 
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED 

VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION GIFT REPORT 
RECONCILED 

Total 
Gifts/Pledges # # Total New FY20 

Raised* Donorst Giftst Dollars Raised* 
15,984 225 

$60,066 
$20,300 $20,300 
$96,350 

New FY20 
Dollars 

60,870 10,500 

$229,982 $273,248 

FY 2019/20 

%New FY20 
Dollars Raised 
Toward Goal 

73% 
182% 

Promise Grant $27,004 74 $27,004 $56,000 
W&H Veteran Promise $0 ---0 - --•"•---'-----'---=$=0+----'-----'-=$0=+-----..,,.,,.,-1 
Textbook Lending $21,912 62 1------$=2=1,..,,9=-1;..,,2+---,...,1=5,--=7=2=0 +----....,,.,,� 

..,.V_,..e..,.te_r,_an-=Te,...x""'tb.,..o-o"""k""'L_e_n""'d1,...·ng---1-----..-1""'0,..,,3""'0=o+----,+----=-13 $10,300 $10,000 

Educational Enhancment Grants $0 o 1---------'----'-$
-=-

o
=+----=-

$2
-=-
o
=-
,
-=-00

=
0
=4-----...... -..i 

..,c=-a_m_p_u _s -=p-ro_
{J!_
_ra_m_s-----1-----$=-4.,..,0..,.0"""",o=94---14.,..,2-+--3-=-1.,..,,..6 $400,094 $79,850 

E,7i.t'uw7,Jsi1,u'Taistilµ";;r"---� --� --,, ----$:18,f.>/U 
--$66,62t

-, i---------�

Program Operating Endowments $1,424 $20,000 
AL RE:.vTRI TE 790,102 551,938 

*Includes new FY20 pledges payable over 5 years
flnclttdes monthly employee payroll deductions
:tDoes not include pledge payments due in future FY
§Funds raised towards endowment principal, not earnings

Fundraising Support by Program 

Pl1u1.11i..i Al,nuo! l'f<tlllltc Orer.l W&II \ltltt•r, TedL<Nk �tltu11 td.iulioual t.ampus tttdowed l'logram tcund lb, 1/C.. J#Jirsident s Evt 
Scholarships Sc.hola,ships Promise lending Textbook Enhananent f-'roera,ms !tcholarships§ Operatin, {Unrestricted) Orcle ')ponso 

Lendin1 Grants Endowments§ (Unrestrkted} (Unrest, 

■ New FY10 $ To Oate ■ New F' 

# # 

Gifts/Pledges Donors Gifts 
TOTALS $898,!'1"13 
°§y Source·-------------

-·-·-- .. ·--- -------- .. -----

Individuals $285,931 386 1,089 
Corporations $280,308 4fi 64 
Foundations $332,274 8 17 

By Purµotie 
Restricted $802,162 345 880 
Unrestncted $96,351 12� 29U 

Legal/Hard credit only 31



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION GIFT REPORT FY 2019/2020 

3-YEARVIEW 

As of Jl:.:S11:,W:.W 

FY17 

Q1 -UJ 

In $1,000s 

$783,204 

If. or Donor� 559 
# of Giftc/Plcdgoo 1340 

Year-End Totals $996,505 

Gifts and Pledges 

$1,000 +-----

$500 

$0 
FY17 FY18 FY1 q FY70 

Ir 1di11iduc1I 

Corporations 

Foundations 

FY'17 

Q1 -Q3 

$595,651 

$96,053 

$91,500 

Gift Source 

FY18 

Q1-QJ 

$533,235 

4�9 

1251 

$13,467,142 

FY19 

Q1 -Q3 

$2,504,515 

J89 

1150 

$2,821,693 

# of Donors 

FY20 

Q1 -Q3 

:i;898,513 

4J9 

1170 

*GIFTS AND PLEDGES 

# of Gifts and Pledges 

1,400 �---------

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

1,350 

1,300 

1,250 

1,200 

1,150 

1,100 

1,050 

F'i'l8 

Q1-Q3 

FY·l8 

Q1 -Q3 

F'l'20 

Q1 -Q3 

$24b,bJ4 

$182,820 

$104,871 

-- .... ,-s, 

$L,24/,469 

$202,106 

$54,850 

• - J 

$.28b,9JI 

$280,308 

$332,274 

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 

SOURCE 

Gift Source - % 

$3,000 �---------------

In $1,000s $l,SOO +--------­

$2,000 +--------­

$1,500 +--------­

$1,000 +---------

In $1,000s 

$�OU 

$0 

$3,000 

$2,500 

$2,000 

$1,500 

$1,000 

$�00 

$-

rY17 

■ Individual 

UnrHtricted 

#of Donoro 

Restricted 

# of Donors 

1-Y 1/ 

FY18 FY19 

■ Corporations 

FY17 

Q·I -Q3 

$66,785 

256 

~-•· -· 

$716,4
_
19 

370 

Gift Purpose 

Hl9 H2U 

Includes monthly employee payroll deductions 

Includes pledges payable over 5 years 

�Y20 

■ Foundations

FY18 

U·I-U3 

$54,()9() 
135 

$479,145 

327 

■ Restricted 

■ Unrestrltled 

FY19 

U1 -QJ 

$52,170 

127 

$2,452,345 
. . 

294 

FY17 

■ Individual 

FY20 

Q1 -UJ 

FY18 FY 19 

■ Corporations 

1-'URPOSI::. 

$96,351 

0 

$802,162 

0 

Gift Purpose - % 

FY20 

■ Foundations 

■ Re,tricted 

■ Unro&trictod 

32



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION GIFT REPORT 

MULTI-YEAR PROMISE FUNDRAISING REPORT 

Multi-Year Pledge Payments Due by Fiscal Year 

as of 6/4/19 

l"'Ieage Amountuue Amoum uue 

Payment Due from FY16 from FY17 Amount Due from 

Date Fund raising Fund raising FY18 Fundraising 

FY16 $31,600 $0 $0 

FY17 $35,450 $23,738 $0 

FY18 $35,100 $23,992 $3,500 

FY19 $27,750 $25,000 $4,800 

FY20 $28,000 $3,600 $4,600 

FY21 $3,100 $43,500 $4,500 

FY22 $0 $75,500 $4,500 

FY23 $0 $75,000 $1,000 

FY24 $0 $50,000 $0 

Amount Due from 

FY19 Fundraising 

$3,050 

$3,550 

$3,000 

$3,000 

$3,000 

Multi-Year Promise Pledge Payments Due IJy Fiscal Year 

$90,000 

$80,000 

$70,000 

$60,000 +-------==-­

FY 2018/19 

Total to be Collection 

Received Rate 

$31,600 100% 

$59,188 100% 

$62,592 98% 

$60,600 97% 

$39,550 92% 
- , .. - .. 

$54,100 0% 

$83,000 0% 

$79,000 0% 

$50,000 0% 

$50,000 

$40,000 

$10,000 

$20,000 

$10,000 

■ Amount Due from FY19 Fundraising

■ Amount Due from FY18 Fundraising

■ Amount Due from FY17 Fundraising

■ Amount Due from FY 16 Fundrals;lng

$0 

FY16 FY17 FY18 FYlq FY70 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 

Notes: 

1) Chart and graph only include gifts towards annual rromise operating funds

2) Gifts towards Promise endowments total $296,000, with payments due through FY2023/24

3) Anticipated yearly endowment earnings approximately $14,500 by FY2024/25

-4) Verianc& in yearly payments due to irregular payment plant. t.et by donor&

33



Program Sustainability Committee: ANTICIPATED PLANNED GIFTS 
As of June 4, 2020 

CONFIRMED ANTICIPATED PLANNED GIFTS (Irrevocable) 

Amount Donor Ty11e of Planned Gift Designation 

$17,759 AmyCherot Charitable Gift Annuity Promise 

$12,500* Mark L. Goldenson Deferred CGA Nursing Program 

$152,746 Robert Milton Charitable Gift Annuity Unrestricted 

$183,005 SUB-TOTAL 

*Fundis managed by Ventura County Community Foundation, with residual estimated from current value of $30,038 as
of September 30, 2014. No further information is available.

Antici11atcd Amount 

TBD 

$500,000 

$'\00,000 

$500,000 

$300-$400 

$300,000 

$250,000 

$250,000 

$200,000 

$100-$,00K 

$100,000 
--

$100,000 

$5U,UUU 

$5U,UUU 

35% Residue 

TBD 

�--.. -·-· . 

TBD 

TBD 

TBD 

TBD 

PENDING/PROBABLE PLANNED GIFTS (Revocable) 

Donor 

Sanford Weiss 

John Lupton 

Barbara Wise 

Jack Halpert 

[d Stile 

D. Townsend & S. Pallas
·----� . .

Vella Buchanan

Virginia Stout 

Aurora Loss 

Ruth O lohrmm 

Kathleen Schrader 
-·--

Carl Boggs 

Huth Hemming 

Irene I lenry 

Don Hatala 

Abru Flure5 

John Woolley 

Ellyn Dembowski 
--

Jeff Ferguson 

Dave and Joyce Evans 

Ty11e of Planned Gift 

Bequest 

Bequest 

Bequest 

Bequest 

Bequest 

Bequest/Tertiary 
. . ·--

Bequest 

Bequest 

Bequest 

Bequest 
' -·· 

Bequest 

Bequest 

Life Insurance Policy 

Lite Insurance Policy 

Bequest (est. $250K) 

Bequest 

EleqUPSt 

Bequest 

Bequest 

Bequest 

> ·· ·--·· 

Notes: Italics: Indicates VCF Board member. Bold: Indicates new information. 

Designation 

TBD 

Fmlwm111-7�% Sd1lr\hp, ]'\% 
lxtbk 

rromise/Textbook/Scholships 

TBD 

Golf Program 

Baseball Program 

Unrestricted 

Promise Program 

Scholarships/Nursing 
Equipment 

Music Dept. 

Nursing/Paramedic Programs 
·- - - ----

Scholarships 

TBD 

Endowed Scholar�hiµ 

Scholarships - STEM 

Theatre/Costume Design 
Scholarship 

llnre�tncteci 

TEID 

50% Art DPpt/SO% Mu�ir 
Endwmnt 

TBD 

34



Program Sustainability Committee: ANTICIPATED PLANNED GIFTS 
As of June 4, 2020 

Amount 

TBD 

TBD 

20% Residue 

TBD 

TBD 

$3,400,000 + 

. -

Donor 

Donald Greenberg 

Don Beiless 

Robert Milton Estate 

Barbara Caulfield 

Norbert Tan 

SUB-TOTAL 
---· ·- -· 

. ------�· 

Tl,l(!e of Planned Gift Designation 

Bequest TBD 

Bequest or Annuity Textbook Library 

Bequest Unrestricted 

Annuity VCOMT 

Bequest Unrestricted 

APPROX. TOTAL: $3,400,00o+ identified (25 individuals including 3 VCF current or former board members) 

Notes: Italics: Indicates VCF Board member. Bold: Indicates new information. 35



�; VENTURA COLLEGE 

�- FC)lJt� DAT IOt".J 

MARKETING & MEDIA REPORT 

MARCH 9090 - MAY 2020 MEDIA PLACEMENTS 

Ventura College to Support Advanced Manufacturing Program 
• American Towns.com - March 3, 2020

https:ljwww.americantowns.com/news/gene-haas-foundation-donates-250000-to-ventura-college­
foundation-to-support-advanced-manufacturing-program-30766442-ventura-ca.html
• Amigos 805 - March 3, 2020

http://amigos80S.com/gene-haas-f_oundation-clonates-25000Q-to-ventura-college-foundation-to-
su pport-adva need-man ufactu ring-progra ml

• Californer- March 1, 2020

https:ljcaliforner.com/dca/gene-haas-foundation-donates-250000-to-ventura-college-foundation­
californer-10067 403
• Citizens Journal - March 3, 2020

https://www .cililen.sjou r n d l.w,/ge11e-l ldd�-f ourn.ld lloi 1-c.lo1 Id les-2�0QQQ-l!.!-V!;:!I l\.!! i.1-k1J!11.:g_1.: rvY!IYY u�m­
L0-!>U IJIJ0I l-dc.lVc:HILec.l-1 rldllU f dLlUI l11g-p1 ogr dlfl/
• PRL og org- March �. 2010 (Viewed 82 time�)

https:ijwww.prlog.org/12813029-gene-haas-foundation-donates-250000-to-ventura-college­
foundation.html
• Ventura Breeze- March 25, 2020

http://venturabreeze.com/2020/03/25/gcnc haas foundation-donates-250000-to-ventura-college­
foundation-to-support-advanced-manufacturing-program/
• Ventura Chamber of Commerce - March 3, 2020

http:ljventura.chambermaster.com/news/details/gene-haas-foundation-donates-250-000-to-ventura­
college-foundation-to-support-advanced-manufacturing-program-03-03-2020
• VC Reporter- May 6, 2020 -Biz Buzz
http�_:/ /vcreporter .rnm/2020/0'i/bjz,-btw-111dy-20201
• VC Star- March 8, 2020 -0usiness Roundup

Ventura College Marketplace to Close for Next Three Weekends 
• American Towns.com - March 13, 2.02.0

I I LL1r,:llwww .dme1 iLd II lown�.wm/r1ews/ve11 Lu rd-LOI lege-rou11dd lio1 Hild I ketpldce-lo-dose-f or-next-3-
weekends-3077 654 9-ve ntura-ca. htm I
• Amigos 805 - March 13, 2020

https://amigos805.com/ventura-collcg_c foundation markctplacc-to-�IQ��-fQr-next-J·we�ke11ds/
• Citizens Journal - March 13, 2020

https://www.citizensjournal.us/ventura-college-founclation-marketplace-to-close-for-next· 3 weekends/
• Moorpark Patch- March 13, 2020

I I ltu� ;/ I Rii l�h. <;;Qmltal !torn ja/moo rna rk/ventu ca-college-to u n dat 10 n-m a rketplare-r loses- -�-week e nrl s 
• PRLog.org - March 13, 2020 -155 Views

https://www.prlog.org/128145.§.1 vcntl,!ro college-foundation-marketplace-to-close-for-next-3-

• VC Reporter- March 18, 2020

wcckcnds,htmf

https:1/vaeporter.com/ 2020/03/vc-coronavirus-u pdate-cou nty-hun kecing-down-during-pa ndem ic/ .

BOARD MEDIA PLACEMENTS & PR REPORT I 

36



Ventura College Cancels Miriam & Henry Schwab Academy of Music 

Summer Program Due to Coronavirus Crisis 
• American Towns.com - March 20, 2020

https:ljwww.americantowns.com/news/ventura-college-cancels-miriam-henry-schwab-academy-of­
music-summer-program-due-to-coronavirus-crisis-30783591-ventura-ca.html
• Citizens Journal - March 20, 2020

https://www.citizensjournal.us/ventura-college-cancels-miriam-henry-schwab-academy-of-music­
summer-program-due-to-coronavirus-
crisis/?utm source=rss&utm m�9ium=rss&utm campaign=v�ntura-college-cancels-mjrjam-henrv­
schwab-academy-of-music-summer-program-due-to-coronavirus-crisis
• Moorpark Patch - March 20, 2020

https://patch.com/california/moorpark/ventura-college-cancels-schwab-academy-due-coronavirus­
crisis
• Ventura Chamber of Commerce - March 20, 2020

http://ventura.chambermaster.com/news/details/ventura-college-cancels-miriam-henry-schwab­
academy-ot-musu.. surr111u,1r (JtOHfdlrl tlu1::t lo wronavlrus crisis m 70 2020

Ventura College Foundation Marketplace Closed Until Further Notice 
• American Towns.com - March 27, 2020

https://www.americantowns.com/news/ventura-college-foundation-marketplace-closed-until-further­
nolile-30790044-ven Lura-ca. htrn I
• Amigos 805- March 27, 2020

http:ljamigos805.com/ventura-college-foundation-marketplace-closed-until-further-notice/ 
• Citizens Journal- March 27, 2020

https://www.citizensjournal.us/ventura-college-foundation-marketplace-closed-until-further-notice/ 
• KCLU-fM- March 27, 2020

htt ps ://www. ki,;:I Y ,Q rpj RQ�t/ QQ Pllli r-south-coast-wee ken d-fa rme rs-ma rket-canre I led-d t I e-rn ro navi n 1-;
wm t:r w,fht r ea rn/0 
• KEYT-TV- March 27, 2020

httpc; · ljkPyt rom/ news/ventu ra-cou nty/2020/03/27 /yent� ra-�ou nty-foundation-markctplncc closed 
until-further-notice/ 
• Moorpark Patch March 27, 2020

https.//pald1.wrn/califor11ia/rnoorpark/ventura-college-marketplace-closed-until-further-not1ce 
• PRLog.org - March 27, 2020 (117 Views)

https:ljwww.prlog.org/12816363-ventura-college-foundation-marketplace-closed-until-further­
nolice.html
• Ventura Rrene - April 8, 2020
https://venturabreeze.com/2020/04/08/veotura-college-foundation-marketplace-closed-yntjl-further­
notice/

BOARD MEDIA PLACEMENTS & PR REPORT I 

37



V�n�ur_a_ CQJ,�ge Foundation Announces Distribution of over $683,000 in 
Scholarships 

• American Towns.com -April 27, 2020
https://'t'.ww,americantowns,com/news/v�ntura-r.ollPgP-fo11ndation-annm1nrP<;-di<;trih11tion-of-over-
683000-in-scholarships-30820290-ventura-ca.html 
• Amigos 805 -April 27, 2020
https://amigos805.com/ventura-college-foundation-announces-distribution-of-over-683000-in­
scholarships/
• Californer.com - April 27, 2020
https:ljcaliforner.com/dca/ventura-college-foundation-announces-distribution-of-over-683000-in­
scholarships-californer-10075312
• Citizens Journal - April 26, 2020
https://www.citizensjournal.us/ventura-college-foundation-announces-distribution-of-over-683000-in­
scholarships/
CSUN University Relations and Advancement -April 26, 2020
https://www.csun.edu/node/326056
• Moorpark Patch -April 26, 2020
lit lµs;ljp11l<.l1.c.o111/c c1llfurrtlll/111uor I.Jdl k/ve11lu111 t0llr.tK!.: rvumfollo11-sJIHr luule-68;l-000-�c.hvlor�htu:. 
• Newsbreak- May 7, 2020
https://www.newsbreak.com/cal1torn1a/ventura/news/OOrRgAAv/ventura-college-toundation-to­
distribute-b8�UOO-in-scholarships
• PRLog.org -April 26, 2020
https://www.prlog.org/12820357-ventura-college-foundation-announu��-<.li�lrilJuliun-uf-uver -683000-
in-sc@Jjlrships.html
• Ventura Chamber of Commerce - April 24, 2020
http://ventura.chambermaster.com/news/details/ventura-college-foundation-announces-distribution­
of-over-683-000-in-scholarships-04-24-2020

Ventura College Foundation Launches Stronger Foundation, Stronger 
Futures 

• American Towns.com -April n, ,020
https ://www.omcricantowns.com/news/venlu I d-<..ollege-f uu 11<.ld liur 1 · !du ntl 1e�-�lr or 1ger -f uun<.ld lion­
stronger-futme-30820183-ventura-ra html
• Californer.com - April 29, 2020
httos;//c,aliforner.c.cJ111/ckct(vt>11lurn-rnllt>gf'-foundation-launches-stronger-foundatlon-stronger-future­
californer-l00/��0.:l
• Moorpark Patch -April 29, 2020
https://patch.com/california/moorpark/ventura-college-foundatiQn-l�yn�lii;:s-fynctrnislng-i;amQaign
• PRLog.ory-Aµril 29, 2020
https://www.prlog.org/12820537 venturn collegc-foundation-launches-stronger-foundalion-sll onger ­
future.h�ml
• Ventura Chamber of Commerce-April 29, 2020
http;//ventura.chambermaster.c:om/nPwc-,/ciPtaiis/ventura-college-foundation-launches-stronger-

• VC Reporter-May 7, 2020-VC COVID-19 NEWS & UPDATES
fuur1<.ldliur1-�lrunger-future-04-29-2020 

https://vcreporter.com/2020/05/vc-covid-19-news-a nd-u pd ates-may-7-2020/ 

BOARD MEDIA PLACEMENTS & PR REPORT I 

38



Ventura College Foundation Weekend Marketplace to Reopen Saturday 
• Citizens Journal May 29, 2020

https:ljwww.citizensjournal.us/ventura-college-foundation-weekend-marketplace-reopens-may-30-
and-31/
• Moorpark Patch - May 28, 2020
https://patch.com/california/moorpark/vc-foundation-weekend-marketplace-reopens-may-30-31
• News Break - May 28, 2020
https://www.newsbreak.com/california/ventura/news/OP9jrcUi/vc-foundation-weekend-marketplace­
reopens-may-30-and-3l
• PRLog.org - May 28, 2020
https:ljwww.prlog.org/12823865-ventura-college-foundation-weekend-marketplace-reopens-may-30-
and-31.html
• Spectruml-TV- May 28, 2020- Evening News
• VC Star- May 30, 2020

http!:://www.vcstiJr.c,omisLory/news/lorol/2020/Q<;/2CJ/vent11ra-rq,ll.�e-foundAtion-weekencl­
rnm kel phKe-reopl"nlng-saturciay/':> 16 /88100.l/

BOARD MEDIA PLACEMENTS & PR REPORT I 

39



WHAT IS A SOCIAL MEDIA AMBASSADOR? 

Social media ambassadors are individuals who are already passionate about your cause and willing to share 

an organization's story or message with family and friends. 

WHAT DOES A SOCIAL MEDIA AMBASSADOR DO? 

They enthusiastically share with their network {business 

connections, family, and friends) the great work that our 

organization does in CONVERSATION and pass along 

information to: 

1) Identify/Cultivate (Mc1ke lntrodurtions, Educate,

lnforrnJ

2) Ask (Volur1lee1 s, Arnuassadors, Readers, D011ors)

3) Thank/Involve (Donors, Volunteers, College, Students,

Staff)

THE POWER OF A 

SOCIAL MEDIA AMBASSADOR 

WHY ARE SOCIAL MEDIA AMBASSADORS IMPORTANT? 

People trust people more than they trust organizations. It's that simple. Social Media Ambassadors are 

people who want to help amplify our message to increase our impact, share their passion, and recruit others to 

join the cause. 

FACT: Messages are shared 24 times more l're4ue11lly whe11 <;oming fro111 real µeoµle wrnµared lo wl,er, JJO.'il­

ed by an organization. 

WHAT IS THE ROLE OF A SOCIAL MEDIA AMBASSADOR? 

• Follow the Ventura College roundation social media channels including:

• Facebook (@VCFoundalion)

• Twitter ( @VC_Foundation)
• Linkedln (@ventura college foundation)
• YouTube (https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCrXe5JeEVhS3E45B Ai2StA)

• lnstagram (@vcfoundation)

• Actively promote and share what the VC Foundation means to you, and what the Foundation does to

support Ventura College students, campus, and the community.
• Introduce your network to all tht> wayf'. thEW c:an contributf' and clonalf' to lhE-> Fou11dc1lio11 (induding

lwcomirrg A111l,,:,ssc1do1s Llrerriselves, sd1ularslrip readers, esldlJllslr a sc..holarshlµ, c1lltmd d tdmpus Lour,

Pt<:.)
• Contribute positive messages and work to build awareness of #StrongerFoundationStrongerFuture and the mission

of the Ventura College Foundation.
• You w,11 receive periodic emails with sample posts and tips.

40



20 Actions Board Members Can Take Now 

to Share the VC Foundation
1

s Mission 

1. Speak publicly or arrange for Foundation staff to present to a community group (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR)

2. Identify and introduce potential board members to your leadership team (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR)

3. Add new names (with permission) to the newsletter list (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR)

4. Post/share a message on social media twice a month (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR, ASKER, THANKER/INVOLVER)

5. Volunteer at a community event and represent the VC Foundation (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR)

6. Identify potential new donors and introduce them to the Executive Director (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR)

7. Invite guests to our next event (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR)

8. Work with your company to set up an employee volur1leer µrogr dirt (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR, A5KER)

9. Host a friend-raiser (e.g. house party, dinner, happy hour, etc. at home or business) as an opportunity to tell

your organization's story (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR, ASKER) 

10. Join our Executive Director at Important Community Events (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR)

12. Make thank you calls or write thank you notes to donors (THANKER/INVOLVER)

13. Invite friends and colleagues for a tour (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR)

14. Encourage others to volunteer in programs, at events or on committees (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR)

15. Forward the newsletter to members of your network who care about your mission {IDENTIFIER/

CULTIVATOR, ASKER) 

1G. Write an op-ed about your mission work for a lo<:al publication (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR, ASKER, THANKER/ 

INVOLVER) 

17. Invite staff to present at a Loom Meeting brown bag tor your office (IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR, ASKER,

THANKER/INVOLVER) 

18. Be proud to be a board member and share with your network (in person, email, social media, linkPdln, Ptr)

(IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR, ASKER, THANKER/INVOLVER) 

19. Er,tourage your affi11lly g1ouµs lo l,etorne a P1eslue11l's Urtle MernL,er or lo Esluullsh u Scholc.1rshlp In sup­

purl of your mission (ASKER) 

20. Enroll a team of Social Media Ambassadors who like, share and otherwise engage on various platforms.

(IDENTIFIER/CULTIVATOR, ASKER, THANKER/INVOLVER) 

41



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

MARKETPLACE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, May 18, 2020, 5:15 - 6:15 p.m. 

Minutes 

Committee Members Present: Rob Van Nieuwburg -Committee Chair; Cathy Bojorquez VC VP of Business 
Services; Ruth Hemming-Board Vice Chair; Anne Paul King-Executive Director; Mike 
Montoya--Secretary, Peter Tshing-Vendor 

Staff: Esme Juarez-Marketplace Supervisor, Julie Harvey-Development/Marketing 
Manager 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. van Nieuwburg called the meeting to order at 5:18 p.m. 

M.OTION: Appruvdl uf Felir uary 10, 2020 Committee Meeting Minutes M�(

Plan� to Open MP with Safety Protocols on May 30-31 

Ms. King and Ms. Juarez presented the new limited COVID-19 Marketplace Operating Plan, vendor 

agreement, signage, pldn didgr drrt, memo Lu �laff. All plans adhere to current Ventura County Public 

Health directives. We will open with 40 vendors on the first weekend. This is 10% of pre-crisis 

operations. The reduced vendors will allow the staff to properly adjust and begin to manage the new 

safety protocols.-The safety plan allows for growth to a maximum of 150 vendors-40% of pre-crisis 

operotions. 

Ms. King had reviewed the plan prior lo LIii� 111(•t'llr1g with V( President, ()1 Kirn Hoffmans. Olslrill 

police Lt. Palloto and VC Director of Facilities and Maintenance, Mr. [)e l eon are reviewing the plan as 

well and advising staff. The committee discussed ensuring emergency vehicle access. Drive thru pick­

up from food vendors maybe allowed after the initial few weeks demonstrate smooth operations. 

Mr. Tshing recommended that all employees have their temperatures taken at the beginning ot each 

workday as he ha� been doing with his staff A 5'x40' sign welcoming back our vendors was designed 

during tlw mr-Pling dnd will he hung between trees along Telegraph Road In front of the East Parking 

Lot where the Marketplace takes place. Ms. Bojorquez led a discussion regarding editing some signs 

and points in the plans to further increase emphasis on safety for customers, vendors, and staff. Ms. 

Harvey reviewed marketing plans and tasks that sho and Ms. Juarez are implementing to inform the 

vendors and community of the reopening. Ms. Bojorquez expressed interest in applymg lessons 

learned from this opening to the future opening up of the campus for students. 

Meeting adjourned at 6:16 p.m. 
Minutes were taken by Anne Paul Kmg 

42



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

Statement of Financial Position 

March 31, 2020 vs Prior Year End 

3/31/2020 6/30/2019 Change % Change 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash $ 247,017.23 $ 306,480.00 $ (59,462.77) -19.40% 
Pledges Receivable 7,127,110.87 9,192,468.62 (2,065,357.75) -22.47% 

Other Current Assets 

Prepaid Expense 14,344.73 4,238.10 10,106.63 238.47% 

Unemployment Tax Deposit 14,145.43 12,879.08 1,266.35 9.83% 

Total Other Current Assets 28,490.16 17,117.18 11,372.98 66.44% 
Total Current Assets $ 1,402,618.26 $ 9,516,065.80 $ (2,113,447.54) -22.21% 

Fixed Assets, net $ 12,274.02 $ 16,285.73 s (4,011.71) s (0.25) 

Other Assets 

Charitable Gift Annuities 254,625.61 254,625.61 0.0% 

Deposits 1,938.00 1,938.00 0.0% 

Investments 

rccc - Osher Endowment 1,400,302 92 1,430 702 92 (24,400 00) -·I 7% 

Investment Pool 1, E::ndowments 6,858,620.92 7,607,983.81 (749,362.89) •9.8% 

Investment Pool 2, Hansen Endowment 544,848.58 551,369.80 (6,521.22) -1.2% 

Investment Pool 3, restricted and unrestricted 1,067,144.99 1, 146,420.69 (79,275.70) -6.9% 

BOD Designated Reseive 100,000.00 100,000.00 

Investment Pool 4, Miriam Schwab Fund 6,017,885.90 6,573,799.76 (555,913.86) -8.5% 

Investment Pool 4, Helen Yunker Fund 1,761,639.02 1,761,639.02 

Total Investments $ 17 ,756,442.33 $ 17,310,276.98 $ 446,165.35 2.6% 

Total Long�Tenn Assets $ 18,013,005.94 $ 17,566,840.59 $ 445,165,35 2.5% 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 25,427,898.22 $ 27,099,192.12 $ (1,671,293.90) -6.2% 

LIABJLmES AND EQUITY 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Scholarships and Accounts Payable $ 246,921.79 s 799,513.82 $ (552,592.03) -69.12% 

Other Current Liabilities 

Accrued Payroll 0,00 11,308.92 (11,308.92) -100.00% 

Au.ruel.l Va< atfon J4,ICJl.64 .W,4.!8.4/ J,6/J.1/ 1/.06% 

Aflac Payable 118.38 0.00 118.38 

FSA Payable 5,735.68 3,629.71 2,105.97 58.02% 

Payroll Tax Payable 0.00 076.47 (076.47) 100.00% 

Medical Insurance Payable 50.00 0.00 50.00 

Total OthorCumint Liabllitlea $ :10,0D6.70 $ 36,343.51 $ (6,337.81) �"17.44% 
Tatul C:urrcnt L iabilitiea $ 2.70,927.49 $ 035,887.39 I (1158,920.90) -56,87% 

Long-Tenn Liabilities 

Unfunded ralpers Penslan l iabllity 228,070.00 220,070.00 0.00% 

T(ltal l <mg-Tenn l labllltles $ 228,070.00 $ 228,070.00 0.00% 

I otal Liabll!Ues $ 505,006.49 $ 1,063,936.39 $ (558,929.90) -52.53% 

Net Assets 

Net Asset&, beginning 26,035,255.73 23,481,429.05 2,553,828.08 10.88% 

NctlnC(lffiC 1,11'2,104.00 2,66'3,826.08 ('3,666, 100.08) 14JJiB% 

Net Assets, ending $ 24,922,891.73 $ 26,036,256.73 $ (1,112,364.00) -4,27% 

TOTAL LIABILmES AND EQUITY $ 25,427,898.22 $ 27,099,192.12 $ (1,671,293.90} --6,11% 

43



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
Statement of Financial Activity 

Nine Months E111J"!I March 31, 2020 vs Prior y.,a, 

Jul 2019 - Mar Jul 2018 - Mar 

2020 2019 Change %Change 

Income 

4200 Donations - Unrestricted $ 96,791.92 $ 65,054.03 $ 31,737.89 48.79% 

4300 Donations - Penn Restricted 34,377.05 2,075,099.26 (2,040,722.21) -98.34%

4400 Donations -Temp Restricted 

4410 Phoenix 60.870 00 28,167 00 32.703 0(1 116 10% 

4430 Annual 172,314.25 190,745.97 (18,431.72) -9.66%

4432 Osher Donations 91,200.00 91,200.00 

4435 Promise 27,564.00 42,212.44 (14,648.44) -34.70%

4436 Vet Promise 23,100.00 (23,100.00) -100.00% 

4437 Textbook lending 38,237.00 29,982.50 8,254.50 27.53% 

4440 Campus. 400,074.96 65,641.26 334,433 70 609.49% 

Total 4400 Domttlou:!> -Temµ Reslrlcled $ /90,2&0.2·1 $ J/9,849."II $ 410,411.04 108.0b%

4500 Unclaimed Scholarships 4,599.00 3,600.00 999.00 27.75%

5000 Market Place Revenue 902,426.10 1,009,067.00 (106,640.90) -10.57%

5020 VIP MP Parking 126,022.00 130,966.00 (4,944.00) -3.78% 

Total 5000 Market Place Revenue $ 1,02a,44a.1 o $ 1,140,033.00 $ (111,584.90) -9.79%

5100 Interest Income 296.27 258.63 37.64 14.55% 

5300 In-Kind Income 40,178.00 30,907.12 9,270.88 30.00% 

5400 Other Income 20,296.19 115,354.45 (95,058.26) -82.41% 

Total Income $ 2,015,246.74 $ 3,810,155.66 $ (1,794,908.92) -47.11% 

Gross Profit $ 2,015,246.74 $ 3,810,155.66 $ (1,794,908.92) -47.11% 

Expenses 

6000 PROGRAMMATIC 

6100 SCHOLARSHIPS 

6160 Scflofar�hlµ& (D0110I f-u11d&d) 

6152 Annual 30,731.50 48,937.50 (18,206.00) -37.20% 

Total 6160 Scholarships (Donor Funded) 30,731.50 48,937.50 (18,206.00) -37.20% 

8300 Endowed Scholarships 3,000.00 4,0b0.00 (1,0b0.00) -25.93%

8350 Annual Rollover Scholarships 2,800.00 2,800.00 

Total 6100 SCHOLARSHIPS 36,531.50 52,987.50 (16,456.001 -31.06% 

6200GRANTS 

6210 Ventura Colleae Promise 57,385.50 40,852.50 16,533.00 4047% 

6220 Textbook/Lending Library Grant 38,237.91 47,806.06 (9,657.14) -20.16% 

6225 Vet Promise Textbook Expense 1,250.00 1,250.00 

Total 6200 GRANTS 96,873.41 88,747.55 8,125.86 9.16% 

6300 omm PROGRAM EXPENSES 

6330 Bad Uebts 30,927.00 30,927.00 

/OM Sustalnablllty (;;ifl f::.xpense 4.00 4.00 

6350 BOARD DIRECTED PROGRAMS 

6390 Program Expense 1,000.00 (1,000.00) -100.00%

Total 6350 BOARD DIRECTED PROGRAMS 1,000.00 (1,000.00) -100.00% 

8310 Camµus f!XJJellSe 42.:S,�fl.:S. ·16 11.<,116 a8 ,bO,,bb.bB 144.06%

44



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

Statement of Financial Activity 
Nine Months Ended March 31, 2020 vs Prior year 

Jul 2019 -Mar Jul 2018-Mar 
2020 2019 Change %Change 

6375 Campus In-Kind Expense 37,890.00 30,575.01 7,314.99 23.92% 

8400 Program Endowment Disbursment 115,884.00 119,525.01 (3,641.01) -3.05%

Total 6300 OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES $ 608,678.16 $ 324,816.60 $ 283,861.56 87.39% 

Total 6000 PROGRAMMATIC $ 742,083.07 $ 466,551.65 $ 275,531.42 59.06% 

7000 ADMINISTRATION 

7002 Bank Charges 137.00 100.00 37.00 37.00% 

7004 CalPERS 3,701.92 2,342.25 1,359.67 58.05% 

7008 Computer Fxpense 178.32 (178.32) 100.00% 

7009 Charitable Contributions Expense 5,000.00 5,000.00 

7010 Professional Development 370.00 2,286.91 (1,916.91) -83.82% 

7012 Depreciation 3,608.18 6,393.87 (2,725.69) -42.63% 

7014 Dues & Subscriptions 50.00 50.00 0.00% 

7016 Employee Appreciation 1,590.12 1,108.66 481.46 43.43% 

7018 Employee Benefits 9,503.46 6,537.12 2,966.34 45.38% 

7020 In-Kind Expense 332.11 (332.11) -100.00%

7022 Insurance 6,138.55 3,046.50 3,092.05 101.50%

7024 Licenses & Fees 724,00 744.00 (20.00) -269% 

7026 Office Expense 2,579.43 2,911.35 (331.92) -11.40% 

7028 Mileage 193.19 228.30 (35.11) -15.38%

7030 Miscellaneous Meetings 49.65 62.28 (12.63) -20.28% 

7032 Printing 231.75 201.20 30.55 15.18%

7034 Payroll Service 4,967.78 4,967.78 

7035 Sa.lariats ;:!&, /9/ .62 21,M9.96 9.-141.66 jj,(J$% 

7036 Payrull Ta11:E.1S J,"!04.88 S,:JUS.06 (108.18) 3.28% 

7038 rcataga 5.50 {5.50) -I00.00%

7044 Professional Services 10,332.32 7,270.12 3,082.20 42.12%

7048 Unemployment Insurance Exponso (678.98) 5,972.63 (6,651.61) -111.37% 

7052 Small Equipment 1,760.84 1,086.·I, 6/4.1 L 6:l.1L:% 

7037 Sovcmmc.e 3,155.50 3,155.50 

7054 Telephone 098.02 (598.62) -100.00% 

7006 Workers' Compensation 322.52 6,930.00 (6,607.48) -95.35% 

7058 Vacation Expense 1,G::i2 !'iG 1,6,.7.56 

Total 7000 AllMINISTRATIClN $ 96,422.29 $ 79,338.88 $ 16,083.41 20.27% 

7500 DEVELOPMENT, SCHOLARSHIP, PROGRAMS 

/002 Bank Charges 35.00 35.00 

7504 CalPERS 32,367.70 24,£04.24 7, 773.41.l 31.61% 

7506 Board Expense 1,064 86 3,179.14 (2,114.28) -66.50%

7508 Computer Expense 24,285.00 38,854.11 (14,569.17) -37 50% 

7509 Direct Marketing 25,377.44 20,292.-10 5,085.34 :l5.06% 

7610 Professional Development 11,0G0.77 7,022.35 4,846.42 69.01%

7511 Donor Meetings 1,067.52 1,845.10 (777.58) -42.14%

7512 Donor Recognition 42,044.20 120,540.68 (78,496.48) -65.12% 

45



7513 Misc Meetings 

7514 Dues & Subscriptions 

7516 Employee Appreciation 

7518 Employee Benefits 

7520 Insurance 

VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

Statement of Financial Activity 
Nine Months Ended March 31, 2020 vs Prior year 

Jul 2019 - Mar Jul 2018 - Mar 

2020 2019 

141.70 

2,365.30 3,867.21 

466.03 368.21 

82,974.69 68,639.40 

4,734.97 2,359.24 

7522 Merchant Fees - Online Donation 1,140.37 1,315.59 

7524Mileage 189.89 850.43 

7526 Office Expense 2,485.43 1,126.66 

7527 Payroll Service 6,469.94 

7528 Professional Services 35,586.06 40,451 48 

7530 Marketing 24,118.96 26,451.23 

7632 Printing & Graphic Design 999.80 1,608.55 

7535 Salaries 297,881.71 278,374.68 

7536 Payroll TaJCes 22,568.05 33,276.99 

7538 Postage 72.45 

7541 Special Events 3,421.28 3,004.94 

7552 Scholarship Awards Events 9,073.24 7,465.57 

7555 President's Special Fund 

7556 Workers' Compensation 3,097.68 3,217.50 

7558 Vacation Expense 5,079.89 

Total 7500 DEVELOPMENT, SCHOLARSHIP, PROGRAMS $ 640,9TT.93 $ 688,705.45 

8000 MARKET PLACE 

8002 Bank Charges 12.00 (13.00) 

8004 CalPERS 8,633.36 "12,102.06 

8006 Computer E:xpense '3,060.00 2,993.80 

8008 Courier Service 3,696.34 3,582.23 

8012 CC Processing Merchant Fees 5,055.67 5,276.57 

8014 Depreciation 343.53 4,600.08 

8016 Employee Appreciation 1,971.20 2,531.79 

8018 l!mployee Benefits :l:l,109.b::J :13,t t4.m1 

8020 Insurance 14,634.67 2,360.24 

0023 Markatiuu 10,772.50 

8024 l ir-onsos & Foos 830.00 846.00 

8026 Office Expense 452.42 371.31 

8030 Repairs & Maintenance 12,887.09 10,912.00 

8032 Printing & Signago 1,647.32 677.96 

6033 Payroll Service 3,281.37 

8034 S&curity 47,013.65 50,547.96 

8035 Salaries 148,824.;2 136,bb8.19 

8036 Payroll Taxes 11,289.87 16,324.98 

8037 Small Equipment 961.88 640.05 

8038 Street Sweeping 9,600.00 10,246.00 

Change %Change 

141.70 

(1,501.91) -38.84%

97.82 26.57%

14,335.29 20.88% 

2,375.73 100.70%

(175.22) -13.32% 

(660.54) -77.67% 

1,358.78 120.60% 

6,469.94 

(4,865 42) -12.03% 

(2,332.27) -8.82% 

(808.75) -37.84%

19,507.03 7.01% 

(10,708.94) -32.18%

72.45 

416.34 13.86% 

1,607.67 21.53% 

(119.82) -3.72% 

5,079.89 

$ (47,727.52) -6.93% 

26.00 102.31% 

(3,468.70) -28.66%

66.20 2.21%

114.11 3.19%

(220.90) --4.19% 

(4,256.55) -92.53%

(560.59) -22.14%

(11.B1o 46) -:.wa9% 

12,176.43 51G.0/% 

10,/12.b0 

(16.00) 1.78% 

81.11 21.84% 

1,975.09 18.10% 

969.36 142.96% 

3,281.37 

(3,534 ;) I) .(j_$9% 

12,266.33 8.08% 

(5,035.11) -30.84%

321.83 50.28%

(646.00) -6;�J1o/o---�.,,, 

t.  -•,46



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

Statement of Financial Activity 
Nine Months Ended March 31, 2020 vs Prior year 

Jul 2019 - Mar Jul 2018 - Mar 
2020 2019 Change %Change 

8039 Professional Services 8,098.57 11,903.35 (3,804.78) -31.96%

8040 Supplies 9,917.36 10,485.35 (567.99) -5.42% 

8042 Trash 22,874.87 21,085.92 1,788.95 8.48%

8044 Vendor Appreciation 344.64 258.64 86.00 33.25%

8046 Telephone 675.00 675.00 0.00%

8056 Workers' Compensation 8,794.80 2,227.50 6,567.30 294.83%

8058 Vacation Expense 560.72 560.72 

Total 8000 MARKET PLACE $ 358,292.88 $ 340,966.97 $ 17,325.91 5.08% 

Total Expenses $ 1,836,776.17 $ 1,575,562.95 $ 261,213.22 77.48% 

Net Operating Income $ 178,470.57 $ 2,234,592.71 $ (2,056,122,14) -92.01% 

Other Income 

5500 Investment lm:omo 

5520 Change in Market Value (1,658,893.44) 135,076.57 (1,793,970.01) -1328.11% 

5540 Interest & Dividends 423,903.88 243,560.78 180,343.10 74.04%

Total 5500 Investment Income $ (1,234,989.56) $ 378,637.35 $ (1,613,626.91) -426.17%

Total Other Income $ (1,234,989.56) $ 378,637.35 $ (1,613,626.91) -426.17% 

Other Expenses 

8500 Investment Fees 

8510 Manager Fee (Payden & Rygel) 55,845.01 35,561.00 20,284.01 57.04% 

Total 8500 Investment Fees 55,845.01 35,561.00 20,284.01 57.04% 

Total Other Expenses 55,845.01 35,561.00 20,284.01 57.04% 

Net Other Income (1,290,834.57) 343,076.35 (1,633,910.92) -476.25% 

Not lncomo (1,112,364.00) 2,577,669.06 (3,690,033.06) �143;1!)% 

47



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

Income 

4200 Donations - Unrestricted 

4300 Donations - Penn Restricted 

4400 Donations - Temp Restricted 

4410 Phoenix 

4430 Annual 

4432 Osher Donations 

4435 Promise 

4436 Vet Promise 

4437 Textbook lending 

4440 Campus 

Total 4400 Dur1atlo11s - Temp Restricted 

4500 Unclalmed Scholarships 

5000 Market Place Revenue 

5020 VIP MP Parking 

Total 5000 Market Place Revenue 

5100 Interest Income 

5300 In-Kind Income 

5400 other Income 

Total Income 

Gross Profit 

Expenses 

6000 PROGRAMMATIC 

6100 SCHOLARSHIPS 

6152 Annual 

Total &·ISO Scholarships (Donor Funded) 

8300 Fndowed Scholarships 

8350 Annual Rollover Scholarships 

Total &100 SCHOLAk$HIP$ 

9200 GRANTS 

6210 Ventura College Promise 

6220 Textbook/Lending Library Grant 

6225 Vet Promise Textbook Expense 

6230 Educational Cnhancement Orant11, 

Total 6200 GRANTS 

6300 OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES 

6330 Bad Debts 

7053 Sustainnbility Gift Expense 

6370 Campus Expense 

6375 Campus In-Kind Expense 

8400 Program Endowment Dlsbursmenl 

lotal 6300 0-fHl=R PROGRAM EXPENSES 

Total 6000 PROGRAMMATIC 

7000 ADMINISTRATION 

7002 Bank Charges 

Statement of Financial Activity 
Nine Months Ended March 31, 2020 

Actual vs Budget 

ACTUAL BUDGET 

$ 96,791.92 $ 66,800.00 

34,377.05 66,215.00 

60,870.00 38,500.00 

172,314.25 285,425.00 

91,200.00 

27,564.00 28,600.00 

38,237.00 14,290.00 

400,074.96 51,100.00 

$ 790,260.21 $ 417,915.00 

4,599.00 11,283.44 

902,426.10 1,008,900 00 

126,022.00 126,000.00 

$ 1,028,448.10 $ 1,134,900.00 

296.27 306.00 

40,178.00 

20,296.19 127,123.40 

$ 2,015,246.74 $ 1,824,542.84 

$ 2,015,246.74 $ 1,824,542.84 

30,731,50 

30,731.50 

'3,000.00 

2,800.00 11,283.44 

36,531.50 11,283.44 

57,385.50 76,369.95 

38,:?37.01 66,720.00 

1,250.00 

15,000 03 

96,873.41 147,089.98 

30,927.00 

4.00 

423,073.16 51,100.00 

37,890.00 

115,884.00 119,000.00 

$ 608,678.16 $ 170,100.00 

$ 742,083.07 $ 328,473.42 

137.00 125.00 

Over{Onder) % Over(under) 
Budget budget 

$ 29,991.92 45% 

(31,837.95) -48% 

22,370.00 58% 

(113,110.75) -40% 

91,200.00 

(1,036.00) -4% 

23,947.00 168% 

348,974.96 683% 

$ 372,345.21 89% 

(6,684.44) -59% 

(106.473 90) -11% 

22.00 0% 

$ (106,451.90) -9% 

(9.73) -3% 

40,178.00 

(106,827.21) 84% 

$ 190,703.90 10% 

$ 190,703.90 10% 

:J0,7::11 50 

30,731.50 

3,000.00 

(8,483.44) -75°/o 

25,248.06 224% 

(18,984.45) -25% 

(17,482.00) -31% 

·f,250.00 

(l�.00003) -'!00% 

(50,216.57) -34% 

30,927.00 

4.00 

372,873.16 730% 

37,890.00 

(3,116.00) -3% 

$ 438,678.16 258% 

$ 413,609.65 126% 

12.00 10% 

48



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

Statement of Financial Activity 
Nine Months Endod March 31, 2020 

Actual vs Budget 

Over{Onder) % Over(under) 
ACTUAL BUDGET Budget budget 

8002 Bank Charges 12.00 12.00 

8004 CalPERS 8,633.36 10,429.83 (1,796.47) -17% 

8006 Computer Expense 3,060.00 3,744.00 (684.00) -18% 

8008 Courier Service 3,696.34 4,050.00 (353.66) -9%

8010 Professional Development 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 

0012 c;c Processing Merchant f-ees 5,055.67 4,950.00 ·105.67 2% 

8014 Depreciation 343.53 4,600.08 (4,256.55) -93% 

8016 Employee Appreciation 1,971.20 2,956.00 (984.80) -33% 

8018 Employee Benefits 22,159.53 22,349.16 (189.63) -1% 

8020 Insurance 14,534.67 2,547.00 11,987.67 471% 

8023 Marketing 10,772.50 11,419.53 (647.03) -6% 

8024 Licenses & 1-ees 830.00 1,000.00 (170.00) -17% 

8025 Mileage 74.25 (74.25) 

8026 Office Expense 452.42 747.00 (294 58) -39% 

8030 Repairs & Maintenance 12,887.09 23,200.00 (10,312.91) -44% 

8032 Printing & Signage 1,647.32 2,830.00 (1,182.68) -42% 

8033 Payroll Service 3,281.37 3,281.37 

8034 Security 47,013.65 52,700.00 (5,686.35) -11% 

8035 Salaries 148,824.52 152,287.83 (3,463.31) -2% 

8036 Payroll Taxes 11,289.87 15,895.02 (4,605.15) -29% 

8037 Small Equipment 961.88 720.00 241.88 34% 

8038 Street Sweeping 9,600.00 11,700.00 (2,100.00) -18% 

8039 Professional Services 8,098.57 11,148.00 (3,049.43) -27% 

8040 Supplies 9,917 36 9,900 00 1736 (1% 

8042 Trash 22,874.87 27,000.00 (4,126.13) -15% 

8044 Vendor Appreciation 344.64 600.00 (165.36) -31% 

8046 I e lephone 67fi.(l0 67500 0% 

8056 Workers' Compensation 8,794.80 10,883.70 (2,088.80) -19% 

8058 Vacation Expense 560.72 560.72 

Total 8000 MARKET PLACE 358,292.88 389,306.40 (31,013.521 -8.0% 

Total Expenses 1,836,776.17 1,472,857.16 363,919.01 24.7% 

Net Operating lncoml.) 178,470.67 361,686.68 (173,116.11) 40.'.3% 

Investment Income 

6500 lu11o�tme11l lucomfi- RESTRICTED 

5520 Change 111 Markr:t ValuE:- ( 1,022,900.00) 9/,4!HUr/ (1,120,399.91) -·l/6!)% 

5540 Interest & Dividends 403,092.:?1 142,499 97 260,592 ?4 183% 

8510 Manager Fee (51,948.51) (29,999,97) (21,948.54) 73% 

Net Investment lnc-.ome RESTRICTED (1,271,756.30) 209,888.07 (1,481,766.27) -160&% 

5500 Investment Income- UNRl:S I kl(; I (:(J 

5520 Change In Markel Value (35,993.44) {::!b,993.44} 

5540 Interest & Dividends 20,811.67 20,811.67 

8610 Manager f-ee (3,896.50) (3,896.50) 

Net Investment Income- UNRESTRICTED (19,078.27) (19,078.27) 0% 

Total Investment lnc:ome (1,290,834.67) 209,999.97 (1,600,834.64) 1608% 

Net Income (1,112,364.00) 561,685.65 (1,674,049.65) -1558% 

49



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT VARIANCE REPORT 

FOR PERIOD 07/01/2019- 3/31/2020 

INCOME 
   4200 Donations – Unrestricted: Over Budget by $29,992 and 45% 
 President’s Circle donations are approximately $33k over budget, largely due to unbudgeted

donations of $20,000 donation by Debe Bylo and $5,000 from William Kearney. Sponsorships
are down $5k, due to cancelling of events.

   4300 Donations- Permanently Restricted: Under budget by ($31,838) and (48%) 
 We budget for 3 new endowments of $20k each, based on historical giving, but have only

received one so far.  This is attributable to lack of donor meetings, and more recently a
refocus on operations due to COVID.

   4410 Phoenix Donations - Temp Restricted: Over Budget $22,370 and 58% 
 Due $25,000 received from the Tyrone Heritage Foundation, which was budgeted under 4430

Annual Donations.

   4430 Annual Donations – Temp Restricted: Under budget ($113,110) and (40%) 
 This is largely due to the UCSB ESTEEM grant, which we budgeted in December at the full

$78,750.  However, we cannot recognize the revenue until the grant conditions have been
substantially fulfilled, and therefore have only booked $25,000 in revenue.

 $25k from Tyrone Heritage Foundation was budgeted here, but ultimately booked to 4410
Phoenix Donations

 $15k budgeted to be received for Educational Enhancement Grants was not received, as we
needed to focus on operations fundraising due to COVID shut downs (see expense below)

  4437 Textbook Lending Donations- Temp Restricted: Over budget $23,947 and 168% 
 Unexpected gifts:

o $9,000 from Harald Wulff
o $2,500 from the Charitable Foundation
o $2,500 Union Bank

 Poli Sci fundraiser

  4440 Campus Donations: Over budget $348,975 and 683% 
 We received the following large, unbudgeted donations:

o $25,000 received from Mannason Family Trust
o $250,000 from Gene Haas
o $10,000 from John Hammer
o $24k Crowne Plaza
o $4,500 Matthew Ellison
o $1k Hiroko Yoshimoto and Margaret Roth, each

50



5000 Marketplace Revenue: Under budget ($106,474) and (11%) 
 Due to closure of Marketplace last half of March on public health order

Other Income: Under budget ($106,827) and (84%) 
 Osher was budgeted as “other income”, but we decided to reserve Other Income for

unrestricted and non-donation revenue only, therefore when the revenue came in, it was
booked to its own account.

EXPENSES  

6152 Annual Scholarships: Over budget $30,732 
 The entire budget for annual scholarships is posted in June, as that is when most scholarships

are awarded.  This amount represents the paramedics, AMR and ESTEEM scholarships which
occur “off-cycle”.  It is a temporary variance.

6210 Ventura College Promise Grant: Under budget ($18,984) and (25%) 
 We are still awaiting a final bill and expect to end the year slightly over budget

6220 Textbook/Lending Library Grant Under budget ($17,482) and (31%) 
 We are still waiting on final billing, but we expect to spend close to the full budget by the end

of the year.

6230 Educational Enhancement Grants: Under budget ($15,000) 
 Budgeted revenue was not received (see above), therefore we could not issue grants.

6370 Campus Expense: Over budget $372,873 and 730% 
 Coincides with over budget campus income above due to a large donations.
 Additionally, $35,500 was passed through to Aquatics from the Miriam Schwab fund, which

does not correlate to campus donations revenue

Bad Debt Expense: Over budget $30,927 
• We do not budget for bad debt write offs as they are usually very low.  In the current year, we

wrote off $27k of Bill Scarpino’s pledge per his directions, and $2,500 from Payden & Rygel
after our move to Miracle Mile Advisors

Allocated Operating Expenses affecting all departments: 
Due to the nature of allocated expenses, it is often easier to review them on an organization-wide 
basis rather than by department.   
 All personnel costs were allocated differently this year than previously budgeted, due to a

thorough review of time spent on each activity and in consultation with new GAAP guidance.
You can see from the table below that, overall, we are a little under budget.  The variance
between payroll tax and payroll service is due to the fact that in the prior fiscal year we used a
PEO and they billed our payroll service as part of the payroll tax.

 Actual Budget $  Variance % Variance 

51



TOTAL SALARIES 483,503.85 483,679.35 (175.50) 0.0% 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAX 37,052.80 50,483.26 (13,430.46) -26.6%

TOTAL PAYROLL SERVICE 14,719.09 - 14,719.09

TOTAL CALPERS 44,702.98 53,919.45 (9,216.47) -17.1%
TOTAL WORKERS COMP 
INS 12,215.00 13,349.70 (1,134.70) -8.5%

 Professional services are also an allocated expense.  A portion of the expense in the current
year was for an outside CPA position which was converted to a part-time employee position in
December.  Total professional services spent through 3/31/2020 were $54,017 compared with
$77,040 budgeted.  This is a savings of $23,023 or 30%.

 Insurance expense:  Overall insurance expense for the year is $25,408 versus $8,328
budgeted, and is $17,080 and 205% over budget.  This overage is mostly due to an increase in
our liability insurance associated with Marketplace claims.  As a result, approximately 75% of
the insurance expense has been allocated to Marketplace.

Administrative Operating Expenses: Under budget ($2,067) and (725%) 
 ($2,725): Depreciation expense was over budgeted
 ($2,000): Savings on computer hardware which we will not purchase this year
 $5,000: Donation to coalition to support Prop 13, not budgeted, but approved by the board
 $2,904: Insurance- See above
 $4,968: Payroll service- see above
 ($10,815): Professional services: $2,500 not yet paid to CPA for 990 due to delay in filing; see

above for remainder
 $3,168: Personnel costs- see above
 $3,155: Severance costs due to pandemic lay-offs not budgeted
 Office expenses under budget $2,560 because office expenses for other departments was

budgeted under Admin.  There is an offsetting overage in Development.

Development Operating Expenses: Over budget $66,064 and 781% 
 $38,769: Donor recognition is over budget largely due to the Miriam Schwab statue and

reception.  These expenditures come out of the Miriam Schwab fund, and therefore do not
affect our net cash available for other unrestricted expenditures

 ($12,854) Direct Marketing:  We were behind on mailings before COVID, and due to COVID
will not spend our budget this year.  We expect to spend only about $4k in June.

 ($2,441) Board expense: We will not spend this budget this year due to COVID.
 (4,440) Donor meetings: We have not held as many donor meetings as projected due to time

constraints, and with in-person meetings being prohibited under COVID orders we do not
expect to hold any more this fiscal year.

 $2,404: Office expense was budgeted under admin (see underage above)
 $61,862: Personnel- due to a change in how wages and benefits are allocated.  See above.

52



 (5,905) Printing: We were behind on mailings before COVID, and due to COVID will not spend
our budget this year.  We expect to spend only about $750-$1k in June.

 ($2,470) professional services: See above
 ($5,963) Special Events: Savings due to inability to hold events this year under covid public

health order

Programs and Scholarships Operating Expenses: Under budget ($82,673) and (17%) 
 Personnel expenses and professional services are the only two expense items reaching our

variance threshold.  See an explanation under overall expenses above.

Marketplace Operating Expenses: Under budget ($31,014) and (8%) 
 Savings due to closure of Marketplace last half of March:

o ($5,686) Security
o (2,100) Street sweeping
o ($4,125) Trash

 See above for payroll, workers comp, insurance variances
 ($10,313) Repairs & Maintenance: $5,000 was budgeted for lot re-striping which we did not

do; $3,200 for drain cleaning which has not been done (and is unlikely to be done this year);
remaining variance due to budgeting the entire monthly M&O in the first part of the year,
which we do not expect to spend all of due to closure.

OTHER REVENUE/EXPENSE 
5502 Change in market value – under budget ($1,756,393) and (1,801%) 
 Due to severe worldwide drop in stock market and interest rates due to response to Covid-19.

5540 Interest and dividends- over budget $281,404 and 197% 
 This is largely due to increased investment balances versus prior year, which is what budget is

based on.  Interest rates are also up over prior year, and to some extent there may be a
different mix of investments which pay higher dividends.

8510 Investment manager fees: over budget $25,845 and 86% 
 This is due to the large amount of additional funds versus the 2018/2019 fiscal year.

53



Memo 
To: Ventura College Foundation Board 

From: Juli Blasingame, Director of Finance 

cc: Anne Paul King, Executive Director 

Date: April 29, 2020 

Re: Revised 2018 990 

The 990 which was previously approved by the Board was revised because we received, 
belatedly, a K-1 from the Miriam Schwab estate indicating the Ventura College Foundation as a 
beneficiary which received rental income. The new 990 is attached and requires another board 
approval prior to filing. Neither the staff at the Foundation nor our tax preparers, Decker, Farrell 
& McCoy, expected to receive a K-1.  As a consequence, our tax preparers felt it prudent to file 
a Form 990-T, Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return and consider the rental 
income as debt-financed.  You will find this form beginning on page 47 of the attached pdf.  

Rental income is normally not considered to be unrelated business income, unless it is financed 
by debt. It is possible that the rental properties held by the estate are not encumbered by any 
debt, but since that information was not made available with the K-1, our tax preparers 
determined that it would be best to take the most conservative action and file a 990-T. It is 
important to note that there is no income tax consequence to the Foundation because the rental 
properties generated a taxable loss.  It is my opinion, that in an effort to be efficient and possibly 
save money on future returns, we should accept and file the 990 as it is.  However, if the Board 
feels otherwise, I can contact the attorney and CPA who worked on the Estate and request 
additional information to confirm whether or not the rental properties are, indeed, debt-financed. 

I would also like to point out that, further to our prior discussion on the 990, our tax preparers 
decided it would be best NOT to include the two million dollar bequest from Helen Yunker as an 
unusual gift. 

54



55



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

BUDGET COMMITTEE 

MAY 20, 2020 5:15 PM 

VIA ZOOM 

MINUTES 

Board Members Present: Robert Beilin, Abra Flores, Ruth Hemming, Anne Paul King, Nicole Kreutz, Mike 

Orman, Amy Cherot, Catherine Bojorquez, Rob van Nieuwburg, Ken Collins, Kristin Ockert 

Staff Present: Juli Blasingame 

CALL TQ OR_Cl_l;B_; 

Mrs. Kreutz called the meeting to order at 5:17 p.m. 

MOTION 

Mr. van Nieuwburg moved to approve the minutes from the May 6, 2020 Budget Committee Meeting. 

Mike Ormdn secomled. MSC. 

DISCUSSION 

Mrs. King shared the revised 2020 2021 budget, based on the Committee's directive in the previous 

meeting to reduce Marketplace revenues for the first six months of the year. The revision reduced 

revenues by $333,600. The Foundation staff made numerous budget cuts, including reducing salaries by 

5%, saving approximately $42k, and cutting marketing expenditures by $28k. Health insurance costs are 

expected to decrease approximately $17k in the coming year. This still left an unrestricted cash shortfall 

of approximately $75k. 

Mr, King ,harf'd that in order lo wme up willt lite atltliliorml funds mwtl@tl lo rrrak@ uµ for the loss Irr 

Marketplace revenue, she, along with Julr Blasingame and uerry PantoJa, devised a plan to withdraw 

10% from endowments in 20/21 and request donor permission to redirect some funds to operations. In 

addition, the Foundation would retain the $44k of the Payroll Protection Loan which will not be 

forgiven, as it represents a very low interest loan. 

The Board discussed these options and a consensus was arrived that all were in agreement with the 

µldll. ll WdS detlded llrdl Uris proposul would need Investment committee approval before the budget 

could be approved. I he committee decided that the best course of action would be to hold lhe nexl 

meeting on May LI, LULU as a Jornt Budget/Investment/Finance Committee. In this way, the temporary 

changes to the investment policy can be approved along with the budget prior to the Executive 

Commillee 011 June 10, 2020. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the committee duly adjourned at 6:06 p.m. 

Minute, recorded by Juli Blasingame 

56



57



Ms. Blasingame read the proposed motion labeled 2a in the attached Memo B, which requests the 

board approve a temporary suspension of the investment policy which restricts endowment 

distributions in excess of 5% of market value. The Foundation requests the investment policy permit up 

to a 10% distribution, so long as the balance of the fund remains at least 110% of original principal, 

through June 30, 2021. The board again discussed the rules in UPMIFA and California SB 1329 governing 

California Law of Endowments. Mr. Tamparong of Miracle Mile Advisors provided information regarding 

the "rebuttable presumption of imprudence" associated with distributions greater than 7% of market 

value and assured the committee that the current situation regarding the pandemic is a reasonable 

cause for exceeding the 7%. 

MOTION 

Ms. I lemmlng moved and Mr. van Nieuwburg seconded to recommend the board approve the motion 

as written. MSC. 

Ms. Blasing1.1mc road the proposed motion labeled 3u in the uttudmd MPmo B, which rPqUE>�t� thE> 

board approve applying to the State Attorney General to remove from endowment status those 

endowments which are over 20 yedr!> old, holtl less lha11 $25,000 dt1d for whidr Lhe rouw.ldl1011110 

longer has a donor contact. Mr. I amparong stated this was specifically addressed in CA SB 1329 based 

on the understanding that it isn't fiscally reasonable or responsible to maintain small endowments in 

perpetuity. 

MOTION 

Ms. Hemming moved and Mr. van Nieuwburg seconded to recommend the board approve the motion 

as written. MSC. 

IJISC:USSION 

Mr. Pantoja presented the new Major and Planned Giving Plan to the committees, and discussed it's 

pertinence to the new budget for 2020/2021. He explained how the Board will need to be ,m even more 

integral part of the Foundation's fundraising efforts in order for us to be sustainable and to be able to 

continue serving our students as we have in the past. Ms. King discussed the major expense cuts the 

Foundation will need to make next fiscal year, in,luding marketing ancl print materials, such that our 

fund raising capabllltles will be diminished for the foreseeable future. 

MOTION 

Ms. Hemming moved and Mr. van Nleuwburg seconded to recommend the Budget for approval to the 

Executive committee. MSC. 

ADJQUHNM�NJ 

There being no further business, the committee duly adjourmid at 6:.'!S p.m. 

Minutes recorded by Juli Dlasingame 

58



MemoA 

Ventura College Foundation 

To: 
From: 

Investment Committee 
Anne Paul King 

CC: 
Date: 

Juli Blasingame, Gerry Pantoja 
May 22, 2020 

Re: Notice of Investment Adjustments Regarding Pool 3 

With the support of Ken Collin, Investment Chair, in the two weeks prior to the May 27th

Committee meeting, I authorized Miracle Mile Advisors (MMA) to make the following 
adjustments In Investment strategy for Pool 3 to enable us to ensure that we protect its value 
better, as is intended with this fund. 

MMA executed the following: 
• SELL 100% - iShares Short Treasury Bond ETF (ticker; SHV)
• BUY 50%-Vanguard Short-Term Corporate Bond ETF (ticker: VCSH)
• OUY 50% - iShares MOS ['IF tkker: MBBJ

This would have the irnpat.l of Increasing pt11Lfollo yield lo !.2%, Increasing porlfollo dumllon 
to 2.9 years. and the portfolio credit quality would be A- (still very much Investment Grade). 

These changes are supported by the following themes: 
• 

• 

• 

• 

I he f-ederal Reserve has stepped up to buy Mortgage Backed Securities from the open 
market. 

o What this means far VCF: the MBB position wauld have a strong buyer to keep

prices up and stable

The Federal Reserve is also buying corporate bonds . 
o What this means for VCF: similar to the MBB position, the Fed's buying would

lend stability to the corporate bond market and VCSH should do well.
Thf' FE>d i, rommittf'd to kf'eping rates at/near zero perrent, not letting rates rise 
markedly. 

o What this means for VCF: rotes rising is typically a bad scenario for bonds.

Keeping rotes low would allow Pool 3 to reap the additional yield without tao
much fear of downward pre,mre on prices

The President and the Administration have advocated for lower rates than today, even 
negative interest rates. 

o What this means for VCF: Similar to the previous comment, stable, low (and
even Juwe1} 1ute., w/11 keep i11tneM 1ate n\k (It lmy.

MMA Wdlll� lo �tre�� that these parameters are very much within the context otthe history and 
expectation of Pool :I. Morf'OVf'r, th1>s1> adjustmt>nts that MMA have madf' are consistent with 
the spirit of the approved Investment Policy Statement as we have known over our history. 
Finally, MMA would normally not to come to me or Ken to gain approval in advance (though 
MMA typiully hds tllsuellon), I.tut with ougolng move� lu the fln,111ddl Hldrkel5, d quicker 
turnaround time (versus waiting for the meeting) was appropriate. 

59



I. Purpose

INVESTMENT GUIDELINES 

Ventura College Foundation 

Effective May 2020 

Ventura College Foundation has a Statement of Investment Policy covering its entire investment 

program. These guidelines provide specific investment parameters for the portfolios managed by 

Miracle Mile Institutional, the "Investment Manager". 

II. Asset Allocation

The asset allocation will be maintained as follows: 

liquidity Portfolios (Pool 1. and 3): 

Policy Mix 

Fquity 

Fixed Income 

Balanced Portfolio (Pool 1, 4, and 5): 

Policy Mix 

Equity 

Fixed Income 

Ill. Permitted Securities & Market Sectors 

Polley Range 

0% 

100% 

Policy Range 

50%to 70% 

30%to 50% 

I ixed-income instruments of U.S. or foreign issuers, such as: 

• Obligations of governments or their agencies;

• Corporate securities;

• Mor Lgage-backed securities;

• Asset-backed securities;

• Money-market inslrumc,nl�;

• Obllgdllons of U.S., slale a11cJ lotal e11Lilies;

• Equity securities of U.S. and non-U.S. issuers (Balanced portfolio only); and

• Cor111ni11gled rumh (e.g. mutual runds and exchange traded funds) that Invest In securities

substantially consistent with these guidelines.

60



IV. Prohibited Transactions

• Direct short sales of individual securities (the Investment Manager may buy commingled funds

that employ short sale techniques);

• Margin purchases;

• Direct investment in commodities futures contracts (the Investment Manager may buy

commingled funds that use futures contracts);

• Direct investments in real estate or direct real estate lending; and

• Hedge funds

V. Investment Restrictions

The Investment Manager will seek to diversify the assets across market sectors to reduce portfolio risk. 

Excluding Treasury and agency obligations and commingled fund positions, no individual security 

holding shall exceed 5% of the portfolio at time of purchase. 

Bond Quality: The minimum average portfolio credit quality shall be at least "BBB" (Investment Grade). 

Bond Duration: The maximum average bond duration of the portfolio shall not exceed 7 years. 
For Pool 2: The maximum average Bond Duration will be 3 years 

For Pool 3: The maximum average Bond Duration will be 2 years 

International Stocks: The mnximum nllocation to non-US stocks shall be 40%. 

Small Capitalization Stocks: The maximum allocation to small-cap stocks shall be 20%. 

VI. Reporting

The Investment Manager will report transactions monthly and performance quarterly as well as upon 

request. The investment manager will also be re;ponsible ror reporting any rn�leridl tl1dnges in 
investment strategy, portfolio structure, company ownership or financial position. 

Adopte>d: 

By:------------- Date: 

61



Memo B 
Ventura College Foundation 

To:   Investment Committee 
From:  Anne Paul King, Juli Blasingame, Gerry Pantoja 
Date:  May 22, 2020 
Subject:   Recommended Policy Exceptions in Response to COVID-19 

We ask that the investment committee recommend the approval of three one-year 
exceptions to our investment policies in response to COVID-19.  First, the pandemic has 
fatally interrupted our operating cash flow which now threatens the existence of our 35-
year-old foundation.  We believe that the first recommendation is a critical piece of a 
larger strategic 2020-2021 budgeting plan that may extend our cash flow through 
December 2020.  The second and third recommendations address the negative impact 
to our support for students due to heavy losses in our investments.  Investment 
earnings provide critical scholarships and programs that students will need now more 
than ever. These three recommendations abide by the Federal UPMIFA requirements 
and the associated California legislation that governs the boards management of our 
investments. We have provided evidence of this compliance below.   

We have looked at specific groups of endowed funds whose balances enable the three 
recommended motions below.  These only include funds from Pool 1, as the Miriam 
Schwab fund (Pool 4) is currently under water and the Helen Yunker fund (Pool 5) is just 
too new. 

1. In the first group of funds, each hold more than $20,000 in accumulated net
earnings at 4/30/2020.  Six scholarship funds meet the criteria and are
appropriate for consideration.  We have calculated what would be left in each
fund after a 10% distribution.  Five percent would be distributed for scholarships
as part of our normal awarding process according to our current investment
policy.  If we successfully gain permission from each of the six donors/executors
to take an additional 5% distribution from each of these funds, that would
provide $83,112 in operating cash.

a. Request Board to Approve: Permission to seek donor approval to
redirect 5% to operational funds on a one-time basis in the 2020/2021
fiscal year for endowments which currently hold greater than $20,000
in accumulated net earnings, so long as the ending fund balance would
not drop below 104% of principal.

2. The second group includes endowments that would be left with a minimum
110% of principal after a maximum 10% distribution.  We excluded the six funds
mentioned above.  If we distribute all such funds, we would be able to award
$46,020 more in scholarships and distribute $22,670 more to programs.

a. Request Board to Approve: A short term suspension of the 5%
maximum through June 30, 2021.  Specifically, to permit a distribution

62



2 

from any endowment fund up to 10% so long as the remaining fund 
balance does not fall below 110% of principal.   (note this would permit 
us to take a percent lesser than 10%, but greater than 5% if 10% is too 
great). 

3. The third group is a list of endowments which are older than 20 years and hold
less than $25,000.  There are eight such funds, with a total of $118,428.

a. Request Board to Approve: Permission to write a letter to the State
Attorney General requesting these endowments be moved to spend
downs.  The funds selected would be at the discretion of the
Foundation Staff, such that not all 8 funds are required to be selected,
but only those deemed necessary.

Here are some of the resources for UPMIFA understanding and related California law that 
support our recommendations: 

Official SB 1329 language 
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/07-08/bill/sen/sb_1301-
1350/sb_1329_cfa_20080804_135209_sen_floor.html 

Full California Law 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PROB&division
=9.&title=&part=7.&chapter=&article= 

Also attached: 
Vanguard 
Vanguard piece.pdf  
Pg 7 details California as one of the state’s adopting the “7% rebuttal presumption of 
imprudence” 

Association of Governing Boards of Universities and Colleges 
UPMIFA-Article--Not-for-Distribution.pdf 
Pg 4 – suggesting that no set range could be presumed imprudent given the range of possible 
market and economic circumstances 

Kavanagh Rhomberg LLP, Barbara Rhomberg, Partner 
Presentation to the Nonprofit Organizations Standing Committee of the State Bar of California 
Business Law Section 
September 14, 2017 
Law-of-Endowments-State-Bar-NPO-Cte-9.14.17-00016736xE48C5.pdf 
Pg 6 – Rebuttable Presumption of Imprudence. Section 18504(d) creates a rebuttable 
presumption that a charity has acted imprudently if it spends, in one year, more than 7% 
of the fair market value of the endowment fund. The 7% amount is calculated based on 
average quarterly values over three past years. This “rebuttable presumption of 
imprudence” doesn’t apply to colleges and universities, or to their campus foundations.  

63

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/07-08/bill/sen/sb_1301-1350/sb_1329_cfa_20080804_135209_sen_floor.html
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/07-08/bill/sen/sb_1301-1350/sb_1329_cfa_20080804_135209_sen_floor.html
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PROB&division=9.&title=&part=7.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PROB&division=9.&title=&part=7.&chapter=&article=


y Vanguard
® 

Nonprofit spending policy: 
Focusing on the financials 

August 2019 

Executive surrnnary 

■ lJeiore debatmg t 11e pros and cons ot dillerE::nt spending pol1c..,y rnodels

and rates, nonprofit boards of directors and finance teams need to

rigorously analyze the f1nanc al pos1t107 of their own organizations

Much of the lnerature on spending policy focuses on nflat1on and

prospective returns but ignores how greatly nonprofits d1tfer 1n· the

diversity of their revenue sources, their dependence upon investment

returns, and the volatility of their revenues and expenses.

■ ThG w1do rJngo of 01·gJntLJllonol dil!oro11cus r11uko!.,; it µlull' thJt, whun 1t

come::; to spending policy, one size can't fit all We urqe nonprofits to beq1n

the process of thlnk111g about spending by analyzing their statement

of operations and capital structures, and planning the time horizon of

their m1ss1on In our companion piece, A Fmanc,al Health Framework for

Nonprofits, we offer tl three: step frDmcwor� to gJ1de that esse1't1al ancJiy:'>b.

■ 11 irouyh such a11 exercise, nonprofits will understand how variable their

1�,vPr1ut·�· dfld L'"-P<:-l1�t·'.· dft dl1Li dcvc·lup c1 clc•ur :,L•l,:;L• uf lt,c· :.,ILL· ur,Li

wmrosit1on of th0ir ci0"'1r0rl c<1r1t<1I structure, which m<1y or m;:iy not

inr.il1ciP <1n PnciowmPnt Only thPn rein hom(i<; rlPC:ICiP on c1n c1rrrornc1tP

spendinq policy and rate. Helrinq hoArcis c=issAss thPir or9c=in11c=it1on's

historical tinances, current capital structure, and tuture state involves

having tnem answer a series of questions to ensure that any spending

policy 1s tailored to their unique circumstances

64



' 
. 

.. ·:

. . 

. 
,•· 

INTROOllr.TION 

What is a spending policy? 

What do nonprofits mean when they talk about having a "spending policy?" They generally mean 

how much of the value of their investment assets they intend to tap each year to fund operations, 

help pay for capital projects, and the like. 

Many organizations speak about their endowments, which refer to a cluster of restricted and 

unrestricted gifts, as well as board-designated funds, but this piece addresses all of an entity's 

investments, including operating cash, construction pools, self-insurance pools, and more. 

Much of the literature on spending policy is focused on am;woring quoctionc concerning tho 

asset allocation side of the equation: 

• What returns can a nonprofit anticipate from its investment assets?

• What level of spending can bo wctainod t

• What policy should be adopted to either make budgets more predictable or maximize the 

future value of the investment assets?

For a detailed look at some of these questions, see the Vanguard research paper, 

Is 5% the Right Return Target for Institutional Investors? (Wallick, McShane, andTasopoulos, 2018). 

Instead of usinq tho potential returns available to their investments as the startin9 point to 

discuss spending policy, we believe inst1tut1ons should begin by thinking about the nature and 

prcicl1C'l<1luhty of thE->1r rPwnuPs Anci PxrPn!;P'> a<; well as the tools at their disposal to cop� with 

revenue shortfalls or unanticipated expenses. In addition, they need to think carefully about 

the desired future state of their organization. 

After completing these exercises, both the board and finance team should have a better sense 

of the draw they'd like to obtain from their investment assets. They also should he able to decide 

wllelt1er LIiey need to build up the amount of their assets, particularly If they believe prospective 

rAturm; mioht not ho fl<; rcihur,t nr, h1r.tori<'nl rPlurnr, 

65



Spending policy should not be one-size-fits-all 

When it comes to spending policy, our industry tends to focus on the experience of the great research universities. 

Though much can be learned from institutions such as Yale and Stanford, they are not a useful model for most 

nonprofits given their extremely large asset bases as well as the wealth of their alumni, the size and sophistication 

of their investment staffs, and the unique access they enjoy to the best managers. 

Nonprofits differ massively in the diversity of their revenue sources, in their dependence upon investment returns, 

and in the vo!fttility of both their revenues and expenses. Therefore, it's crucial for organizations to adopt a spending 

policy specific to their organization. 

F1evenues 

As opposed to private foundations, which are overwhelmingly dependent on a single revenue source (their 

endowment), public charities derive their support from individuals, governments, corporations, and private 

foundations by soliciting donations and/or grants, and selling goods and services. There are three groupings: 

l Statutory charities, such as colleges, secondary schools, hospitals, and churches/rehg1ous orgamzat1ons;

2. Charities supported through public donations, such as community foundations and food pantries;

3. Charities largely dependent on exempt-function income (those deriving a majority of income from
program-service revenue), such as museums, operas, and orchestras.

Within these groupings, organizations can vary by source of revenue. For example, hospitals are overwhelmingly 

dependent on a single revenue stream, generating more than !:10% from net patient revenues. 

At the other end of the spectrum are nonprofits such as museums that possess multiple revenue sources, including 

membership, admissions, grants, government funding, and investment income. Between those extremes lie the vast 

majority of nonprofits with a mix of revenue sources, including orchestras, research universities, private secondary 

schools, and four-ycnr private colleges. 

Among public charities, about hnlf of their revenue wa!:> Uerivetl f101T1 fee!:> fu1 services 011<.J yootls f1om privole 

sources, such as tuition payments, net 11nt1ent revenues. and ticket c:;alec:; 1n /01fi, acr.ordmo to (-iwrie,:;tar. which 

c-olloct-:., oraumzos, und d1stnbutos data about nonprofits. !he public sgctor accounted tor a.bout one quarLsr 

of revenues in the form of governrncnt conlracl� a11tl Medicc11e or1d Metli<..aid µay1r1er1l!:,. P1ivale <..110.rital.Jle yivir1y 

amounted to 13%, while government grants provided 8%. 

Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials I 3 

66



Similarly, nonprofits vary in their dependence on investment returns. At one end of the spectrum are nonprofits 

providing social services (food pantries, homeless shelters, etc.) which as a rule don't have endowments and 

don't derive a lot of support from investments, but are highly dependent on current donations and in-kind giving. 

Similarly, nonprofit hospitals are highly (90%+) dependent on net patient revenues, with a much smaller reliance 

un I11veslrmrnl returns. 

At the other end of the spectrum are private foundations, wholly dependent upon investment returns. In between 

are community foundations and state university foundations that depend on investment returns for about two­

thirds of their revenue, with the balance from current gifts and grants and other sources. See Figure 1 for some 

hypothetical examples. 

Figure 1. Varying dependence on investment returns 

Private 
research 
university 

f-ood With Community 
�unlry Hospital hospital Museum chanty 

- - CD 0 0 
0%from 6% from 10% from 14% from 25%/rom 

investment investment investment investment investment 

roturn&, 1utu1ns, rotums; returns; ron1rns; 

4%from 94%from 56% from 2S%of 75% from 

release of inflows from net patient inflows from other revenues 

assets from net patient revenues; admissions: 

rcstncllons: rcvcnuc3 B% from net 10%horn 

72% from tuition; 25% membership; 

donations of from othor 45% from other 

foods; 20% sources sources 

from grants and 

contributions 

Note: Given the estimation required for this example. not all verticals will sum to 100%. 

Source: Vanguard illustration using hypothetical examples based on GuideStar data. 

Private 
research 

university Private 
without four-year 
hospital college 

- G
45%from 53% from 

investment investment 

returns; return,; 

25%from 47% from 

net assets net tuition 

released from and room 

rn,Lritliorr&. arr<l !Joar� 

15% from grants 

ond contracts: 

4% from net 

tuition; 11 % 

from ou,�,

30UrCe3 

lo sustain or expand? Weighing the merits ol E-mdowrmmt� 

Community 
foundation 

0 
59% from 

investment 

returns; 

18%from 

gifts, grants, 

and bequests: 

13%from 

expiration of 

restrictions 

State 
university 
foundation 

-
69% from 

investment 

rotums; 

11%from 

rents and 

other activities 

Private 
foundation 

0 
100% from 

investment 

roturno 

If your nonprofit typically runs an operatino surpluc;, hac; ec;tablic;heci appropriate wnrking capital and construction 

ru11c.l1s, 11ru.f I I11s sel uµ all uµerallr1y reserve (as well as a secured line of credit), you might not require an endowment 

or dedicated investment assets to ensure your liquidity and ability to survive a rainy day. Why might you need or want 

an AnctowmEmt? 

Tt, !tr18W<H Llils question, the board must first answer another 4uesuu11. Wuulc.l Lile µrumiry µurµoso of the endowment 

be to sustain or to expandthR nonprofit's mic;c;ion 7 We rE>r0gni1a that mc1ny decisions. about the direction of nonprofit 

spending ar-, nul 1.Jinilry ,mc.l wyyaEL that nonprofitr, think about this on a spectrum. In generol, however, we believe 

that doing more of what your nonprofit is already doing in the same geography falls on the sustaining side of the 

spectrum, while adciIno P-ntlrP.ly nP-w activities, expanding into a d1ffer1o1nt r.,gIon, or merging with anothor ontity follr, 

on the expansion side. For additional information on sizing your P-nciowmP.nt, rp,fer t0 Appendix 8. 

4 I Nunµwfil sµft11c.li11y µuli<;y. Fc.,c;u!;i11y w, the hi w11dal!J 

67



Reasons to have an endowment 

to sustain your mission 

• Most shortfalls should be covered by a board­

designated reserve fund, but an endowment

might be nice to have in the event of a

protracted downturn.

• A substantial portion of your revenues are from

government contracts, whose long-term funding

status might be uncertain.

• You receive significant grant funding but want

additional funds to defray overhead.

• You want funds dedicated to operations and

maintenance costs of facilities.

• You rirov1de grants, tellowships, or scholarships,

and you would like to have a dedicated source

to fund those activities in the future.

• You have a major donor who wants to give you a

restricted Qift. If you accept that gift, you've created

an endowment, whether you mean to or not.

The implications of major gifts 

Reasons to have an endowment 

to expand your m1ss1on 

• You have a major donor who wants to give you

a restricted gift to expand a particular program

or to fund future operating costs.

• Income from an endowment can be a useful

source of risk capital, allowing you to embark

oil a new µrograrn before you've secured

full-time financing.

• You have future plans that will require significant

levels of funding (such as a significant expansion

of your mission either in scope of services or in

geographic reach), and you don't want to stage

recurring capital campaigns.

For additional information on the different tyries 

of endowments and the restrictions that often 

accomp:rny thorn, ploaso rotor to l\ppondi>< C. 

When a nc-inrrofit receives a gift from a donor with th@ rot@ntial to influ9nr.9 th9 orqr1ni1,Hion'i; futuri:, cliri:ic:tinn, 

much ot the attention falls on the dollar amount. I lowever, the board and staff must consider the implications 

of al;c;eµtin� sud1 a gift 

• Some nonprofits spend substantial amounts of development resources on soliciting major gifts, but not

enough time evaluating the terms of tho gift and any restrictions the donor puts in ploce. Remember:

If you accept a restricted gift, you've created an endowment, whether you mean to or not.

• Does the time frame of the gift match that of the organization? If tho gift is intondod to be in perpetuity

but the organization is not explicit about a perµetual time ltoriLor1, it couh..l µIove to l.Je a 111isrr1atd1.

• WIii thE:J µurposE:J of the girt still be relevant In 10 years, 40 years, or 100 years? Do you have language

Ill ti Ie 1ilft lllstrur1Ielll that porrnlls you to uso tho riror.oods tor rolntod riurriosos,

Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials I 5 

68



Designating a spending policy model and choosing a rate 

Much of the literature on spending policy focuses on a market-based model, which revolves around inflation and 

prospective returns. While these are sii:inificant factors, this approach doesn't holistically capture factors more 

specific to your organization. An organization-specific approach should begin with a detailed financial analysis of 

your organization. As Figure 2 shows, the market-based model can then be utilized to provide additional context. 

Incorporating both of these lenses-financial and investment-is essential for building consensus on how to 

balance two divergent aims: maintaining the inflation-adjusted level of spending versus growing the value of 

investment assets to support future spending. 

Figure 2. Integrating two models for spending policy 

Oronnirntion-specific model 

Revenue 
) Expense 

Revenue, Spend rate 

Expense, 
Revenue, 

6 I Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials 

Your 

spending 

policy 

Market-based model 

Portfolio 
return 

Inflation 

Target spend rate 

69



Types of spending policy 

The consensus nonprofit boards reach on how to balance these divergent aims will point nonprofits toward either 

a fixed or more variable spending policy as well as toward a lower or higher spending rate. If your board is more 

concerned with sustaining current activities, then you might want a policy that provides more funding assurance. 

If you are more concerned with growing your activities in the future, you want a more variable policy. 

All spending policies are one of two types: those whose starting point is a percentage of an asset pool vs. 

those whose starting point is the amount of money spent in a previous period. Each type has associated flavors 

as well as a range of spending rates. We discuss the types and flavors in detail in Appendix A. 

Figure 3 highlights four common flavors of spending policies on a scale that runs from the flavor with the least 

variability in the amount spent to the most variability. "Inflation-based" is least variable because it starts with last 

year's spending and applies an inflation factor to generate a fairly predictable amount. "Simple" is most variable 

because it starts with the current year's beginning market value of investments and applies a fixed spending 

percentage to produce an amount that can differ greatly from year to year (4% of $100 million is different from 

4% of $130 million). 

Figure 3. Spending policy mode.ls 

Least 

variable Inflation-based 

Source: Vanguard illustration. 

Hybrid Smoothed Simple 

Most 

variable 

Spending policy rates typically range from 3% up to 7%. This rate can vary depending on the size of the organization 

and what nonprofit sector it occupio&. Rocoarch by Sundoop Dahiyu of Goorgotown Univornity and David Yormock of 

New York University found the smallest U.S. endowment funds make no paym1ts in most years while endowments 

with assets over $100 million have annual distributions with a mean payout rate of 4.5%. 

Tlict lr1lctrr1c:1I Rctvct11ue Servk;e (IRS) 11mr1dulos llml µrlvc.1te foundations spend no less than 5% of their endowments 

(non charitable u5c assets) 011 yrunls c111U d1t111tc11Jle overlleaU, emtl thl:ll 11uml.Jer liet5 Uet:0111e a11d101etl i11 µeople's 

minds. In Furope, private foundations have no government-mandated minimum spend, but the bulk of them spend 

uelween .l% ancJ .l.b% ol assets. Al the other end ot the range, an optional subsection ot the Uniform Prudent 

Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), adopted by many states including California and Now York, holds 

that spending more than 7% of the value of an endowment fund (averaged over at least three years) creates a 

"rebuttable presumption of imprudence." 

As for Vanguard, we believe it's essential that nonprofit boards and finance staff consider spending policy within the 

context of the nonprofit's whole financial picture ac; outlinf!ct in Fiaurf! 4 

Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials I 7

70



Figure 4. Considerations affecting spending policy 

Analyzing statement of operations 

Lower predictability of revenues 

Lower variability of revenues 

Determining capital structure 

Large portion in endowment 

Large operating pools 

Planning the time horizon 

Short-term or intermediate 

Perpetuity (sustaining the mission) 

Perpetuity (expanding the mission) 

Evaluating required assets 

Endowment amount exceeds required size 

Source: Vanguard. 

8 I Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials 

Policy rate 

Lower rate 

Higher rate 

Higher rate 

Lower rate 

Lower rate 

Higher rate 

Policy model 

More variable 

More fixed 

More variable 

More fixed 

More fixed 

More variable 

More variable 

71



impaCl OT aec1s1on-maKers on spenamg po1L, 

One mark of a well-functioning nonprotrt 1s that multiple actors-not Just the investment committee or the Cf-0-

are involved in discussing and setting the appropriate spending policy. Organization-specific factors highlighted 

in Figure 4 will directly influence the spending policy decision, and it's important to document how such analysis led 

to the spending policy selected when canvassing decision-makers. This helps ensure there is consensus around­

and a strong understanding of-your funding model at the board, investment committee, and finance staff levels. 

Nonprofit finance staff generally prefer to have a predictable amount of money each year to facilitate planning and 

budgeting, while investment commiltees often prefer a more variable spending rule in order to maximize the growth 

of the investment assets and fulfill the mission of the orgonization in yeors ahead. 

A National Bureau of Economic Research paper by Keith Brown & Cristian Tiu using NACUl:lO data found that 

"endowment funds modify their spending policies to a far greater extent than the investment problems faced by 

the sponsoring institution would seem to warrant:' The study analyzed the migration patterns in spending rule 

adoption and found that endowment funds were far more likely to stick to a smoothed or hybrid spending policy 

than a simple percentage. 

This illustrates tho tension between theory and practice for spending policy. While a flexible spending policy may be 

the best choice based on a goal of growing the endowment, it can pose a challenge for decision-makers who desire 

stalJIH liudgHts. Sue!, competing ract01s 1elnf01ce the Importance of building consensus among dec1s1on-makers 

when selecting as well as implementing a spending policy. 

In the next section, we use four examples to illustrate the issues facing nonprofits as they seek the spending policy 

that is appropriate for their institutions. All examples assume that tho boards have oxominod--nnd nre comfortable 

with-the balance sheet and statement of uparatiuns, ancJ tlial tile utlle1 µarts uf tile caµital structure are solid 

(moderate debt burden, funded reserves, etc.). 

Nonprofit spending poficy: Focusing on the financials [ 9 

72



Nonprofit case studies-Four hypotheuca1 examp1es 
------------ ----

0 Private foundation, 100% dependent on its endowment. 

Private foundations are unique in two ways: most have no revenue sources other than their endowments 
and the government mandates their spending policy. They illustrate the issues that arise from having to adhere 
to a simple spending policy. 

The IRS requires that private foundations must have annual adjusted qualifying distributions of at least 5% 
uf LI Ie 11el vc1luE:1 uf r1u11d 1c1rilc1ble use c1ssels. 

What does this mean? Adjusted qualifying distributions approximates the sum of grants made and the 
bulk of the costs associated with performing the foundation's mission (salaries and benefits, rent, and other 
overhead expenses), reduced by excise taxes paid to the government. Noncharitable use assets approximates 
the corrus of the foundation's endowment. 

Take a privat9 foundation with a corpus of $500 million. It outcourcoc itG ondowmont and haG a r,taff of 12 
people. The fully loaded costs of w.rfl mo $:.1 million and occuranc:y. fl, and other costs am $1 million, whic-.h 
represents $3 million of charitable use assets before the foundation makes a grant. The IRS mandates that 
foundations spend 5% of charitable use assets, which is $25 million. As we've seen, $3 million is largely 
fixed, leaving $22 million for grants. 

If the value of the corpus decreases by 20% in a given year-to $400 million-5% of charitable use assets 
Is now $20 million. Assuming payroll and other costs remain flat at $:J m1lhon, the amount left for grants Is 
$17 million vs. $22 million the prior year. This presents the foundation with difficult choices: reduce the 
amount of grants made (either by cutting all grants across the board or eliminating grants), maintain the grants 
budget and further eat into the endowment, or cut staff to reduce operating costs. 

History suggests that most private foundations choose to maintain grants hudgets to the extent rossible, 
wl1ld1 <.;!IU8!:18 ll1" 1"111 �P"ll(llfltl r11l" to cr<➔Hp up ovoi limo i111d Ll1H v,1lu1-, of tliP. 1-111dc,wrmml lo fctll H!-l11c!-l lilt-< 
d1::1lle11ye fadng foundation boards: do they out grants budgets Immediately, trim them gradually over several 
y0lll!;, (.)f IIUl <.;UL Llum1 al all? Mu8l try lu lrl1r1 l111:11r1 UVf'Jf t;t,Vf'Jll:li YE-lllf�. 

0 Privnte collPgP, fi3% ciPf)Pndent on it!- endowment.

Elite private colleges tend to be highly reliant on draws from their endowments, and this reliance is increasing 
as net tuition mvenues (tuition minus scholarships and aid) decline. Hence, college chief financial officers want 
to be able to have a stable draw from their endowments. 

I he situation is complicated by the fact that alumni of these schools are generous donors and gifts continue to 
grow the endowmemt, beyond .ippreciation from investments. One of the issues for boards a, te 1ssess tho futuro
growth rate ot grfts. Moreover, boards try to assess how many gifts will be restricted vs. unreitrlcted, which can 

d U!nf''Ol'����'l�' 1§t!f� e'Af:?eiJi§i A11ail'<enjf'�V!� eui,t�fflre�u1ld1ngs).

10 I Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials 73



High dependence on an endowment argues for use of a hybrid spending rule, with more weight given 

to the portion derived from prior year spending adjusted for inflation and less to the portion derived from 

the value of the endowment. David Swensen noted in his book, Pioneering Fbrtfolio Management: An 

Unconventional Approach to Institutional Investment, "as Yale's endowment support moved from one-tenth 

of revenues in the mid-1980s to ona--third of revenues in the mid-2000s, the university opted for greater 

stability in operating budget support. By changing the weight on previous year's spending from 70 percent 

to 80 percent, Yale reduced the likelihood of a disruptive spending drop (at the expense of greater risk to 

purchasing power preservation):' 

Were trustees to become concerned about the inflow of gifts slowing, which, iF all else were equal. would slow 

Lhe yruwll I of LI Ie value of LI Ie ell(Juwmerit, they wuuld allocate an even higher portion to prior year spending. 

0 Museum, 20% dependent on its endowment.

The museum has a strong balance sheet with little debt, and receives a diverse stream of funding, including 

admissions. annual memberships, local government support, foundation grants. and facilities rentals. The 

museum generates surpluses even before taking a draw from its investable assets (though in a few years, 

notably aftflr 2008-<19, it needed the draw to c1vo1d a deficit). It LIses the endowment draw to fund fac1ht1es 

upgrades and expansions and to purchase items for the collection. 

The fact that the museum can generally achieve a surplus before drawing from its endowment suggests it can 

tolerate more variability in the spending policy it chooses and might seek to stress preservation of purchasing 

power over operating budget stability. 

I hat said, we would encourage the board to think in more detail about future plans for endowment funds. 

How pressing are the needs for new facilities? Can staff make legitimate use of an expanded budget to 

purchase items for the collection, or are there already more items than the museum can exhibit? 

Might it be helpful for the board to think about a fixed aspect of future endowment draws (say $25 million a year 

fur fuu1 y<:1ar i, Lu exµa11u fadlilies) as well as a dis<:retiunary µie<:e (uµ tu $10 million a year for 10 years to expand 

colle<:tiuns but could be zero)? 

0 R�ligious charily, 5% dependent on tts endowment.

This organization benefits from high levels of annual, recurring support and runs consistent surpluses before 

any draw from its investable assets. It doesn't have consistent uses for its endowment (which is largely 

comprised of unrestricted gifts) and uses it to support "nice to have" projects. Its members are quite loyal, 

but they are aging and the bo&rd wo11uers wlil!ll L11e urya1iia1Liur1 will look like in 20 tu 25 ye1:1r&. Bucirtl 

momborn nro concornerf about futurf! fundina as its supporters age (their children have moved away and are 

IM� involved in the nroani7lltlnn) 

This religious charity might well adopt a flexible policy with a low (under 2%) base rate as well as a low 

percentage (under 20%) of fixed (vs. discretionary) spending. That way it will maximize the future corpus of 

the endowment. The board might consider a 20-year plan to increase the endowment draw to support its 

budgels as aging reduces tho amount of recurring annual support. 

Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials I 11 

74



Conclusion 

We've attempted to show how different nonprofits are in their funding sources and in their dependence on 

investment returns. Because of these differences, no single policy or rate is universally appropriate. Hence we 

encourage nonprofits, before discussing the implications of different approaches to spending, to take a long, hard 

look at their revenues and expenses in order to understand how predictable or variable they are. Board members 

will find it helpful to be able to articulate the size and composition of their desired capital structure. 

Aft.er analyzing their statement of operations and implementing an appropriate capital structure, the board can 

determine whether a broader pool of investments in the form of an endowment is c1rrro11riate Ry reviewing inte.grn! 

asp0cls or ils finances in addilion to market factors such as prospective returns and lnflatlon, board members can 

ensure the spending policy they select is tailored to their organization's specific circumstances. 

12 I Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials 75



Appendix A: Types and flavors of spending poi1cy 

There are two basic types of policy, but dozens of flavors. We've chosen to illustrate six, though most surveys by 

NACUBO and others indicate that over 75% of institutions use a smoothed approach. 

Types of spending policy 

• A percentage-however derived-of an asset pool (e.g., "4% of $100 million ").

• Amount of dollars spent in a previous period (e.g., "last year's budget was $4 million and we will grow that 

by inflation")

Flavors of spending policy 

Simple 

Simple rules are just that: simple. "Spend 4% of the beginning market value of the portfolio;' "spend all the income 

generated by the portfolio;' or "fund Xo/o of current year expenses from the endowment." 

Tho prnblom i'I that there C'fm he a lot of vArlAhlllty, whether in <1pendino or in the chimoe in the value of the rorru'I 

If the endowment decreases in value by 20% to $80 million, a 4% draw is only $3.2 million, meaning spending 

would have lo decrease by 20% to keep pace. If the draw is kept at $4 million, the corpus of the endowment would 

drop by more than 20%. 

Similarly, if spending jumped 20% to $4.8 million but the corpus of the endowment remained at $100 million, the 

efrective draw rale goes up by 20% (from 4% to 4.8%). which will crimp the compounding of the corpus over time. 

Smoothed (or moving average) 

Organizations often use smoothing to help stabilize spending and reduce some of the variability produced by simple 

policies: "Spend 4% of the 12-quarter moving average of the beginning market value of the endowment." The longer 

the moving average (16, 20, or even 24 quarters). the greater the smoothing impact. 

In clddition to smoothino usIno cl movIno clVflrcl{Je, '>nme in'>tItutIons will cll'>n ll'>e cl '>renctino re'>erve, tn be tclrrect 

when the endowment performance falls short of the policy objftctives. 

The main criticism of the moving avorago is that endowments tend to overspend in down markets and underspend in 

upward trending markets. However, Vanguard's research paper, "/s 5% the Right Return Target for Institutional Investors?" 

suqgests that moving average policies successfully preserve endowment value and sustain future spendinQ. 

Inflation based 

Inflation hm;od rulos nttompt to achieve 'ltflbility in <irenctino "Take la'>t year'<i <ipE>nciino anct multiply by an inflation 

fartnr relevant tn the nrgarn1atI0n a'i the basis tnr rummt-y0ar sr0nctino" A typir,1I 0xamrl0 nt such a rul0 tak0s la'-t 

yoar',. r.poncting multiplioct by .in inflntion footnr (the C'nm1umer Prioe lncte�. the C'ommonfunct Hi□hflr Fcil1oati0n Priofl 

Index, or whatever is most relevont) os the basis for current year spending. 

While this method allows for a stable, inflation-adjusted amount to be budgeted from year to year, it ignores critical 

external fac.;Lors such as market performance. It market returns are poor, a spending policy based purely on 1ntlat1on 

may substantially reduce the value of the endowment corpus. This method ignores thclt and, strictly followed, makes 

it hard to reduce spending, even when that might be the prudent thing to do. 

Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials I 
76



Percentage of portfolio with a ceiling and a floor (a banded approach) 

Under a banded approach, spending is aithar held within a fixed range or tha increase in spending is range-bound. 

For example, if the initial budget is $100,000 and the floor and ceiling are 4 percent and G percent, re5pectively, 

then annual spending going forward would not fall below $96,000 or go above $105,000. 

Alternatively, spending might be increased by the rate of inflation, but there is an upper band of 5% and a lower 

band of 2%. First-year spend is $1 million with inflation of 3%, so second-year spend is $1,030,000 ($1 million 

increased by 3%). Second-year inflation is 8%, so third-year spend is $1,081,500 ($1.03 million increased by 5%). 

This method gives a nonprofit a bit more latitude with what it can spend each year, while at the same time taking 

into consideration the performance of the stock market. The floor and ceiling percentages can be adjusted-

or can stay the �a111e-l11ereby µrulecliny Lhe emJowmenl in down years. 

Hybrio 

Hybrid methods try to find a balance between the flavors. Part is based on the prior year's spending (to stabilize 

budgeting) with the remainder based on the value of the endowment. Hybrid methods are used by well-known (and 

sophisticated) institutions such as Yale and Stanford and have garnered a lot of attention. Yale's rule is straightforward: 

{80% x (Prior Year's Spending x [1 + Inflation])}+ {20% x (Current Portfolio Value x Srend Rate)} 

Of course, a nonprofit can vary the percentages in the formula. The more a nonprofit desires predictability in the 

amount available to spend, the higher the percentage based on prior year's spending. 

!=lexible 

With a flexible spending policy, an institution would cut or increase spending significantly depending on the most 

recent trailing asset returns. The flexible spending rule has two categories, nondiscretionary and discretionary 

spending. Such a rule provides investors with some control over the discretionary portion of their expenditures 

each year. 

The discretionary portion of the spending rule is calculated as the product of a baseline spending rate (4%, say) and 

the variable sp0ndinq factor (how much of overall spendinQ is subject to chango; 20%, say). Tho variublo sponding 

foctor i� ndjumml onf.<l n y�1w if mturn1111rn in l'I norml'II bMd (0% tc, 10%), it might be !,et at 1.0; if return!> are very 

stronn (> 10%). it cc1n he .'>et flt 1 7: if return'> c1rfl '>lightly nflgativfl (�% t0 -l=i%), it miQht bf> '>et c1t O l=i, c1nc1 <;() 0n 

Total spending = fixed spending + d1scret1onary spending. 

Total spending = fixed spending + (baseline variable spending x varic1ble spending factor). 

In our example, the base spending rate is 4%. 80% of spending is fixed and 20% is discretionary. In the year just 

ended. the corpus fell (5%), so the variable spending factor 1s set at O.b. 

(4%*.8) + (4'i'o*.2*.!.,) = (J.2%) + (0.4%) = J.U'io 

Th,., limit'> '>penc11no when return'> have bean rec1uc8c1 anc1 incr9,1s;9s sp8nciing wh8n r@turns. ar8 mos;t favmabl8 

When losses are significant, the variable spending rc1cto1 is set al L(-JTO, giving a spending rate or 3.2% in tho 

c1bove example 

14 I Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials 77



Appendix B: Thinking about your investment assets as a min-max problem 

A long-used inventory control specifies two variables: tho minimum level of inventory required and the maximum 

amount. If the quantity falls below the minimum line, the business reorders. However, it can't order if the quantity 

exceeds the maximum amount. 

Applying similar logic to investment assets, let's say a nonprofit would like to generate $5 million per year to fund 

future projects and expansion. The nonprofit assumes a low annual rate of return of 3%. Dividing that $5 million goal 

by the 3% rate of return suggests an endowment of about $167 million. If the nonprofit believes 6% is an achievable 

annual rflturn. that same calculation suggests a minimum andowm1mt of $83 million. Now the institution has 

bounded its endowment size 

One can also use the formula for a growing perpetuity, which is D1/(r-g), where D1 is the amount the nonprofit would 

like to generate next year. r is the assumed rate of return from the portfolio, and g is the growth rate of inflation. 

If we assume inflation is 2%, the endowment can earn 6%, and next year's desired spend is $5.1 million ($5 million 

µlus :,>% 111flal1011) ,  lhal suyyosli; arI ondowrnerit size of $127.5 million, which is ($!5.1 million/ [.06-.02]). 

If we assume inflation is 2%, the endowrnenl <.:an earn 4%, arn.J nexl year's desired sµerid is $5.1 rnilliori ($5 million 

µlu!i 2% i11flulior1), l11ul suyyesls ,m eridow111er1l �la-: or $255 rrillllrn1, wlild1 I.'< ($5.1 rr1llllori / [.04-.0.i]). 

78



Appendix C: Legal and accounting terms related to endowments 

Legal 

People often speak loosely about charitable "endowments," but it is important to understand the different types of 

endowments, and particularly the restrictions that often accompany them: 

• True endowment fund. Created with funds received by a donor. Traditionally the funds are to be invested

in perpetuity with the use of the income generated restricted to a purpose stipulated by the donor (though

unrestricted endowment gifts are becoming more and more common). Lady Margaret 's Professor of Divinity,

the oldest professorship at Cambridge, was endowed by Margaret l:3eautort in 1502 and the endowment continues

to generate income over 500 years later.

Frank Monti, CPA. a recognized specialist on restricted giving, has nicely illustrated the difference between a

restricted and unrestricted gift. Two donors each give a charity $5,000, which the charity invests in a stock paying

an annual dividend of $250. The first donor does not stipulate how the income is to be used, so the charity may

use the $lbU in any manner they wish w1th1n the charity. !he second donor spec1f1es that the annual income 1s

to be w1ed for 5tatt training. So the charity may only us8 the $250 ru1 paying Lile expe11ses uf stafr trairii11y. Any

unspent money must be carried forward and saved for future sta ff traininQ expenditures.

• Term endowment fund. T he donor's gift stipulates that the principal may be expended-in whole or in part­

only after a stated period of time or upon the occurrence of a certain event.

Neither true nor term endowments are fungible: the returns generated by the funds can' t be used for purposes

other than the ones specified by the donor.

• Some institutions will further classify endowments us "income for spending" or "reinvested income" but

these are not common legal terms. Similarly, for accounting or recordkeeping purposes, nonprofits may group

endowments by purpose: for professorships, scl,olarsliiµ and fellowship aid, priLes and awards, etc.

• Quasi-endowments, also known as "funds functrorunn as P.nciowmp.nts" or "hoarci-cie.c;ignated enciowment.c;,"

are established by the board of the nonprofit itself. Principal and income may be utilized at the discretion of the 

orqanization, which con epond all Llio fumfo if it w u!1oosos. This is u vilul distinction, us truu undowrnunl funds

[)@rm,m@ntly r@f.trrc:teci hy the donor can't h0 Fo[)ont down

Accounting 

For periods beginning after December 2017, the Financinl Ac:c:ountino Stnncinrcis Ronrci (FASR) c:hnnoeci how 

rwnprolrts referred to restrrcted funds (mainly endowments) in their financial statements. In the past, nonprofits 

c:lassifi0d funds ai; unr0stric:ted. t0mporarily rnc;trir.ted, or pormannntly mc;trir.tnci Now thnm nrc' only 

Lwu L;UluyurioL. "willi uur1ur roslrlellu11s" 011(.f "wll11uul uo11ur ruslrlcllons." 

16 I Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials 79



The old language: 

• Unrestricted funds were and arc net assets that con be used, without restriction, for any purpo5;e at L11e di�H.;relio11

of the nonprofit. The nonprofit can use thes.e assets. for purpo::.e::, other U1an L11use fur whid1 llH::JY were uriyi11ally

budgeted without outside approval.

• Restricted funds may be used only according to restrictions assigned by a donor-usually by contractual

agreement. Restrictions may be permanent or temporary.

0 Temporarily restricted assets require fulfillment of a condition before, or in the process of, making the 

expenditure. These conditions involve either time, as in life income funds, or purpose. In the latter case, a donor 

rniglil µruvitle 1rn.J11ey re::.trk:LE:H..I Lu u::.e Uy L11e 111.Jiary. T11e rnstrk.:Uu11 Is IHtetl slmullc:111euusly wllh the purchase of 

library materials. Donations to scholarship funds are even more temporary. When the scholarship is awarded, the 

money becomes tuition income which is, by definition, unrestricted. 

0 Permanently restrir.ted assets, such as endowments, are donated with the restriction that the actual money given 

not be used at all. Only the investment income from these assets can be used for the stated purpose of the 

endowment. (The law requires that the purchasing power of the principal donated be maintained. Therefore the 

yearly Income Is docroasod by the amount required to do so.) 

The new language: 

• fASU essentially merged the categories of "lernporanly restrn;LecJ" anti "pennanenlly rest11ctecJ" driven Uy the

logic that funds either do or don't have restrictions on their use, and the nature of the restriction is less important

than the existence of a restriction.

• l lnc'ler both the old and new terminology, the process for moving funds from restricted cate!=jories to unrestricted

is the same and is referred to by nn item C81!od "Revenue Released from Restriction" or "Net Assets Released

from Restriction:' This means money that came in with a donor restriction has now either been used for the

purpose the donor intended or within the time period designated.

Keeo in mind· 

Dosignotod fundfl are net aR80tR with use restricted by the admm1stratron and/or governing board. Designation, 

however, is not an irreversible restriction of ass9l8, il sirnµly rnµrns911ts tli9 f.H9Sr:ml µ!ans of lh9 administration. 

Fm finanrinl nnnly,;;ic; purpo�e�. dea;;igmiteci fond� �hm1ld be treatFid aj:j; llnrei::trirted fllndi:: A,;. the National Ac::,;:-.ndaticm 

uf Culluyu ,.Hid Univ<m,ily Bu�ine�� Offi<.:ors {NACUBO) puts it. "Only donors c.:m, µluce u rnslric.:tlun 

on a tund. Management or a governing board can place a designation on a fund-but not a restriction ... 

Normally only a donor ct1n modify or rcmovo D restriction; however management or a governing board can 

changliJ a dosig11uliu11 ul any lirn0." 

Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials I 17 

80



Appendix D: The legal background permitting a shift from income-based spending policy 

to total return 

After interest rates and dividend yields tumbled starting in the 1990s, most nonprofits shifted from an income-based 

spending policy, adopting a total return perspective to guide their spending. The introduction of the Uniform Prudent 

Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) in 2006 allowed nonprofits to spend prudent amounts at their 

endowment principal based on total return investing. 

Investing endowment funds 

For investment of endowment funds, UPMIFA provides guidance informed by modern portfolio theory. A charity 

is required to make decisions about each asset in the context of the entire portfolio of investments, as part of an 

overall invostmont strategy. This moans that an asset which in isolation might seem imprudent for a charitable 

organization to hold because of its risk profile may nevertheless be retained by the charity if it fits into a diversified 

portfolio comprie;ed of varioui:; occot clm;i:;oi:;. lndood, onothor gonoral UPMIFA invoctmont dirootivo ii:; to 

diversify investments. 

This investment guidance encourages institutions to invest for total return including capital appreciation, rather than 

focusing only on assets which will generate current income such as interest and dividends. 

18 I Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials 81



References 

Brown, Keith and Cristian Tiu, 2013. The Interaction of Spending Policies, Asset A/location Strategies, and Investment 

Performance at University Endowment Funds. NBER Working Paper No. 19517. Cambridge, Mass.: National Bureau 

of Economic Research. 

Dahiya, Sandeep and DavidYermack, 2019. Investment Returns and Distribution Policies of Non-Profit Endowment Funds.

NBER Working Paper No. 25323. Cambridge, Mass.: National Bureau of Economic Research. 

GuideStar, 2015. Williamsburg, Va. 

Internal Revenue Service, Exempt Organizations Tax Manual. https:/lwww.irs.gov/irm/part7firm_07-027-016

Monti, Frank, 2015. The Surprisingly Complex ABCs of Endowment Funds. Santa Monica, Calif.: Inside Philanthropy. 

NACUBO-Commonfund Study of Endowments, 2017. Washington, D.C.: National Association of College and 

University Business Officers. 

NACURO-TIAA f.tudy of f'ndowment<, ?01(1 Washington, [) (' · National Association of C'ollege anci University 

Business Officers. 

Sherlock, Molly E, Margot L. Crandall-Hallick, Jane G. Gravelle, and Joseph S. Hughes, 2018. College and University

Endowments: Overview and Tax Policy Options. Washington, D.C.: Congressional Research Service. 

Swenson, David r., 2009. Pioneering Portfolio Management: An Unconventional Approach to Institutional lnvestrnent. 

New York: Free Press. 

Uniform rrudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). 2000. 

Wallick, Daniel W., Kelly N. McShane, and Christos Tasopoulos, 2018. Is 5% the Right Return Target for Institutional 

lnvestors?Valley Forge, Pa.:The Vanguard Group. 

Nonprofit spending policy: Focusing on the financials ] 19

82



Conncot with Vanguard• > institutionnl.vanguard.com 

All investing is subject to risk, including the possible loss of the money you invest. 

&vanguard" 
Institutional Investor Group 

P.O. Box 2900 

VNll11y fwy1o, PA 19402-2900 

© zorn I he Vanguard Group. Inc. 
All rights reserved. 
Vanguard Marketing Corporation, Distributor. 

ITRFEMDT 082019 83



Ga 
A'>S(H I \110'\ or 

(,0\ l HNJM; ll(J.\B[)', 
, I I ' I\. l ,.., , ' \ I, I I 

What's a Prudent Payout from an "Underwater'' Endowment? 

A change of law in 30 states complicates spending decisions but provides increased flexibility 

By David Bass 

The context in which boards are making endowment spending decisions has changed remarkably in the past year. 

In January 2008, Senators Max Baucus of Montana and Charles Grassley of Iowa, chair and ranking minority 

member, respectively, of the Senate Finance Committee, cited "explosive college endowment growth" as evidence 

that colleges and university boards should review their endowment-payout polices to make sure they reflected "best 

practices." The senators' implication was that best practice would dictate higher spending rates to offset tuition 

increases. A year later, endowments have imploded, and many of the wealthiest institutions in the country are 

implementing budget reductions, layoffs, increased borrowing, and tuition increases to offset decreased endowment 

revenue. 

The legal context has changed as well. Since 2006, 30 states have adopted the Umform Prudent Management of 

lnstttutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), and the legislation has been introduced in another 16 states. The uniform statute, 

which guides charities, including colleges and universities, on the management, investment, and spending of 

endowment funds was developed and promulgated by the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State 

Laws as a model for adoption by state legislatures. UPMlFA provides institutions with greater flexibility to 

distribute funds from endowments that have plunged in value, but it also challenges them to rethink endowment 

spending practices that may have remained more or less unchanged for decades. 

In combination with the past year's unprecedented market decline, UPMIFA is forcing boards to come to practical 

terms with a question that has typicaily been the subject of more theoretical debate: How should an institution 

m111111gc lite <.:011llicti11g fiduci,11 y obligatiow, lo 1.pe11d emlowmeut fumb i11 way� tlial max imi,.e <:111 Ct',lll publi<: 

benefit� while preserving long-term purchasing power? 

UPMLFA se1 ves lo rnodernize staudards for the 10veslrnenl and manaiement of inst1tultonal funds held by 

charities. It was developed as a replacement for the Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act (UMIF A), a 

model statute introduced by the Uniform Law Commissioners in 1972 and eventually adopted by 47 states. 

UPMIFA incorporates trust-law concepts borrowed from the Uniform Prudent Investor Act (introduced in 1977 and 

cu11c11lly 011 U1e Luoh i.t1 44 &tatt�), lo update aud 1efme the sla11<laid of v1ude11(;e lJ1al fi<ludaiies should follow iu 

making investment and spending decisions. UMIFA had relied on the concept of historic dollar value (HOV), 

deliuc<l a!. lite valu0 of ccmuil,utiorn, mach, lo u fu11d without i1101em,efi or df101c1afiefi due lo i11vc1slmon1 upprnoiation 

or other gains or loses what many donors and historic trust-accounting rules called the "principal." 

UMIFA uilowc<l churlllcs lo spend earnings and appreciation of endowment funds above the IIDV, and it 

r,enerally prohibited spending from "u11de1 water" eHdowrneul au:ounts that had fallen Lelow the HDV (though 

opinions differed as to whether charities could spend "income" from the fund.) Under HDV, for example, if a donor 

established an endowment supportini: a scholarship with a gift of $20,000 and subsequent market declines reduced 

the value of the fund to $18,000, the university would have to stop making disbursements until the value of the fund 

was back above the IIDV of $20,000. It should he noted that the spending provisions ofUMlFA and tTPMIFA apply 

to institutional funds that, under the terms of applicahlr. gift agreements or othrr gift instrnmrnt�. cannot hr �pr-nt 

right away lu l11elr entirety. Endowment doesn't include board-designated "quasi-endowment" or other assets that 

may be invested, along with endowment, as part of a long-term pool. 

1 84



Following the market declines of 2001 and 2002, many colleges and universities found themselves scrambling to 

cover expected revenue from recently established endowments that had fallen below their HDV. Institutions tapped 

lnto unrestricted reserves, asked donors to modify their gift agreements to allow for spending below HDV, asked 

donors to make additional gifts, or simply suspended distributions from the funds until they had recovered in value. 

While UMIFA's HDV rule safeguarded endowment "principal," it poses serious challenges for institutions with 

recently created endowments that have not had time to appreciate significantly. An Associated Press story in March 

described the HDV rule as "a frustrating quandary for universities, orchestras and other nonprofit organizations in 

two dozen stutes [ where UMIFA is in effect]. They have the money they need to save jobs, offer scholarships and 

put on a solid schedule of programs, but face state laws that keep them from using it." 

UPMIF A was developed to address this and other issues associated with the older statute. UPMIFA eliminates the 
concept of HDV, allowing institutions greater flexibility in spending from donor-restricted endowment funds. This 
can be a real boon for institutions dealing with decimated endowments, depleted reserves, cuts in state funding, tight 
credit, and increased need for student financial aid, but it complicates decisions about endowment spending. 

UPMIFA replaces the HOV rule with a "prudence" standard that requires institutions to make spending decisions 
witl1 "Lhe care that an or<linarilv prudent person, in a like position, would exercise under similar circumstances." It 
requires them to consider several factors (sec Sidebar, p. ?). Commenting on this rule, the Uniform Law 
Commissioners noted that "although the Act does not require that a specific amount be set aside as 'principal,' the 
act assumes that the charity will act to preserve ... the purchasmg power of the fund ... wh!le sail prov1dmg that 
some umounts be spent for the purposes of the endowment." 

Many colleges and universities have historically acted more conservatively than the HDV rule would have 
allowed, setting spending rates to preserve long term purchnsing power rnther than simply maintnining historic gift 
values, and building up reserves during periods of strong returns to ensure adequate resources dunng periods of 
weak returns. The severity and duration of the current market decline have, however, intensified the tension between 
the purposes of endowments and the responsibility to preserve them. This is forcing boards to strike a balance 
between supporting increasingly urgent current needs for funds and ensuring that the boards fulfill their obligations 
to maintain the Jong-term value of endowments. 

Institutions in UPMIFA stntos hnvo taken ndvnntngo of tho not, adopting a variety of now spending approaches for 
underwater hinds ln MarClh AUH conducted n survc.y of collcgos, umvc.rsilics, and uffiHutcd foundations in slates 
that have adopted UPMIFA. Among the X participants in the survey: 

• X% are discontinuing all distributions from funds at or below HDV, down from X% prior to
UPMIFA.

• X% are d1stnbuting only interest and dividends for funds at or below HDV, down from x % prior to
UPMIFA.

• X% are continuing distribut10ns m keepmg with theIT normal spendmg rules.
• X% are continuing distributiom; at reduc6d rates thnt yield larp,or nmounts thnn intornst and dividonds

would provide, but that provide less than the amount provided by their normal spending rule.
• X % nro sponding from uu<lorwalcr funds down to a cartain percentage ofIIDV and suspending 

distributions when fund values fall below that threshold 
• X% urc using a tiered approach in which they spend at a no1mal rate until fund values fall to some

designated threshold such as X% of HDV, then reduce the rate until another threshold is reached, and then
suspend distributions as loni as the fund remains below that floor

Although 10stttuttons are increasing the rates at which they spend from underwater endowments, 1t should be 
emphasized that UPMIFA does not snnr.tion thr. 1wrnument depiction or endowments or allow institutions to redirect 
funds restricted by donors for specified purposes to other uses. 

So how are boards making theses decisions'! UP.Ml.FA does not make substantive changes to the standard of care 
for making spending decisions, but boards might need to adapt their decision-making process in light of UPMIFA's 

2 85



more flexible standard regarding distributions from underwater funds. Actual state legislation may vary from the 
uniform act descriLe<l in thii;. aILide, w Lefme making auy decisions 1egauliug spemling from umle1 wate1 funds, 
gonernl counsels should review applicable state statutes and brief those involved in decision making. 13oards should 
also be careful to document their entire decision-making process. 

William F. Jarvis, Managing Director of the Commonfund Institute and an attorney, has outlined a seven-step 
procedure that provides a useful guide for making spending decisions for underwater funds (see sidebar). The new 
standards may also call for higher levels of board involvement in such decisions. At XX percent of the institutions 
and toundatmns that participated in AGB's survey, the full board approves decisions regarding spending from 
underwater accounts, but most rely on recommendations from board committees and finance staff. A majority of 
affiliated foundation boards also draw on recommendations from institution staff or trustees in their decision 
making. 

[lto designer, please set following as SIDEBAR. placement near this part of text would be very helpful. CF]] 

Proposed Policy/Procedure/Process for 

Handling Underwater HGV .lt'uods 

By William F. Jarvis, Managing Director, Commonfund Institute 

I. Have counsel brief the board on the fact that under UPMIFA, the historic dollar value (HDV) concept no
longer exists and spending can take place from an underwater fund, subject lo the rule of prudence and the
guidelines set forth in the followmg sectmn of the llPMll•A statute·

"In makmg a determmat10n to appropriate or accumulate, the institution shall act in good faith, with the 
care that an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circmnstances, and 
shall consider, if relevant, the following factors: 

(I) the duration and preservat10n of the endowment fund;
(2) tho purposes of the institu!Ion and the endowment fund;
(3) general economic conditions;
(4) the possible e.ffccl of Inflation or deflation;
(5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) other rcsonrcc, of the institution; an<l
(7) lhe: inve.\lme-.ut µolk y of lite irn,tituliou."

2. Remind the board that UPMIFA is a default statute, and that where there is an instrument of gift that
specifically prohibits (ur ulluw,, or muudutos) svoudiug boluw Uw histutio dulhu valuo Llrnl must bo
honored (likely tu be very raro).

3. Have the. staff examine those funds that are currently underwater and categorize them into those that are
sub1ecl lo UPMJ.f'A and those where the gift instrument controls.

3 86



4. Examine the underwater funds subject to UPMIFA and test the idea of spending from those funds against
the rule of prudence and the seven factors enumerated above.

5. For each fund, record the staff recommendation.

6. Present the recommendations as a whole to the board for review and approval.

7. Keep detailed minutes of all the actions outlined above.

-By William F. Jarvis, Managing Director, Commonfund Institute

For additional information, see www.commonfund.org 

In most states, UPMIFA lack& any bright line test of what oonstitutes prudent spending levels for endowment 
funds. Some commentators and members of the Uniform Commissioners expressed concern that the elimination of 
IIDV and the absence of a �et level at which !\pemliug would be p1e1,umed imprudent could lead d1aiitie1, lo 
overspend. They proposed Including a rebuttable presumption of imprudence for spending above a set percentage of 
the value of the fund. Opponents of this idea were concerned that inclusion of a fixed presumption of imprudence 
could be taken as endorsement of spending up to the ceiling rate, and they felt that no set rate could be resumed 
imp_rudent given the variety of charitable u oses and institutions and the range of �ible market and economic 
circum�tances. 

Ultimately the commissioners opted to include an optional provision that spending greater than seven percent of 
the market value of an endowment fund (based on at least a 12-quarter rolling average) would create a rebuttable 
presumption of imprudence. At present nine states (MT, NV, NH, OH, OR, TN, TX, UT, and WY) have included 
language in their versions of the act that create presumptions of imprudence ( or prudence) for spending at certain 
rates. Boards in these states should bear in mind that the presumption rules do not create an automatic safe harbor; 
they must still review individual gift agreements, consider the seven factors outlined in the act, and document their 
decision-making. 

One additional provision in UPMTF A marks a significant departure from prior law and enables institutions to 
muke l,etter use of olde1 und smullc1 e11dowme11L<s whose 01igiu11l 1c11L1l<.:liou� rnity h11vc l,cu,mc imp111clicitblc, 
impossiule to achieve, or wasteful. Under both UMil'A and UPMil'A, donors may release restrictions imposed on 
U1ei1 gifts. lustitutions catmol, however, re-negotiate gift agreements in cases where the donor has died or many 
donors have contributed to an individual fund. In such cases UMIFA required charities to go to court to release or 
modify restrictions, entailing legal costs that often weren't warranted for small funds. Under UPMIFA, charities can 
1 clcw1c 01 modify waMeful or irnpiactical,le 1e�11icti()rn, on e11dow111e11ti. that ate old (20 yeari. in tl1e u11ifrnrn act) aud 
below a certain threshold in value ($25,000 in the uniform act) by notifvini the state's attorney iencral and waiting 
60 dayi.. If the regulator poi,ei. 110 ouje<.:tious, the i11stitutio11 <.:au use lhe fund for au alternative purpose in keeping 
with thfc' donor's original intC'nt. For example, a 2,-year-old 1,'.L0,000 scholarship fund for a d1scontmued music 
p1og1um might be redirected to u scholurslup fund supporl!ng another performing-arts program. 

Mnny institutions hnvr. hr.r.n trnr.king thr dr.vrlopmrnt nnd adoption ofUPMWA nnd c-ducnting bonrd memb(Ti on 
the new standards, hut some donors may be surprised to find that endowment distributions have been suspended or 
that funds they thought of as inviolable principal are being spent. It should be noted that lJPMll'"A's spendmg rules 
do not apply to funds for which donors have spec1hed partlcular spending practices. As indicated in the Jarvis 
recommendations, inslilulion staff will need to review individual gift instruments to identify those that make 
stipulations that would Ulke precedence over rnstituuonal spcndmg dcc1s1ons. 

In 2002 and 2003 many institutions reached out to donors of endowment funds that had fallen underwater to ask 
them if they would be willing to make additional gifts to supplement discontinued or reduced distributions. In some 

4 87



cases donors revised gift agreements to allow institutions greater flexibility in spending. Some institutions also 
began routinely including clauses in their gift agreements that pennitted them the same sort of flexibility allowed for 
by UP.MIFA. Even in cases where endowment gift instruments impose no spending restrictions. good stowurdship 
dictates that donors should be informed about spending decisions that will significantly affect the value of the 
endowments they have funded and/or the fulfillment of their charitable purposes. Such accountability is likely to 
reinforce the trust of donors and pay long-term dividends in the form of future support. 

While the shift from historic dollar value as a safe threshold for spending to what may be unfamiliar standards of 
prudence may prove daunting for some board members, the flexibility afforded by UPMlfl A could not have come at 
a better time, encouraging college, university, and foundation boards to thoughtfully balance their obligations to 
respond to the current extraordinary financial challenges, while preserving their institutions' long-term financial 
strength. 

AUTHOR: David Bass is director of foundation programs at the Association of Governing Boards 

EMAIL: davidb@agb.org 

T'SHIP LINKS: 

5 88



■ Kavanagh
Rhomberg

------- LLP---

Briyil Kdvdridylt 
Barbara Rhomberg 

1025 Alameda De Las Pulgas, #123 • Belmont, California g,1002 

(650) 394-6012 • KRNONPROFITLAW .COM 

Presentation to the Nonprofit Organizations Standing Committee 

of the State Bar of California Business Law Section 

September 14, 2017 

ENDOWMENT LAW 

Barbara Rhomberg 

Partner, Kavanagh Rhomberg LLP 

I. What is an endowment?

A. In Common Usage. The term endowment is widely used to mean donated funds

that are set aside and invested to provide a long-term source of income for the charity. "Most 

endowments are designed to keep the principal corpus intact so it can grow over time, but allow 

the nonprofit to use the annual investment income for programs, or operations, or purposes 

sµe(;ifit:<l l,y the <lo11or(s) to lite eu<lowmenl." 1

B. In New Accounting Rules. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB)

issued new guidance in 2016
2 

that defines endowment fund to mean: 

An established fund of cash, securities, or other assets to provide income for the maintenance of a 

not-for-profit entity (NFP). The use of the assets of the fund may be with or without <lonor­

imposed restrictions. Endowment funds 3enerally are established by donor restricted gifts and 

bequests to provide a source of income in perpetuity or for a specified period. See Donor 

Restricted .Hndowment Fund. Alternatively, an NFP's governing board may earmark a portion of 

its net assets as a Board-Designated Endowment Fund. See Funds Functioning as Endowment. 

The F ASB guidance says that quasi-endowmentfimd. board-designed endowment fund. or fund 

fimctioning as endowment all mean the same thing: Assets designated by the nonprofit's 

governing board lo be held and invested as an endowment fund, when the donor(s) of those 

funds did not rnstrict them to endowment use. 

C. Legal Defi11itio11. The Unifonn Prudent Management of Institutional funds Act.

Cal. Probate Code § 18501 et seq., deflnes endowment as follows: 

"Endowment fond" means an institutional fund or part thereof that, under the terms of a gift 

instrumont, is not wholly oxpendable by the institution on a current basis. The term does not 

include a.<1/iet/i that an institution designates as i:m eu<lowmeul fw1<l fo1 11s owu use.3

1 See National Co1mcil of Nonprofits, https://www.councilofnonprofits.or2/tools-resources/endowments (visited Jul. 28, 2017).

2 Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accountinj.! Standards Update No. 2016-14 (August 2016). "Not-for-Profit Entities 
(Topic 958)." The new rules are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after Dec. 15, 2017. 

{00015522-3 J 89



Endowment Law 

By Barbara Rhomberg 
Page2 

-Kavanagh
-Rhomberg
-----LLP--

II. The Law of Endowments

A. Charitable Trust. Under common law, gifts to charitable organizations are
treated as a type of charitable trust, and the restrictions imposed by donors are enforceable under 
trust law. 4 This is true even if the gift is made to a nonprofit corporation or association, rather
than trust-form charity. Using the gifts for another purpose, even a worthy or charitable one, is 
a breach of trust.' In California, this common-law doctrine is reflected in Bus. & Prof. Code 
§ 17510.8, which states:

"The acceptance of charitable contributions by a charity ... establishes a charitable trust 
and a duty on the part of the charity ... to use those charitable contributions for the 
declared charitable purposes for which they are sought. This section is declarative of 
existing trust law prindplc5i." 

B lll'Mll:1A. Tht11 llnifonn Pmcfont Managenneint of Institutional foun<l5 Aot, or 

UPMIFA, was enacted to clarify the legal standards that apply to endowments. Versions of the 
model act have been enacted in 49 states (all but Pennsylvania) and in the District of Columbia. 
In California, UPMIFA was enacted as §§18501-10 of the Cal. Probate Code. As discussed in 
more detail below, UPMIF A addresses three key aspects of endowment management: 

• How should the funds be invested?
• How much can the charity spend each year?
• How can donor restrictions on the use or management of the fund be changed?

C. Contract Law. Under traditional contract law principles, a charitable pledge or
gill agiccrncul is e11fo1ceal.,le wlte11 llie cl1a1ily pwvi<les 1eturn co11si<le1alio11 lo llie <.101101, or 
when the charity or other donors rely to their detriment on the pledge.6 A charity's promise to
use funds for a particular purpose, or manage them in a particular way, may also be enforceable 
agai11.'.iit tl1<� d1a1ily as co11lrndual oliligatiu11 wlie-:11 the-: gifl was made-: 11111sua11t lo au e-:11foH:e:abk 
agreement. 

, Cal. Pwl,atc: Co<le � I 8502(1, ). - .... ·---------------------------

4 See, e.g., Queen of Angels Hospital v. Younger, 66 Cal.App.3d 359 (197:?,; In re Estate ofOthmer, 710 N.Y.S.2nd 848 (2000); Dodge v. Anna 
Jaq11es Hosp., 301 Mass. 431,436, 17 N.E.2d 308 (1938); Restatement (3 ) Trusts §28 (2003) (comment a). 
'See, e.g., College a/Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons, 61 Cal.2d 750 (1964). 
6 See University of Sou/hem California v. Bryson, 103 CA 39(1929), I Wilkin, Summary of California Law (10°' Ed., 2005) §253. 
100015522-31 

90



Endowment Law 
By Barbara Rhomberg 
Page 3 

III. When Does UPMIF A Apply?

-Kavanagh
-Rhomberg
-----UP--

A. UPMIF A Applies to Institutional Funds. Institution is defined in Cal. Probate Code
§ 18502( d) to mean "any of the fol lowing:

(1) A person, other than an individual, organized and operated exclusively for charitable
purposes.

(2) A government or governmental subdivision, agency, or instrumentality, to the extent
that it holds funds exclusively for a charitable purpose.

(3) A trust that had both charitable and noncharitable interests, after all noncharitable
interests have terminated."

Institutional.fund is defined in Cal. Probate Code § 18502( e) to mean "a fund held by an 
institution exclusively fm dim ital,lc-: p1trposes," L,ut tl,e te:1111 tlves not 111dude a11y of the 
following: 

"( 1) Program-relatt':d assets. 

(2) A fund held for an institution by a trustee that is not an institution.

(3) A fund in which a beneficiary that is not an institution has an interest, other than an
interest that could arise upon violation or failure of the purposes of the fund."

Under these broad definitions, UPMIF A applies to any charitable nonprofit corporation or 
association, and covers both endowed and non-endowed funds. 

B. Funds held by trust-form charities are excluded. UPMIFA generally does not
apply to fu11ds ltdd by 1tust-fo1m d,atities,7 because of the e.x.<.·.lusion of auy fuud "held fo, au
institution by a trustee that is not an institution." Cal. Probate Code §l8502(e)(2). A trust-form 
charity is an institution, 8 but it's individual or corporate fiduciaries usually are not, so UPMIF A 
doesn't apply to its funds. lnstead, ordinary trust law governs investment, spending, and 
modification of the funds. 

C. UPMIFA spending rules on(v app(v to donor-designated endowments.
UPMIFA defines endowment Jund to mean fund that cannot he currently spent under the terms if 
its gift instrument. Cal. Probate Code § I 8)02( b ). Uift instrument 1s broadly defined to mean "a 
record or records. including an institutional solicitation, under which property is granted to, 
lransfcne<l to, or hd<l by an institution as an Institutional fund." Cal. Probate Co<le § 18.S02(c). 
While UPMJF A aw lies to ull e11<lowrne11t fw1<ls. its mies uuout how much u cliurit y cu11 spe11<l 
each year only affect donor-designated endowments. 

1 Unifonn Prudent Management of institutional Funds Act, NATIONAL CONFERENCE OF COMMISSIONERS ON UNIFORM STATE LAWS, Nov. 8, 
2007, 1'· 10 (corru11e11l 011 <lefillllto11 of"i11slllul1011"). 

8 See Cal. i'robale Code§§ 18.'.lO'.l(IJ (<lehnmg 'lJcrson" lo Include a trust) and 18:lO'.l(d)(IJ (dehnmg "mst1tutlon" to Include any person organized 
and operated exclusively for charitable purposes). 
[00015522-3} 91



Endowment Law 
Dy Dii:1l,a1a Rhoml,e1g 
Page 4 

IV. Investment of Endowment Funds

Ill Kavanagh
Rhornberg 

-----LLP--

A. Duty of Care. Cal. Probate Code § 18503 addresses the investment of endowments
and other institutional funds. It imposes a general duty of care: "In addition to complying with 
the duty of loyalty imposed by law other than this part, each person responsible for managing 
and investing an institutional fund shall manage and invest the fund in good faith and with the 
care an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances." 

B. Delegation. Standards for delegating lhe investment and management of
institutional funds are provided in Cal. Probate Code § 18505. Section 18505( e) provides that a 
charity may delegate investment management internally "to its committees, officers, or 
employees as authorized by law of this state .... " 

A charity may also delegate investment management to external investment managers. 
Sbclio11 18505(a) tbquitbS Lltal Lil(;; cluuily aol "ill good faillt, willt lit<;; Catt: lhal all 01di111:t1ily 
prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances, in all of the 
following: 

(1) Selecting an agent.

(2) Establishing the scope and terms of the delegation, consistent with the purposes of the
institution and the institutional fund.

(3) Periodically reviewing the agent's actions in order to monitor the agent's performance
and compliance with the scope and terms of the delei{ation."

C. Factors to consider. Section 18504 mandates Lhal a charily consider "consider
Lhe charitable purposes of Lhe inslilulion and the purposes of the inslilulional fund" in making 
management and investment decisions. Subject to donor intent expressed in the gift instrument, 
the charity must also consider: 

(A) General economic conditions.

(B) The possible effect of inflation or deflation.

( C) · l'hl.'l l.'lxp�ctt'<l tax consl.'lqul.'lnceis, if any, of inv('lstmemt <li.-,cisions or stratl.'lgit'ls.

(0) The role that each investment or course of action plays within the overall investment
portfolio of the fund.

(Ll) The expected total return from mcome and the appreciation of mvestments. 

(.F) Other resources of the institution. 

(G) The needs of the institution and the fund to make distributions and to preserve
capital.

(H) An asset's special relationship or special value, if any, to the charitable purposes ofthe institution.
{00015522-3 l 92



Endowment Law 
By Barbara Rhomberg 
Page 5 

-KdVcHli:i9h
-Rhomberg
----LLP--

UPMIFA provides that "[m]anagement and investment decisions about an individual 

asset must be made not in isolation but rather in the context of the institutional fund's portfolio 

of investments as a whole and as a part of an overall investment strategy having risk and return 

objectives reasonably suited to the fund and to the institution." 

Although investment standards in Cal. Corp. Section 5240 (applicable to California 

nonprofit public benefit corporations) are different, Section 5240(e) now states that if the Board 

complies with UPMl.
F

A, it will be deemed to be m compliance with Cal. Corp. Section 5240. 

D. Duty to diversify. Unless the donor's gift instrument provides otherwise, charities

have an affirmative duty to "diversify the investments of an institutional fund unless the 

institution reasonably determines that, because of special circumstances, the purposes of the fund 

arc better served without diversification." Cal. Probate Code §1850J(e)(4). UPMIFA mandates 

that ''L w Jithin a reasonable time after receiving property, an institution shall make and carry out 

decisions concerning the retmtion or disposition of the property or to rehalanre a portfolio "to 

comply with UPMIF A Investment standards. Cal. Probate Code § 18503( e )(5). 

V. How much can a charity spend each year?

In the case of donor-designated endowments (i.e., funds donated to the charity subject to 

an endowment restriction), the amount that a charity can spend each year is governed by Cal. 

Probate Code § 18504. (If the endowment is board-designated, then the charity can spend any 

amount its Uoard decides is appropriate--a board-designated endowment isn't an "endowment" 

under the UPMffA dcfiuition.) 

A. General rule: Whatever is prudent. Section 18504(a) provides, "Subject to the

intent of a donor expressed in the gift instrument, an institution may appropriate for expenditure 

or accumulate so much of an endowment fund as the institution determines is prudent for the 

uses, benefits, purposes, and duration for which the endowment fund is established . ... In making 

a detennination to appropriate or accumulate, the institution shall act in good faith, with the care 

that an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances, 

and shall wnslder, if rdevant, all of the l<)llowing factors· 

( 1) The duration and preservation of the endowment fond.

(2) The purposes of the institution and the endowment fund.

(3) Ueneral economic conditions.

( 4) The possible etlect of inflation or deflation.

(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments.

(6) Other resources of the institution

(/)The investment policy of the inslilulion." 

{00015522-3 J 93



Endowment Law 
By Barbara Rhomberg 

Page 6 

-Kavanagh
-Rhomberg
-----LLP--

A donor can override this standard, and impose a different spending rule, but only if the donor's 
limitation on the charity's authority is specifically stated in the gift instrument. Cal. Probate 
Code § I 8504(b ). 

B. Most endowment gift instruments do not change the ''prudent" rule. Under

Section I 8504(c), "Terms in a gift instrument designating a gift as an endowment, or a direction 

or authorization in the gift instrument to use only "income," "interest," "dividends," or "rents, 

issues, or profits," or "to preserve the principal Intact," or words of similar import have both of 

the following effects: 

(1) To create an endowment fund of permanent duration unless other language in the gift
instrument limits the duration or purpose of the fund.

(2) To not otherwise limit the authority to appropriate for expenditure or accumulate
under subdivision (a)."

C Rebuttable Presumption of Imprudence. Section 18'i04(d) creates a relmttahle 

presumption that a charity has acted imprudently if it spends, in one year, more than 7% of the 

fair market value of the endowment fund. The 7% amount is calculated based on average 

quarterly values over three past years. This "rebuttable presumption of imprudence" doesn't 

apply to colleges and universities, or to their campus foundations. 

VI. Modifying Gift Restrictions

Modification of donor restrictions on institutional fonds is covered in ( :al. Probate ( :ode

§ 18'i06, which provides three ways that an institutional fund can he modified·

• If the donor consents in a record, the charity can modify the fund purpose. § 18506(a).

• If the donor's purpose restrictions are unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or

wasteful. a court can modify the purpose of the fund. A court can also modify a donors'

mandates regarding the management or investment of the fund if they impracticable or

wasteful, or impair the management or investment of the fond, or because of a change in

citcumstu11ces. §18506(l,) Ull(.I (c).

• For t\111ds that are. ove.r 20 ye.ars old, and haw a total value of less than$ I00,000, the

charity can modify restrictions that arc unlawful, impracticable, impossible to achieve, or

wasteful, upon 60 days' notice to the Attorney General a11<l the donor. § 18506(<l).

Modifir.ation of restricted funds is discussed in the atta<.�hed artide, Changing the Purpose on 

Past Charitable Gifts [sic], PI ANNPD GIVINC, T00AY, April ?017 

[00015522-3} 94



Endowment Law 

By Barbara Rhomberi 

Page7 

VII. Endowments in Practice

A. Starting an endowment

-Kavanagh
- Rhoml:Jerg
-----LLP--

A charity's board can create a board-designated endowment by setting aside funds that 

will be invested for the long-term production of revenue. To launch a donor-designated 

endowment, the charity can ask donors for endowment gifts. 

Gift Acceptance Issues. If each donor drafts his or her own gift restrictions, a charity can 

wind up with the administrative headache of many small, named funds with disparate gift 

restrictions. 

• Charities can proactively write their own endowed fond descriptions and encourage

donors to give to those pre-defined, broadly-restricted funds.

• Gift acceptance policies should address acceptance of endowment gifts made subject

to restrictions that would require creation of a separate fund.

0 Si.le lllillilllUHlS ate COHUILOll 

o Should be some management review of purpose restrictions

B. Managing endowments

Investment policy and investment performance. Any charity with an endowment fund or 

substantial reserves should have an investment policy, and its Board or a committee should 

regularly review investment performance. Small charities that find this burdensome might 

consider partnering with a community foundation that offers agency funds or nonprofit 

investment funds. 

SpendinK policy. Charity boards must adopt a spending policy or policies to decide on 

the payout for each fund (Le., how much of each endowment fund it wlll spend on program and 

opcrntions cn0h yenr). While UPMIFA provides n long list offoctors for institutions to consider, 

most charities aim to set a spending rate that preserves the real value of the principal. Spending 

policies arc ollc11 based on a percentage of endowment fund value, cak:ulated as a roll in� 

average over 1-5 years. 

Charity boards are not required to apply the same percentage to each endowment fund 

(and in fact are required to consider the particular purpose of each fund when determming the 

payout amount) 

Record retention. Any charity that has endowment funds should plan to keep 

documentation of the gift terms and purpose in its permanent records. 

{00015522-3 l 95



NE 

APRIL 2017 • VOLUME 28 • NUMBER 4 

Changing the Purpose on Past Charitable Gifts 
BY BARBARA RHOMBERG 

Donor-restncted gifts can be a mtxed 
blessing. Sometimes charities hold donat­
ed funds that are difficult to use for their 
originally designated purpose. This arises 
most often with endowment funds that 
were established years or decades ago. 

Purpose restrictions in current-use 
funds can also be problematic, if tman­
ticipated circumstances develop after 
the gifts we1e made. At other limes, lt 
is the donors (or their family members) 
,vl10 change their miu<ls am.1 ask to re<li­
rect previous contributions. 

In either case, a charity may be inter­
ested in changing the purpose of previ­
ously made gifts, so that money can be 
released for a different use. Any organiza­
tion contemplating such a move must 
consider: 

❖ Donor relations with those who gave
the restricted funds

<- Public relations with other donors, 
volunteers, and the at-large 
commumty 

-0- Accounting standards for reporting 
restricted fun<l transactions 

<- I .egal rules governing the use of 
donor-restricted gifts 

All of these to11Slderations are hn­
portant, but this article focuses on the 
legal aspects of cltaoging the ru1 pu�e of 
restricted funds. 

Enforceability of Restrictions 

A charity's legal obligation to use a gift 
for the purpose specified by the donor 

See CHANGING: H1ge 2 

www.pgtoday.com 

THIS MONTH 

1 Changing the Purpose on Past 

Charitable Gifts 

t Insights rrorn Georgia's le..sding 

Gift Planners 

6 Personalized Philanthropy: 

Part II 

11 Marketing Reprintable: 

The Confusion About Bequests 

12 Back Page: 

Connecting Broadly 

left A legacy 

96



PLANNED GIVING 

T·O·D·A·Y 
PfmmedGMngToday....,ttleoft­
Q)ffl!TIUJlfty as a pr.!(tk:;!I �fur education. 
--""'-­
lthelpsllftplannersenzb!eOlherstoslYe. 
-""'-· 
Tom Qdif:rran, Editor 
CcrptlsCJ1ristl.Texas 
EllffllRW.BOARD 
BnxoE.­
--Consu!ting 
--

-c.-
--
.....,,,, .... Callfom!a 
-""'Comfort 
�-­
CGMID,,� 
J,dfeW.-
The ...... "°""""""
CamlGro,NonhC>roll,,a 
KMcA.­
Qua,le,&&adyllP 
°"'2go. illlnols 
Kdsttn Sdwlu J.wda 
Cn=ndo-lnc. 
C2marlllo.Callfom!a 

_,.__ 
kbttR.lu1risM,1&As»datc5LLC 
""""·Colcrodo 

BarlowT.Mam 
TheS!wpeGro<Jp 
-Tomessee
---
Frank-Consulting llC 
---­

Phll!pM. ...... 
BaJIStatelJMfflityfoundafion 
MW>de."1dlana 
_c. ... 
lmnla-­
-°""-Callfom!a 

--
Coo\nwlil.yl'ourxldotifurtheNatlon&ICapltalP.eg!ori 
-D.C 

""1torialtontza, 
Phone: 361.800.5840 
fmalt; �.«1Ul 
FOUNDER(fflO) 
G.--
GRAPHICS 
SournMew Design Studio 
l'IJllUSHER 
Marl/Annllcoot.lnc 
""""""©2017byMa,y AM ll,bo,t 1..­
AII right! are 1esetved. 
The mtide de&dllne Is six weeks prior to Issue 
date, and Letters tottre Editor are due Coutweeb 
priortofs:wedate. Thep(!bllsherawmesno 
responsibility (orunsQflfited nunuscrlpti or othff 
materials submitted far review. Views expressed 
fn thbflllbl� do not�f81)fflent 
the oi,inkwof the publlshtt, editor. or the 
Editorial Bcud. 
Annual Penona! SubxrfpUon Prkcs (SUS) 

u� non-U..S. 

On!:!ne:only $246 $246 
Pdrit ord)' U51 Sl(J'/ 
P'lintmdOn!ioo $27S $325 
Call rot µrites on Institutional and multf..yeat 
wbscl�IS. 
--andOttle,Buslneos 
Pf.utnedGMngTud.rf' 
Mary Ann l.iebcrt. Jnc. 
140 Huguenot Street, 3rd Aoor
New Rochelle. NY 10801-5216 
Phone: l!Oo.654.3237 
E:mall: pgt@pgtoday.com 
Web: www.pgtoday.com 
ISSN: 1052-4770 

z 

CHANGING c.ontinued from Page I

stems primarily out of charitable trust 
law. Gifts and bequests to charitable 
organizations are deemed to create a 
charitable trust, and the pmpose restric­
tions imposed by donors are enforceable 
under trust law. This is true even if the 
gift is made to a nonprofit corporation or 
association, rather than trust-form char­
ity. Using the contributions for another 
purpose, even a worthy or charitable one, 
is a breach of trust. 

Charitable trust restrictions are usually 
established by the donor through bequest 
terms, a gift agreement, or written ins true .. 
tions. If a charity asks donors to contrib­
ute for a specific purpose, the resulting 
gifts ore restricted ond held in trust for 
that use under UPMIFA §2(3) 

Conlr'.1ct low is also a factor when funds 
were received in connection with a gift or 
grant agreement, though applicable law 
varies from state to state. Pledge agree­
ments that seek to make future charitable 
gifts are sometimes enforceable. Under 
traditional contract law principles, a 
charitable pledge is enforceable when the 
charity provides return consideration to 
the donor, or when the charity or other 
donors rely to their detriment on the 
pledge. While a court recently ruled that 
a foundation has a contract claim against 
a donor, others denied enforcing a pledge 
because consideration and detrimental 
reliance were lacking. 

Altltough most <·0111t rnses aLout the 
enforceability of gift agreements arise 
when charities try to enforce a pledge 
against a donor or donor's estate, a char• 
ity's promise to use funds for a particular 
purpose may be !'nforr<'able against the 
charity as contractual obligation when the 
gift was made pursuant to an enforceable 
agl'@0Ullitlll. 

Under the traditional trust law doctrme 
of cy pres, a cou1 t may 111odif y the terms 
of a charitable tmst when its stated pur, 
pose ltas become impossible, impractica­
ble, illegal, or wasteful. The modified use 
must fulfill the donor's charitable intent as 
closely as possible. 

Cy pros is used to modify stand alone 
charitable trusts, but this doctrine also has 
been applied to restricted gifts and en­
dowments held by nonprofit cmporations 
and associations. It may still be used to 
modify charitable gifts when the Uniform 
Prudent Management of Institutional 

Funds Act (UPMll:'A) does not apply. 1:'or 
example, if real estate was donated for use 
in a nonprofit's program, UPMIFA does 
not apply. A cy pres action would there­
fore be required to modify the donor's 
restrictions on use of the property. 

UPMIFA is often thought of os a law 
that regulates endowment spending. 
However, it applies more broadly to all 
institutional funds (not just endowments) 
and it both codifies and expands the cy 
pres doctrine relating to the modification 
of donor restrictions. It is a uniform law, 
meaning a committee of experts wrote 
a model statute and encouraged state 
legislatures to adopt it. UPMIFA has been 
enacted in 49 states (all but Pennsylvania) 
and in the District of Columbia. Some 
state legislatures tinkered with the model 
law when they enacted it, so provisions 
vary somewhot from state to state. 

UPMIFA applies to all institutional 
funds, and "institution" i• defined in §2(4) 
to mean any !'ntity that is organi7<'d and 
operated exclusively for charitable purpos­
es. The term also includes a government 
agency or instrumentality to the extent 
that it holds funds exclusively for charita­
ble purposes. A split-interest trust after all 
noncharitable interests have terminated is 
an institution under UPMIFA. 

Institutional fund is defined in UPMI­
FA §2(5) as "a fund held by an institu­
tion exclu&ively fo1 chaiitable purposes." 
Titls includes both endowed and nonen­
dowed funds. 'Ibe definition of "institu­
uoual fund" excludes ( I) program-related 
assets held to accomplish an exempt pur­
pose ai,d not for investment, (2) funds 
held by outside noncharitable trustees, 
and (3) any fund in which a beneficiary 
that is not an institution has an interest. 
Under tl1ese broad definitions, UPMIFA 
applies to any charitable or educational 
nonprofit organization (including state 
universities) and covers both !'ndowed 
nnd noncndowed funds. 

For institutional funds, it enables a 
charity to modify r!'.strictions contained 
in the gift instrument. Section 2(3) of 
UPMIFA defines gift instrument as "a 
record 01 ,ecor<ls, iuclu<liug au it1!>Litu­

tional solicitation, under whid1 f>l()pe1ty 
is granted to, transferred to, or held by 
an institution as an institutional fund." 
This includes will and trust language, 
gift and pledge agre .. ments, and trans­
mittal letters from the donor. It also 

See CHANGING, Page

PLANNED GIVING TODAY o APRIL 2017 

9

97



CHANGING w1111111wd {wm H1ge l. 

encompasses proposals o r  solicitation 
language from the charity. 

UPMIFA p10viJes three ways that a 
charity can modify restrictions on institu­
tional funds: by donor consent, by court 
order, or for small old funds with notice 
to the state's attorney general. 

Donor Consent 

Purpose rest rictions can be changed 
with the written consent of the donor in 
§6(a) of UPMlFA.

If the donor consents in a record, an m­
stit ution may release or modijj� in whole
or in 11aii, a restriction coutainetl in a gift
instrument on the management, invest­
ment, or purpose of an institutional fund.
A mlense or modification may not allow a
Jund to be used for II purpose otl,e, tl,an a
charitable 1111rpose of t/,e institution.
The donor's ronr,ent must bn in a wrnr<l

UPMIFA §2(8) defines a record as "in­
formation that is inscribed on a tangible
medium or that is stored in an electronic
or other medium and is retrievable in
perceivable form." A letter or agreement
signed by the donor meets this standard,
but the donor's consent need not be so
formal - an email from the donor will

also suffice. However, a donor's verbal
permission to modify the terms of the gift
would not satisfy the statute, since the
consent would not then be in a record.

While donor consent 1s reqmred, the
chanty holclmg the fund must also take
some action. UPMIFA states that the
institution (not the donor) releases the re­
striction. The charity's action to modify the
restriction, by the board of directors or by
staff if such authority is dolcgated, should
be documented in the charity's records.

ff the donor consents In writing to
change a fund's purpose, there is no
re<]uirement that the new purpose- b<?"

related many way to the ongmal gift 
designation - the donor and charity can 
agree to do something completely differ­
ent, as long as the new use is a charitable 
one. Further, no justification or grounds 
for modification is required. The change 
r:an he. made simply because the donor 
and charity have changed their minds. 

Court Order 

A charity may also get a court order that 
permits a modification of fund terms. UP­
MIFA §6(c) provides, "If a particular char­
itable purpose or a restriction contained in 
a gift instrument on the use of an institu­
tional fund becomes unlawful, impracti­
cable, impossible to achieve, or wastefut 
the court ... may modify the purpose of 
the f-und or the restriction on the use of 
the fund in a manner consistent with the 
c-l1arit<1ble pmpo;,•s e.xprc·ssed in the gift
instrument."

The original fund purpose must be 
unlawful, impracticable, impossible 
to achieve, or wasteful for a charity to 
alter a fund purpose usmg this second 
mechanism. The court may only act if the 
chanty can show that one of these specific 
grounds for modification exists. A restric­
tion is impracticable if adhering to the re­
striction is unreasonably difficult or would 
not accomplish the donor's overall charita­
ble objective. It is not enough to show that 
the funds could be better spent by chang­
mg the donor's designated purpose. 

The new fund purpose must be 
conc;1c;trnt with the chantahle purpo'>P'i 
expressed in the gift instrument. This 
UPMlFA provision is a codification 
of cy pre5, which mandates a use a5 
close as possible to the donor's original 
designation. The wording of UPMH'A is 
different, but the court will still look for 
a use that conforms as much as practi­
cable to expressed donor intent. 

Sa Cfli\NGING. H1gc IO 

PLANNED GIVlNG TODAY ❖ APRIL 2017 

UPMIFA 

provides three 

ways a charity 

can modify 

restrictions. 

Endnote 

9

 

98



The  o r i g i n a l

re str i ct i on s  

m u st be  

u n l awfu l ,

i m pra ct i ca b l e , 

i m pos s i b l e  to 

ach i eve , or  

wa stefu l .

Barbara Rhomberg is an attorney 
at Kavanagh Rhomberg LLP, with a 

foe.us on nonprofit organization lnw 
and charitable giving. She h.is taught 
noi1r.nufil lctw dl the University of San 
rmnmeo �c:hool of Lnw, 1s a member 
of the Nonprofit Organizations Com­
mittee of the California State Bar, and 
serves on the Lodrd of the Nor them 
tahforma Planned C:i1ving Council. 
hrhomberg@krnonprofitlnw.com 

CHANGING co111 i 1111cdfro111 Hq:c 9 

Equitable devia tion is a trust law 
procedure that allows the administrative 
terms of a trust to be modified. UPM IFA 
also codifies this doctrine, and pro­
vides that a court can order relief from 
a fund's cumbersome administrative 
requirements or unfortunate investment 
restrictions . Section 6(b) provides that 
a court can modify restrictions in a gift 
instrument "regarding the management 
or im'cstmcnt of an institutional fund if
the restriction has become impracticable 
or wasteful, if it impairs the management 
or investment of the fund, or if, because 
of circumstances not anticipated by the 
donor, a modification of a restriction will 
further the purposes of the fund . . .  To 
the extent practicable, any modification 
must be made in accordance with the 
donor's probable intention." 

UPMIFA requires that the state's at­
torney genernl be noufieJ of any petition 
asking a court to modify the charitable 
purpose or administrati\'e terms of a fund. 

Small Old Funds 

The third method of modifying pur­
pose restrictions appl ies only to small 
old funds (how old and how small the 
fund must be depends on the version of 
UPMIFA adopted in the charity's state). 
for quahfymg small old funds, U l'MIFA 
�6(d) allows the dldl i lv  lo nH"l ifv the 
terms un i lateral ly l'ol low i 11g not ice to 
tl ,c !"..li:!tc:'� <1ttouwy gcrn:1 .1 ! .  

If au inslit 1 1 t iu11 cletenui11es tlwl a 
restriction contaiued in a gift iustnt­
meut 011 the 11w1wgement, i11restme11t, 
or purpose of au i11stit11tional fund is 
zrnlcmjul, impracticable, impossible to 
ach iet•e, or wastejul, the iust itutiou, 
[60 days] after ,10t 1ficat1011 to the /at 
toruey general], may release or modify 
the rest.ricliou 1 rn U'hule u1 pal l ,  1.f; ( l )  
t lw lllil t l 1 1 l 1u1wl fund 1 1 1 l1ju:I lu l lw 
rc�·trict ion lws ff total value oj less them 
{$? >, 000} , ( ? )  ""''" t lum {?OJ rem, 
lw t1e elaJN!d .� iurn tlte fuwl wm 'c,!!>ttth­
li511ed; and (3 ) the hzstitutiou uses tlie 
property 111 a 11w1rncr cousisleut with 
t/U' charitable JJHrpn,;,e,;; expras.1,c,d iu the 
g�ft imtnrnw111 
The model U PM I FA statute requires 

that a fund he older than 20 vcars , and 
with a total value ol' less tha,{ tJ. ',,000, 
for this third method of fund mod ifica­
tIOn lo apply. Some states, for example 

Orc-gon ,rnd Tf'xas, cnac t<'d tlwsr nitnia 
without change. A number of states 
increased the dollar lim it on the size of 
the fund; in  New York and California, 
for example, funds up to $ I 00,000 may 
be modified under this provis ion. Ohio 
raised the limit to $250,000, and applies 
it to funds that are at least I O  years old. 

The model law did not require any no­
tice to the donor prior to the modification 
of small old funds. The draliers reasoned 
that "an institution's concern for donor 
relations would serve as a sufficient incen­
tive for notifying donors when donors can 
be located." 

Some states, such as California and 
N ew York, added a legal requ irement 
that charities notify donors when they 
propose to modify small old funds under 
this provision. California requires notice 
to donors at their l ast  knmvn address 
in the nonprofit's records. New York re­
quires notice to individual donors if they 
arc alive, and to 111st1tut10nul donors 1f 
they still exist  and earl)' on activit ies, ff 
the donors can be identified and located 
with reasonable efforts. 

Under this method, the original fund 
restrictions must be unlawfu l ,  impracti­
cable, impossible to achieve, or wasteful, 
and the revised fund purpose must be 
consistent with the charitable purposes 
expressed in the gift instrument . These 
substantiv0 rf'quin•mrnts arP tlw snm0 11.c; 
if the charily had sought H court onln lo 
mochfi, the fund. ! he l JPM l l0A prov1s1on 
for modifying smal l  old funds provides 
a simp l i fied [>rOC<'SS lo avoid th,, (often 
prohibitive) cost of going to court . 

The language or the mo<lel act allO\VS 

restrictions on the "management, invcst-
111c1 1 t, rn pur po!>c of a11 h 1!>lituliot 1.ll fun<l" 
to be modified if the requisite cause c.11 1 

be shown. This seems to include nn en 
dowmcnt restriction, which would likely
ho charartnriz(ld as fiithor a purpo,.:;(': or a 
mnnng<'ITI<'nt rP'-t m·l lon . It follow,; that a 
fund cou ld be unendowcd if the charity 
can show that continuing to hold tlw fund 
a(, an c·rnlnwmcnt i,; impract icahlP, and 
that current use (rather than combining 
it witli H huger C.:H<luwmcnt ru1 1J)  h, HIU!>l 
cow, i�.Leut with <lonm intent. 

Changing the purposr of pn•viou(,!y r(•­
ceived gi fts takes time and resources, but 
the rewards can be enormous for a charity 
that has disused and unusable funds that
can be put back to work. 

�--------------------------------------------
10  P L A N N E D  G \ \' I N G  T O D AY A P R I L  2 0 1 7

9
 

9



FINAL- Budget v.4 5-22-2020 

Ventura College Foundation 

FY 2020-2021 Budget V.4 FINAL 

Narrative-Management of the COVID-19 Crisis 
May 22, 2020 

Introduction with Special Attention to the Impact of the Marketplace in 2020-2021 

This annual budgel and pldn were uealed wilh one goal in mind, the preservation of the Ventura 

College Foundation. The main assumption here is that the current restrictions on businesses and public 

health protections remain in place through December 2020. The implementation of this budget, as of 

July 1, will preserve cash flow, preserve our key staff, and mitigate the negative impact of the reduction 

of investment earnings on the students that we are bound to serve. Coupled with monthly oversight by 

the Finance Committee, significant but achievable fund raising by the board and staff, this budget may 

preserve the opportunity to support students' success for decades more. 

For .'l'i yi>ar�, thi> Vi>ntura College Foundation relied on net revenue from its Weekend Marketplare (MP) 

to pay for 100% of Its operations. MP operations have been suspended since March 13, 2020 to protect 

the public from COVID-19. The MP will re open on May 30, 2020 with physical distancing and safety 

protocols required by the State of California and the Ventura County Public Health Department. The MP 

will begin again with less than 40% of its former capacity because of these restrictions. 

To be clear, the following budget plan assumes that the current health directives will remain through 

December 30 and that the MP will run at 40% capacity with necessary related costs during Ql and Q2. 

This plan assumes that in Q3 and Q4, the MP will run at 80% of pre-crisis levels. A new MP operating 

plan has been drafted and is built to break even, including MP personnel wages, and grow quickly in net 

revenue generation to reach the 40% revenue target measured against pre-crisis levels. 

The new MP upernling plan has been reviewed by the VCF lloard Marketplace Committee, Ventura 

College Executive Committee, Ventura County Community CollPgP l>Mrlct PollcP, and Ventura College 

facilities and Maintenance Leadership. We ltava properly notified Lhe Ventura Counly PuuliL I leallh 

Department and attested to required directives and safety protocols. 

This budget plan incorporates our new policies to charge all new restricted gifts a 10% sustainability 

fee/gift. Additionally, we will execute an endowment fund donor strategy to: (1) convert il, rnm1y 

restricted endowment funds to operating endowments, (2) gain permission from select restricted 

endowment donor, Lu lake a one lime distribution of uddltlorml 5% earnings for operations while 

keeping the principal intact, (3) take a one-time distribution of up to 10% earnings from select restricted 

endowed fund, while keeplni: the principal Intact to direct more support to students, (4) gain 

permission from the State AttornPy Cii>nNal to ronvPrt �PIPrt �mall 10+ yPar-olcl enclowecl funds to 

spend-down accounts to direct more support to students. These plans would be done with the 

permission of the board, Inside Federal and State law, and, where legally bound, with the explicit and 

documented permission [rom U,e, dor,or. 

It rs our srncere hope that this budget represents a worst-case scenario. 

The remainder of this document illuminates fundamental changes in fund raising and programmatic 

planning due to cuts in staff and expenses in order to extend cash flow through December 2020. 

1 100



101



FINAL- Budget v.4 5-22-2020 

Event Sponsorship Goal: $17,250 

• Scholarship Award Events - $8,250
o VCF Board and staff will need to identify sponsors to help cover the cost of the event

and make follow up calls and emails to secure funding for this event.
o Note possible prospects and request amounts to support VCF Textbook Lending, these

are good options that are not confirmed - Edison International ($5,000), Miracle Mile
($2,500), Clean Power Alliance ($1,000). Please talk with staff before approaching these
companies.

• Special Events - $9,000
o VC:F Board and �taff will need to identify sponsors to help cover the cost of events and

make follow up calls and emails to secure funding for a variety of events throughout the
year.

David P. Bianw Textbook Lending Library Goal: $8,000 

Staff will secure support through grant requests. Possible prospects and rf'quf'�t amounts are options 
mid not yet confirmed - Union Bank ($2,500), Mechanics Bank ($.1,000), Julius Gius �oundation ($3,500), 
Tyrone Heritage {$10,000). 

Unrestricted Funds: Potential for $59,500 

VCF Board and staff will need to reach out to donors and donor prospects about making a major gift to 
support the Foundation President's Circle gifts, other major gifts, and direct modia marketing 
campaigns will make up the bulk of these funds. The following groups have been identified as a 
potential source of unrestricted funding. 

• Donors who recently completed their five-year pledges - $5,000
o 8 prospects for a combine total of $40,000
o $8,000 in FY21 if all 8 prospects are secured
o Conservative estimate is 5 prospects are securi;-d for annurtl loin I or $5,000

• Converting current five-year VC Promise pledge holders to Fund for VC - $14,000
o $14,000 in FY21
o $8,000 in FY22
o $4,000 in FY23

• Donors who have given in five-plus consecutive years to Fund for VC - $2,800
o Currently 16 donors give approx. $3,800
o Conservative decrease in donor giving by 25% expected = $2,800

• Donors who have given in five-plus consecutivf' yf'ar� - .$1,,<;0
o 2 Donors who currently give to the VC Promise • $450
o 4 Donors who could pivot and support Fund for VC $800

Campus Giving Goal: $94,000 

Though this has not hf'f'n a goal set by the VCF Board and <;taff, over the last three years, approximately 
$12<;,000 ho\ ht>t>n collected each year for campus program, excluding one-time major gifts. Assuming 
there is a drop in giving in the next fiscal year, losing a conservative 25%, we anticipate approximately 
$94,000 in gifts to be collected for campus programs and we will work to �eture thi5 amount. 

3 102



103



104



105



FINAL· Budget v.4 5-22-2020 

• Health benefits savings over $20,000 due to wage cuts and change to CalPl::RS insurance
• Unemployment costs increased approximately $43,000 due to prior staff reductions and

furloughs

OTHfR NOTABLE BUDGET ITEMS 

• Additional Unrestricted Donations (see Major and Planned Giving above) $121,000

• Payroll Protection Loan: The unforgivable portion of $44,000 with a 1% interest rate over a two

term supports our need for cash flow this year.
• General liability and umbrella insurance costs budgeted to increase approximately $13,000

over prior year budget due to increases in policies in past year. Our broker continues to look for

better rates, but as of last year only one carrier was willing to insure our marketplace for

liability.
• Additional endowment adjustment strategies add $35,000 in operating cash
• Additional cuts to marketing for programs and fundraising saved $28,000
• Sustainability gift: $24,200. This is new unrestricted income we expect to receive basE>d on our

new policy of takmg a 10% sustainability gift from all re�trktPd gifts.
• General office costs/supplies/computers: Budget cut $11,325 over prior year
• Professlonal services: $l4,500 - $l,5UU for 990/ 199 preparation and $ll,Ull0 for annual audit.

Savings not likely in this area, as we just went out to bid for new auditors last year.
• Net Investment income: Budgeted decrease $170,760. Interest, dividends and manager fees are

based on current year activity. Change in market value is based on the very conservative

assumption that the market will continue to decline next year.

Staff 

1. Anne Paul King, Executive Director: Full-time, overall management, board governance, major and

planned giving, community engagement

2 Gorardo Pantoja, Oirertor of Major and Planned Giving: full time, major and planned giving, 

corporate giving, grants, community engagement, donor database-major donor analytics 

3. Julie Blasingame CPA, Director of Finance: Part-time, overall management of financial systems,

audit, investm<?nts, flnanrial �tat<?m<?nt�, budg<?t preparation, tax filing�

4. Esmorolda Juarez, Marketplace Supervisor: rull time, overall management of Weekend

Marketplace, space rentals, vendor relations, safety officer, and managE>mE>nt of 11 part-timE> staff

5. Julle Harvey, Development Manager: Full-tlmf', annual fund managPmPnt/fundralsing, donor

stewardship and recognition, publlr r€'1ation,, marketing, overall donor database management, gift

proresslng

b. Jaime Galvan, Program and Event Manger: Full-time, program and scholarship management and
delivery, reader committee, donor fund enrning.r. and fl'VC'fl!IC' rC'port,, �tudC'nt ambassadors,

events, fundraismg

7. Cyndie Whitley, Finance Manager: Full-time, payables and receivables, payroll, HR, liability

insurance, finance support, CalPERS administrator, health and wellness

7  

106



107



108



109



110



111



112



Ventura College Foundation 
Annual Performance Review (APK Self-Assessment) 

Employee:  Anne Paul King, Executive Director 
Evaluator:  VC President, Dr. Kim Hoffmans & VCF Chair Rob van Nieuwburg 
Date:   May 20, 2020 for FY2019-20 

KEY ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

DONOR ENGAGEMENT to ENSURE LONG-TERM GROWTH and SUSTAINABLE SUPPORT FOR 
STUDENTS 

Fundraising 
1. Exceeded annual fundraising goals in aggregate by 9% to-date; unrestricted 40% over

goal, restricted 3% over goal (this total does not include the $250,000 HAAS grant).
2. Restarted President’s Circle group with significant support from President Hoffmans
3. Successful engagement events:

a. Donor Appreciation Event Hosted by Bill and Elise Kearney
b. Veterans Day Celebration
c. Orchard Grand Opening
d. Miriam Schwab Memorial Statue Unveiling
e. Newly Re-engaged President’s Circle events
f. COVID-19: pivoted to on-line scholarship recognition engaging students, donors,

recommenders and sponsors
4. Growth in employee giving over the previous year both in avg gift and in number of

gifts.  Exact figures not available today.
5. Increased engagement within community organizations, including:

a. AMR
b. Bank of America
c. Bank of the Sierra
d. Berkshire Hathaway Charitable Foundation
e. California Resources Corporation
f. Citizens Business Bank
g. Crown Plaza (multi-year agreement with Athletic Dept.)
h. Downtown Ventura Rotary
i. Gibbs Truck Centers and other Diesel Advisory Committee members
j. Gene Haas Foundation
k. Mechanics Bank
l. Mission Avocados, Limoneira, Reiter Affiliated and other Ag Advisory Committee members
m. Ohana Pet Hospitals
n. Sage Publications
o. Santa Barbara-Ventura Chapter of the Association for Fundraising Professionals
p. Southern California Edison
q. Ventura Chamber of Commerce
r. Ventura County Community Foundation

113



s. Center for Non-Profit Leadership at California Lutheran University
t. Union Bank
u. Ventura County Museum

6. Delivered 300+ donor endowment and annual fund reports with investment earnings
and fund balances.

7. Strong Foundation Stronger Futures operating funds campaign, $47K of $50K goal raised
to-date in response to COVID-19

Marketing 
1. 2019 VCF Gratitude Report received a regional Silver Addy Award
2. Have a Heart for VC Athletic Dept. Week of Giving in February
3. VCF significant increase of effective engagement on Facebook, through new Website,

some Instagram, via text and email.
4. Effective collaboration with Ventura College and VCCCD
5. Effective use of Anne’s AFP award to further the reputation of VCF
6. Featured speaker or panelist at Center for Non-Profit Leadership at CLU, Ventura County

Community Foundation, Association for Professional Fundraisers
7. Pivoted Marketing to online and social media in response to COVID-19.

Public Relations 
1. Effective management of press engagement around all notable VCF events, onboarding

new board members, advocacy, Veterans Day, orchard grand opening, statue unveiling,
HAAS gift, COVID-19 and others.

2. Effective mitigation of Lindsay & Company’s connection to Cars for Causes litigation

Advocacy Started this Year 
1. Actively engaged as a board member of the FCCC’s Network of California Community

College Foundations
2. Osher Endowment Program-Begun partnership to resolve issues with restrictive criteria
3. 2020 Proposition 13 Endorsement and $5K Support—did not pass
4. Signed various organizational letters of support for legislation at national and state

levels.
5. Asked to contribute to VCCF Donor Newsletter regarding support for students left out of

CARES Act funding.

Effective Management of Estate Gifts and Related Investment Funds 
1. Continued management of Miriam Schwab Estate, Yunker Estate, and other funds and

related activities: legal, financial, spending, PR, recognition
2. Astute use of legal counsel for estate gifts when needed, including the Aurora Loss

Estate
3. COVID-19: In partnership with donors, converted $100,000 in restricted endowments to

operations, to-date.

114



MARKETPLACE 
1. Maintained critical operating revenue generation through March 8, 2020
2. COVID-19: developed alternative operating plan in alignment with public health

directives to reopen after 11 weekends of closure.

STRONG SUPPORT for STUDENTS—EXECUTION of the MISSION 

Scholarship/Program Successes 
1. Awarded historic high of $683K through 427 scholarships to 248 students: $2,270 avg

for continuing students and $3,662 avg for transfer students
2. On-going improvement of rubrics for the scholarship application and recommendations

addressing equity gaps and better support reader, recommender and student success
3. Maintained roster of 90 scholarship readers
4. Manage and funded student engagement in Textbook Lending on campus supporting

over 4500 students on both campuses
5. Continue to manage challenging ESTEEM-NSF-UCSB off-cycle scholarship program
6. More than doubled scholarships awarded in off-cycle paramedic scholarship program
7. Outreach at all Fall campus events on VC’s main campus and VC’s East campus
8. 50 classroom visits
9. Coordinated VCF Student Ambassadors; 20 total many in ASVC

Management of Promise Program Changes Due to the Passage of AB19 and SB2 
1. In partnership with financial aid office and the State of California, expanded support to

approximately 1800 first- and second-year students.
2. Transitioned VCF support from the VC Promise to Zero Textbook Cost program
3. Converted William and Helen Scarpino Veteran Promise Donors to Jerry Arellano

Veterans Textbook program donors.

Engagement and Support of On-Campus Programs 
1. Ag Program, Advisory Committee, Orchard Grand Opening and ongoing management
2. Athletics, Have a Heart for VC campaign, gift processing, Crown Plaza Multi-Year gift
3. Business, Advisory Committee
4. Classified Senate, annual scholarship campus fundraising
5. Diesel Technology, Advisory Committee, major donor support
6. Engineering, ESTEEM program management support
7. EAC, ICAN Advisory Committee, Expert Learner Program grant
8. Holistic Health, annual auction support
9. Machining, HAAS grants support

115



10. Math and Science, annual auction and awards support
11. Nursing, Aurora Loss Estate Gift, grants, major gift stewardship and fundraising
12. Paramedics, off-cycle scholarships, grants
13. Performing Arts, Miriam Schwab Estate fund and plan support, statue unveiling, Yunker

Estate Funds, various endowments, department awards support, gift processing
14. Veterans Resource Center, Veterans Day Celebration, fundraising support
15. Veterinary Tech, fundraising support

BOARD of DIRECTORS GOVERNANCE 
1. Preparation and management of quarterly board meetings and meetings for 10 board

committees
2. Conducted successful board retreat
3. Finalized Development of 6-year Strategic Plan approved by board
4. COVID-19: Converted board governance to Zoom

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
1. On-going management of CalPERS audit and personnel issue
2. Active participation on campus safety committee
3. Harassment training added for board
4. Management of payroll & HR for approximately 25 employees throughout year

including CalPERS and health & wellness for exempt employees
5. COVID-19: Developed and implemented workforce reduction plan in consultation with

HR consultant and with approval of board

FINANCE AND INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT 
1. Completed financial audit w/o deficiencies
2. Hired new staff CPA, Director of Finance
3. Developed and managed balanced budget for 2019-2020 ending year in surplus.
4. COVID-19: Secured CARES Act SBA Payroll Protection Program Loan
5. COVID19: Monitored on-going cash-on-hand and redeveloped budget and management

plan to sustain VCF
6. COVID-19: Smart use of UPMIFA Federal and State regulations, in accordance with GAAP

accounting, to craft endowment spending strategy alongside an endowment donor 1-
year assistance plan to preserve all remaining staff and to extend cash-on-hand from
mid-September through December 30, 2020.

INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
1. Oversee safety protocols especially at Marketplace
2. Engage HR Consultant throughout the year
3. Engage insurance for key risk areas: directors & officers, umbrella liability, volunteer,

workers comp, certificates for campus activities such as the orchard, etc.

116



4. Responsible for ABC licensing on campus

ANNE’S STRENGTHS 
1. Able to effectively manage through complexity & crisis appropriately juggling the

immediate and future needs for the organization
2. Strong leadership skills
3. Effective major gift fundraiser
4. Successful advocate for the foundation and its mission, on and off campus
5. Engenders trust, collaboration and partnerships on and off campus
6. Has breadth of knowledge and awareness of key management strategies related to

finance, HR, collaboration with college and district leaders, liability/legal issues,
fundraising/planned giving, PR, marketing, investment management

7. Able to prioritize and maintain key organizational functions
8. Strong work ethic
9. Passionate focus on strengthening the long-term sustainability of the organization
10. Leads with transparency and integrity to effectively build trust with stakeholders
11. Demonstrates commitment to the organization’s mission
12. Persuasive advocate for VC students, college and foundation
13. Empowers VCF staff to lead and work passionately to support student success

ANNE’S AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
1. Personal time management – needs to continue to better balance professional and

personal life, and manage physical and mental health successfully.
2. Exercise greater discipline managing expectations, sustainable workload for self, and

staff.
3. Improve consistency in good customer service by me both internally, on campus and

with community partners.
4. Inject more joy into the life of our team
5. Effectively engage more members of the board in active fundraising
6. Mirroring good discipline and work management skills for staff

ANNE’S GOALS FOR 2019-20 

OVERALL: Ensure that the Foundation survives through June 30, 2021. 

Mission Delivery and Funding to Do So 

1. Execute effective and creative strategies to minimize fundraising and revenue losses due to
philanthropic challenges, shutdowns, and staff reductions due to COVID-19.

117



2. Execute efficient and creative strategies to minimize loss of student support due to staff
reductions and loss of revenue due to COVID-19.

3. Focus support for campus programs in key areas with major active philanthropic partners:
a. Agricultural Advisory Committee
b. Athletic Program
c. Diesel Advisory Committee
d. Manufacturing
e. Nursing Program
f. Paramedic Program
g. Programs funded by the estate gifts
h. Veterinary Tech Program

4. Manage adjustments given the loss of three positions: events specialist, donor database
specialist and operation/administration manager.

5. Expand effective use of our marketing outreach through social media to replace printed
campaigns and tools.

6. Continue to increase engagement with community and state leaders

Effective Support for Board Governance 

1. Increase the number of board members engaged in philanthropic activities
2. Support monthly finance meetings to effectively manage cashflow through COVID-19 crisis

Operations and Administration 

1. Minimize any further staff turnover either through budget cuts or attrition.
2. Effective support for staff’s ability to be successful, especially through online team

communication & moral boosting activities.
3. Continue to support VC President and appointed campus representatives on board to support

our mission.
4. Streamline operations and administration in response to budget cuts
5. Maintain transparency, professionalism, and integrity.
6. Manage our investments to minimize losses due to COVID-19 with a focus on long-term

sustainability.

118



Ventura College Foundation 

Annual Performance Review (Board Chair Assessment) 

Employee: Anne Paul King, Executive Director 

Evaluator: Board of Directorrs Chairman Rob van Nieuwburg 

Date: June 6, 2020 for FY2019'�2020 

Management: 

After another year with major challenges, Anne continues to assemble and lead a uniquely 

qualified staff in a highly professional manner. The successes her team has been able to 

produce make her a top shelf leader and manager. A pandemic that brought the entire 

economy to a-sudden halt forced cutting back on an already tightly ran staff. Notwithstanding, 

Anne was able to maintain morale and productivity. The Foundation is privileged to have her. 

Budgets: 

After restructuring budgets and accounting two years ago and completing a challenging budget 

for FY 2020-2021, Anne was forced to start over. Temporary closure of the Market Place for 

almost two months caused loss of major revenues. This required a new budget with additional 

deep cuts. Again, Anne adapted to the change and is leading the Foundation through turbulent 

times. Fundamental changes in fundraising and cuts in expenses will keep the Foundation in 

existence. 

Communication Skills: 

Anne's collaboration skills and abilities to solve problems are beyond comparison. Her skills are 

precise, timely and clear. Her abilities in leading meetings, public speaking and ceremonies are 

testimony to her passion for students and the Foundation. She always maintains integrity and 

professionalism. Testimonial to Anne's professionalism, she was selected to receive the 2019 

Professional Fund raiser of the Year Award by the Association of Fund raising Professionals, 

Santa Barbara/Ventura Counties Chapter. It is a privilege to work with Anne. 

Initiatives: 

• Mitigated damage caused by sudden economic downturn

119



. Met fundraising and revenue goals during FY2OL98-2020
o Minimize staff reduction through attrition and budget cuts
o Streamline Foundation operations in response to forced budget cuts
o lnitiated transfer to a new investments company to better manage invested funds
o Brought a renewed agricultural partnership with Mission Produce to the campus,

resulting in a producing avocado orchard.
o Developed additional Fresident's Circle Funding
o Materialized the Miriam Schwab Memorial Statue and unveiling
o lnitiated and managed on-line student recognition, due to Covid-1"9 pandemic
o Continued and increased engagement with community organizations
o Expanded significant marketing through social media
o Expanded engagement with state and local leadership
o Managed modificationm in the "Ventura Promise Program" to align with the State

Promise Program
r Merged the "Veterans Promise Program" to better serve the students
o Expanded Student Book Lending Program
o lncrease to develop c$Tlmunity partnerships and outreach to grow philanthropy
o Maintain key partnerships on campus

Anne exceeds all expectations in her role of Executive Director for the Ventura College
Foundation. She works well under pressure, is detailed oriented and keeps a positive attitude.
The community and The Foundation greatly benefit by Anne's presence and leadership. She is

instrumental in the future succ.ess of students and sustainment of The Foundation.

Rob van Nieuwburg
Chairman of the Board I ntura College Foundation

Summary

{

Anne Paul King
Executive Director, Ventura College Foundation
June 14, 2020

120



1 

Ventura College Foundation Executive Director 

Name of Supervisor Being Evaluated: Anne Paul King 
Title of Supervisor Being Evaluated:  Executive Director 
Location:  Ventura 
Evaluation Date From:  6/1/2019 Evaluation Date To:  5/29/2020 

Communication Skills: 
Anne Paul King is articulate and possesses strong communication skills, both written and verbal.  Anne 
consistently keeps me informed of important matters affecting the VC Foundation during our weekly 
meetings and emails.  She meets regularly with the Foundation President and other Board members, 
office staff, and VC employees to discuss and plan for activities and challenges effecting the Foundation.  
Anne, with the assistance of her team, effectively manages press releases, social media, events and 
other marketing tools to provide information about Foundation events, major gifts, and public relation 
opportunities.   

Leadership Skills: 
Anne is a strong leader who has developed collaborative relationships with her staff, Ventura College 
employees, local industry professionals, donors, students and the Foundation Board.  She is well 
respected by all for her strategic insight, breadth of knowledge, fundraising aptitude, and passionate 
support of Ventura College and our students. I sincerely appreciate Anne’s efforts to support VC’s 
nursing, agriculture, athletics, business, diesel, engineering, holistic health, machining, math, science, 
paramedic, performing arts, veterinary tech, and others.  Impressive this year, was the historic high 
awarding of $638,000 in scholarships to 248 students; $2,270 average for continuing students and 
$3,662 for transfer students.  With the COVID pandemic and financial losses from the Marketplace, I feel 
as though Anne’s real strength as a leader is evident in her proactive approach and ability to effectively 
manage the complexities to maintain the solvency and operations of the Foundation.     

Administrative Skills: 
Anne has two years of experience as the Executive Director of the VC Foundation and she continues to 
develop and strengthen her administrative skills to ensure outcomes are met in the following areas:  
fundraising, marketing, public relations, advocacy, fund management (estate, major gifts, and 
investments), student support (scholarships, textbook lending, and others), college program support, 
Market Place management, Board and Committee support, human resources, risk management, 
employee oversight, and general operations. 

Progress on Anne’s Goals for 2019-20: 
Goals (Student Support) 

Met Goal ☐
Partially Met Goal ☒
Did not meet Goal ☐

1. Meet all fundraising and revenue generation expectations through
philanthropy and the Marketplace per the approved FY2019-20 VC
Foundation approved budget (COVID caused some disruptions in meeting
this goal)

121



2 

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

2. Support students and the campus by meeting all outreach, direct support
and indirect support goals per the approved FY2019-20 VC Foundation
approved budget

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

3. Expand our support to students through continued support of campus
programs through stewardship of industry partners, especially with:

a. Agricultural Advisory Committee
b. Business Advisory Committee
c. Diesel Advisory Committee
d. Innovative Cognitive Achievement Network (ICAN) Advisory

Committee--out of the VC Educational Assistance Program
e. Nursing Program
f. Paramedic Program
g. Athletic Program
h. Schwab Music Academy and related programs funded by the

Estate
i. Others as significant opportunities arise

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

4. Continue to engage staff and board in the highest level of professionalism
and expertise to maximize our opportunity to grow our support for and to
students

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

5. Intentionally engage and steward partners at VC and VCCCD to maximize
the capacity to execute our mission

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

6. Expand our marketing outreach through social media and print outlets to
bring attention and support to our mission

Met Goal ☐
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☒

7. Bring back philanthropic support, over two-years initially, for VCF
Educational Enhancement grants to be funded in FY20-21 in partnership
with the VC Program Review process (COVID will delay this
implementation of this goal)

Goals (Effective Support of Board of Governance) 

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

1. Ensure successful creation of a 6-year strategic plan

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐

2. Successfully partner with board leadership to ensure a quorum at each
quarterly meeting

122



3 

Did not meet Goal ☐
Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

3. Host a board retreat to include:
a. Finalize the strategic plan
b. Deliver public relations policy and guidelines
c. Provide sensitivity and diversity training to better serve our

diverse student body
d. Institute an annual board member nomination process
e. Gain approval for a succession plan for board officers and

committee chairs
f. Provide harassment training per California law
g. On-board a new payroll/HR consultant to reduce costs; maintain

compliance with current laws; steward a positive, productive and
safe employment environment; and minimize liabilities

h. Initiate mentor system for new board members

Met Goal ☐
Partially Met Goal ☒
Did not meet Goal ☐

4. Increase the number of board members engaged in philanthropic
activities

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

5. Continue to engage staff and board in the highest level of professionalism
and expertise to maximize our opportunity to grow our support for and to
students

Goals (Operations and Administration) 

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

1. Continue to engage staff in the highest level of professionalism and
expertise to maximize our opportunity to grow our support for and to
students; continuing education and effective team communication is key

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

2. Engage a new VC President effectively to support and expand our mission

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

3. On-board new part-time year-round event manager (Unfortunately, this
position was part of the reduction in force due to COVID)

Met Goal ☐
Partially Met Goal ☒
Did not meet Goal ☐

4. Streamline operations and administrative elements according to short- 
and long-term return on investment. (These efforts will need to be
reimagined with the new VC Foundation staffing reductions)

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

5. Increase staff engagement in the community, county and state to bring
visibility to VCF and our mission

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

6. Continue to ensure that all systems and human resources have back up to
ensure the sustainability of the organization

123



4 

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

7. Continue to improve our donor, financial, program and vendor data
systems to maximize transparency, maintain integrity and increase
effectiveness.

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

8. Continue to improve our operations to maximize transparency, maintain
integrity and increase effectiveness

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

9. Effectively collaborate with VC and VCCCD at human and systems levels

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

10. Manage operations within budget (Kudos to Anne for her ability to meet
this goal during this crisis situation!!!)

Met Goal ☒
Partially Met Goal ☐
Did not meet Goal ☐

11. Manage our investments to preserve their value and achieve at least 4%
growth over time

No applicable ☒
12. Approve a new and appropriate MOU with VCCCD to preserve our

strength and capacity to serve our mission.  (The MOU with VCCCD was
not in need of renewal at this time.)

Overall Comments: 

Anne is a skilled administrator with strong communication skills.  She treats others with kindness and 
respect as she empowers them to succeed in their job responsibilities with the ultimate goal of 
supporting student success and Ventura College.  She has high integrity and is respectful in her 
interactions with all colleagues.  She is a positive member of Administrative Council and other 
committee/workgroups on campus; where she makes thoughtful contributions to the discussions.  
During these very challenging circumstances, Anne was able to meet her extensive goals developed for 
herself from last year.  I am very impressed with the dedication and leadership she brings to her role as 
the Executive Director.   Ventura College is very fortunate to have her support.   

Recommendations: 

Anne is a strong leader and interacts well with others to communicate organizational direction and 
vision.  For next year, I agree with her goals:  

Mission Delivery and Funding Goals 

1. Execute effective and creative strategies to minimize fundraising and revenue losses due to
philanthropic challenges, shutdowns, and staff reductions due to COVID-19.

2. Execute efficient and creative strategies to minimize loss of student support due to staff reductions
and loss of revenue due to COVID-19.
3. Focus support for campus programs in key areas with major active philanthropic partners:

a. Agricultural Advisory Committee

124



5 

b. Athletic Program
c. Diesel Advisory Committee
d. Manufacturing
e. Nursing Program
f. Paramedic Program
g. Programs funded by the estate gifts
h. Veterinary Tech Program

4. Manage adjustments given the loss of three positions: events specialist, donor database specialist
and operation/administration manager.
5. Expand effective use of our marketing outreach through social media to replace printed campaigns
and tools.
6. Continue to increase engagement with community and state leaders

Effective Support for Board Governance 

1. Increase the number of board members engaged in philanthropic activities
2. Support monthly finance meetings to effectively manage cashflow through COVID-19 crisis

Operations and Administration  

1. Minimize any further staff turnover either through budget cuts or attrition.
2. Effective support for staff’s ability to be successful, especially through online team communication &
moral boosting activities.
3. Continue to support VC President and appointed campus representatives on board to support our
mission.
4. Streamline operations and administration in response to budget cuts
5. Maintain transparency, professionalism, and integrity.
6. Manage our investments to minimize losses due to COVID-19 with a focus on long-term
sustainability.

Signatures: 

Anne Paul King  (Signature) Date 

College President or Chancellor Evaluator (Signature) Date 
(Kimberly Hoffmans) 

05/28/2020

06-14-2020

125



126



127



Ventura College Foundation 
Board of Directors Committees (FY 2020-2021) 

Updated 6/2020 

* Committee Chairs are members of the Exec. Committee

Italics: non-BOD members
VCF Staff will attend committee meetings as appropriate.

FINANCE /BUDGET 
1) Nicole Kreutz, Chair
2) Cathy Bojorquez
3) Amy Cherot
4) Nuris Dante
5) Don Degner
6) Abra Flores
7) Ruth Hemming
8) Mike Montoya
9) Mike Orman
10) Rob van Nieuwburg
11)Harald Wulff

STRATEGIC PLANNING 
1) Kristin Ockert, Co-Chair
2) Mike Montoya, Co-Chair
3) Keith Barnard
4) Nuris Dante
5) Phillip Briggs
6) Stephen Kipp
7) Harald Wulff

Marketplace 
1) Rob van Nieuwburg, Chair
2) Cathy Bojorquez
3) Ken Collin
4) Ellyn Dembowski
5) Ruth Hemming
6) Mike Montoya
7) Peter Tshing

STANDING COMMITTEES AD-HOC COMMITTEES 

EXECUTIVE* 
1) Rob van Nieuwburg, Chair
2) Ruth Hemming, Vice-Chair
3) Nicole Kreutz, Treasurer
4) Mike Montoya, Secretary
5) Kim Hoffmans, VC

President
6) Anne Paul King, Exec. Dir.

INVESTMENT 
1) Ken Collin, Chair
2) Bob Beilin
3) Boomer Butler
4) Amy Cherot
5) Don Degner
6) Nicole Kreutz
7) Mike Orman
8) Rob van Nieuwburg
9) Harald Wulff

BYLAWS 
1) Ellyn D., Chair
2) Bob Beilin
3) Amy Cherot
4) Ruth Hemming
5) Donna Santo

PROGRAM SUSTAINABILITY 
1) Ellyn Dembowski, Chair
2) Bob Beilin
3) Ken Collin
4) Nuris Dante
5) Abra Flores
6) Kim Hoffmans
7) Mike Montoya
8) Rob van Nieuwburg
9) Patty Wendt

10) Harald Wulff

NOMINATING/ 
GOVERNANCE 

1) Matt LaVere, Chair
2) Keith Barnard
3) Ellyn Dembowski
4) Ruth Hemming
5) Stephen Kipp
6) Mike Montoya
7) Donna Santo
8) Rob van Nieuwburg
9) Harald Wulff

AUDIT 
1) Boomer Butler, Chair
2) Cathy Bojorquez
3) Amy Cherot
4) Don Degner
5) Ruth Hemming
6) Mike Montoya
7) Rob van Nieuwburg
8) Harald Wulff

PERSONNEL 
1) Matt LaVere, Chair
2) Ellyn Dembowski
3) Ruth Hemming
4) Kim Hoffmans
5) Stephen Kipp
6) Mike Montoya
7) Donna Santo
8) Rob van Nieuwburg
9) Harald Wulff

Scholarship & Grants 
(Promise, Scholarships, 

Textbooks, Veterans, etc.) 
1) Ruth Hemming, Chair
2) Bob Beilin
3) Daisy Castillo
4) Amy Cherot
5) Ellyn Dembowski
6) Kristin Ockert
7) Mike Orman
8) Donna Santo
9) Eleanor Tillquist
10) Rob van Nieuwburg
11)Patty Wendt
12)Harald Wulff 128



VENTURA COLLEGE FOUNDATION/BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2020-2021 
MEETING SCHEDULE & SPECIAL EVENTS  as of June 2020

Updated June 20, 2020 

JULY 2020 (beginning of 2020-21 fiscal year) 
4 – Fourth of July 
15 – Monthly Finance Committee (Wed. 5:15 pm) 
TBD - Nominating Committee 

JANUARY 2021 
20 – Monthly Finance Committee (Wed. 5:15 pm) 
TBD-- Program Sustainability Meeting 
TBD – Marketplace Committee  

AUGUST 2020 
19 – Monthly Finance Committee (Wed. 5:15 pm) 
TBD -- Santa Paula Chamber Mixer 
TBD – Program Sustainability Meeting 
TBD – Marketplace Committee  
TBD – Strategic Planning Committee  
TBD - BOD RETREAT  

FEBRUARY 2021 
2 - Scholarship & Grants Committee Meeting (Tues., 5:15pm) 
17 – Monthly Finance Committee (Wed. 5:15 pm) 
TBD – Nominating Committee  

SEPTEMBER 2020 
1 - Scholarship & Grants Committee Meeting (5:15) 
9 - Q1 Finance Committee (4:15 pm) 
9 - Q1 Executive Committee Meeting (5:15 pm) 
23 - Q1 Full BOD Meeting (Wed. 5:15pm) 
TBD -  Donor Appreciation Event  
TBD – Audit Committee  

MARCH 2021 
17 -  Budget/Q3 Finance Committee (Wed. 4:15 pm) 
17 - Q3 Executive Committee  (Wed. 5:15 pm) 
31 - Q3 FULL BOD Meeting (Wed. 5:15pm) 
TBD-- Program Sustainability Meeting 

OCTOBER 2020 
21 – Monthly Finance Committee (Wed. 5:15 pm) 
TBD - Community Forum-Strategic Plan 
TBD – Program Sustainability Meeting 
TBD -- Marketplace Committee meeting  
TBD – Nominating Committee 

APRIL  2021 
6 - Scholarship & Grants Committee (Tues., 5:15pm) 
21 – Budget/Finance Committee #2 (Wed., 5:15pm) 
TBD - Investment Committee 
TBD – Marketplace Committee  

NOVEMBER 2020 
3 - Scholarship & Grants Committee (Tues., 5:15pm) 
18 – Monthly Finance Committee (Wed. 5:15 pm) 
TBD - Veterans Day Celebration  
TBD- Investment Committee  

MAY 2021 
19 – Budget/Finance Committee #3 (Wed. 5:15pm) 
TBD - VC Graduation 
TBD-- Program Sustainability Meeting 
TBD – Personnel Committee  
TBD – Nominating Committee  

DECEMBER 2021 
2 - Q2 Finance Committee Meeting (Wed. 4:15pm) 
2 - Q2 Executive Committee meeting  (Wed. 5:15 pm) 
16 - Q2 Full BOD Meeting (Wed. 5:15pm)  
TBD - Nurses Pinning Ceremony 

JUNE 2021 (end of 2020-21 fiscal year) 
2 - Scholarship & Grants Committee Meeting (Tues., 5:15pm) 
16 - Q4 Finance Committee (Wed. 4:15 pm) 
16 - Q4 Executive Committee  (Wed. 5:15 pm) 
30 - Q4 FULL BOD Meeting (Wed. 5:15pm) 
TBD - Marketplace Vendor Appreciation BBQ  

ASC = Applied Science Center VC campus 
DRC = 71 Day Road Center Conference Room, VC Foundation Office 
GH = Guthrie Hall 
PAC = Performing Arts Center – VC Campus 
VRC = Veterans Resource Center – VC Campus 
WEC = Wright Event Center, 57 Day Road, Ventura College                **Events in boldface 

129





 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



















 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 


	6-24-2020 Q4 Board Packet Part A, p.1-42
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part A.pdf
	Gift Minimums Memo 5.22.20
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part A
	Program Sustainability Minutes. 06-8-20
	ADJOURNMENT

	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part A.pdf
	1-Cover Sheet Q4 BOD  6-24-2019.pdf




	6-24-2020 Q4 Board Packet Part B, p.43-83
	Memo B Investment Committee Recommend Policy Exceptions Due to COVID-19 (002).pdf
	Ventura College Foundation

	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B.pdf
	Pages from 6-24-2020 Board Packet Part A.pdf
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B.pdf
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	4-29-2020 Revised 2018 IRS 990 Memo
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:





	6-24-2020 Q4 Board Packet Part C, p.84-129
	Pages from 6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B.pdf
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part C.pdf
	VCF 2020-21 Board Committees.pdf
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part C.pdf
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part C.pdf
	5-14-20 APK self assessment
	2019-20 Chair Assessment of APK, Ex. Dir.
	VC Foundation Exec Director Evaluation 2020.rev
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part C.pdf
	Binder3.pdf
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 47
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 48
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 49
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 50
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 51
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 52
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 53
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 54
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 55
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 56
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 57
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 58
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 59
	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 60

	6-24-2020 Board Packet Part B 46.pdf


	2020-21  VCF BOD Meeting Schedule
	ASC = Applied Science Center VC campus
	DRC = 71 Day Road Center Conference Room, VC Foundation Office
	GH = Guthrie Hall
	PAC = Performing Arts Center – VC Campus
	VRC = Veterans Resource Center – VC Campus
	WEC = Wright Event Center, 57 Day Road, Ventura College                      **Events in boldface




	6-24-20 Q4 Board Handout VCF FYE 6-30-19 DRAFT 990 (v. 4-1-2020)



